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Haty Indusiries

Katy Industries, Inc. is a diversified manufacturing company
with operations in two primary industry segments:

Maintenance Products and Electrical Products.

Headquartered in Middlebury, Connecticut, Katy is made up
of a group of businesses that serves the needs of commer-
clal customers, consumer retail outlets, and original equip-
ment manufacturers (OEMs). Katy's businesses serve this
varied group by producing excellent products and delivering
them efficiently and on time. Katy fosters internal growth
through a focus on low-cost production, and through an

aggressive marketing and product development program.

Katy Industries, Inc. is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol KT.
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(Thousands of dollars, except per share data, ratio and number of employees) 2002 2001 2000 1999 19398
Net sales $459,990 $460,176 $523,639 $526,809 $295,245
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (51,391) $ (62,867) $ (7.787) $ 10,845 $ 9933
Discontinued operations® (2.844) 787 2,323 (390) 3,149
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - {1,182) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ¥ (2,514) - - - -
Net (loss) income $(56,749) $ (63,262) $ (5.458) $ 10,455 $ 13,082
(Loss) earnings per share—Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (7.47) $ (7.23) $ (093 $ 129 $  1.20
Discontinued operations (0.34) 0.09 0.28 (0.04) 0.38
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (0.14) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30) - - - -
{Loss) earnings per common share $  (8.11) $ {7.28) $ (065 $ 125 $ 158
(Loss) earnings per share—Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ (7.47) $ (7.23) $ (093 $ 125 $ 118
Discontinued aperations (0.34) 0.09 0.28 {0.04) 037
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (0.14) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30) - - - -
(Loss) earnings per common share $ (8.11) $ (7.28) $ (0.65) $ $ 155
Total assets $275,977 $347,955 $446,723 $493,104 $294,131
Working capital®® 79,822 88,009 114,417 124,573 72,065
DebtH 45,451 84,093 133,838 150,902 39,980
Total liabilities 157,405 173,691 263,430 299,893 144,815
Preferred interest in subsidiary 16,400 16,400 32,900 32,900 -
Stockholders' equity 102,172 157 864 150,333 160,31 148,316
Depreciation and amortization® 19,403 20,728 21,608 18,283 5,195
Capital expenditures 10,118 12,566 14,196 21,066 1,314
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.30 0.30
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Basic 8,370,815 8,393,210 8,403,701 8,366,178 8,283,915
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Diluted 8,370,815 8,393,210 8,403,701 10,015,238 8,443,591
Ratio of debt to capitalization 28% 33% 4200 449% 21%
Number of employees 2,261 2922 3,509 3,834 2,472
[a] Net of tax.
[b] Accounts receivable plus inventory less accounts payable.
[c] Inctusive of amounts classified as current and long-term.
[d} From continuing operations only.
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Free Cash Flow is defined as cash from operations less
capital expenditures and cash dividends paid.

{Dotlors in Miltions)

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Net Debt is defined as total bank debt and preferred
interest in subsidiary less cash balances.
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Katy Industries, Inc.

AR 2002

Dear Shareholders,

| want to thank all of our employees for their successful
efforts in improving our financial performance. Our debt to
equity ratio is low, free cash flow is improved, we are intro-
ducing more new products and we are executing our
restructuring and divestiture programs.

As the slowness in the economy made it difficult to
achieve revenue growth in 2002, we accelerated the imple-
mentation of our restructuring plans, including the following

accomplishments:

e Eliminated five factories and one warehouse.

¢ Qutsourced most of our electrical products and approxi-
mately 50% of our textile products to lower cost praducers
in Asia ard Central America.

s Implemented a central services model for our maintenance
products, thereby reducing overhead, selling, general and
administrative expenses.

¢ Reduced headcount 23% to 2261 employees.

e Eliminated many low volume/low profit products.

Sales for the year were flat at $460 million, with a 10%
increase in electrical products offset by a 3% decrease in
maintenance products.

We have recruited a number of talented executives and
completed the formation of our senior management team.
Included in this report are comments from senior managers

on their accomplishments and opportunities.

GAAP Earnings:
QOur reported net loss from continuing operations of $51.4

million reflects $46.4 million of unusual charges, including:

Impairments of long-lived assets $21.2
Severance, restructuring and related charges 19.2
SESCO transaction 6.0
Total $46.4

C. MICHAEL JACOBI, President and Chief Executive Officer

Earnings Before Unusual Charges:

Net income from continuing operations, before unusual
items and one time charges, was $1.6 million versus a net
loss of $15.1 million in 2001. Gross profit margin improved
from 14.0% to 17.0%, selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased from 15.5% to 14.5% of sales and
interest expense declined $4.8 million. Please refer to pages
22 to 24 in the enclosed Form 10-K for a reconciliation of
GAAP earnings to earnings before unusual charges.

Eleven of our twelve business units showed improvements
in financial performance from 2001 levels. The exception,
Contico’s Consumer division, will benefit from our restructur-

ing programs in 2003 and 2004.

Working Capital and Liquidity: .
Working capital (defined as accounts receivable plus inven-
tory less accounts payable) at 17% of sales, was better than
our target of 20%. Accounts receivable were at 54 days out-
standing, inventory at 70 days usage and accounts payable
at 42 days outstanding. Free cash flow from operations was
$21.4 million, net of capital expenditures of $10.1 million.
We reduced bank debt (net of cash balances) by $35.7
million, ending the year at $40.6 million. Debt to total capi-
talization was reduced from 33% to 28%. The cash to reduce
debt was generated from operations and proceeds from the

sale of Hamilton Precision Metals.

Divestitures and Discontinued Operations:

fn April 2002, we entered into a partnership agreement
that turned over the operation of Savannah Energy Systems
Company (SESCO) to a third party.

We sold Hamilton Precision Metals in October 2002 and
GC/Waldom in April 2003. These operations are classified as

discontinued operations in this annual report.




Subsequent Events:

Subsequent to 2002, we announced several important

events, including:

* A new credit agreement with a $20 mitlion term foan and
$90 million revolver.

® The purchase of all outstanding preferred units owned by
the former owner of Contico at a 40% discount, resulting
in a $6.6 million benefit to stockholders and a reduction
in annual financing cost of approximately $1.0 million.

® The further reduction of debt by approximately $3 million
by using the net proceeds from the sale of GC/Waldom
and a Woods manufacturing facility.

* The acquisition of Spraychem in the United Kingdom, a
company that will complement our existing product

offering.

We also announced that we are exploring the sale of
Woods U.S. and Woods Canada. If a sale of these businesses
is completed, we will exit the electrical products segment, so
the company will be focused on the maintenance products
segment only. All of the proceeds from the sale of Woods

would be used to reduce debt.

Looking Forward:

We do not anticipate an improvement in the economy in
2003, so we expect revenue growth to remain a challenge.
New product introductions will accelerate, helping to protect
margins and revenue.

The prices of resin and copper, important ingredients in
many of our products, have been rising amid recent political
turmeil. We are also experiencing significant increases in
transportation costs and medical, property, worker's compen-
sation and liability insurance. In this economic environment,
it is difficult to pass any cost increases on to customers, so
we are executing numerous cost reduction and productivity

improvement programs to help offset part of these increases.

Further restructuring will occur in 2003 and the first half
of 2004, yielding additional ongoing savings. Capital expen-
ditures, one-time expenses and asset impairments to com-
plete the restructuring are estimated to total approximately
$25 miition.

Certain ather charges on our income statement will be

eliminated over time:

¢ The charge of $2.5 million on the 2002 income statement
refated to the "Cumulative effect of a change in account-
ing principle”. This charge is a one-time write-down of
goodwill at Loren and GC/Waldom.

* The charge for "Distributions on preferred interest in sub-
sidiary" has been eliminated as of February 3, 2003, the
date we purchased all of the preferred units.

¢ The charge for the "Payment in kind dividends on con-
vertible preferred stock” will continue through 2004 or
untif the preferred stock is converted to common stock,
whichever is sooner. The 2002 charge of $11.1 million will
increase in 2003 and 2004.

* Depreciation expense will be higher in 2003 because
we reduced the depreciable lives for certain assets.
Depreciation expense will decrease in 2004 because a
large amount of assets that Katy acquired in the purchase
of Contico in 1999 will be fully depreciated at the end
of 2003.

We remain in a challenging economic environment, but
we believe that we have the assets, the strategy and, most
importantly, the people to continue to improve the perform-

ance of Katy Industries.
Sincerely,

C. MICHAEL JACOBI
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Katy Industries, Inc.

AR 2002

Katy Maintenance Group (KMG] offers the most com-
plete line of commercial cleaning products available, while
specializing in floor care, the largest segment in the indus-
try. The past year was challenging for KMG as we developed
and executed numerous strategies to improve our com-

petitive position, including:

¢ Consolidation of our plastic molding facilities in St. Louis,
thus dramatically reducing our overhead structure. We
successfully consolidated the Warson Road molding
plant and announced the consolidation of the Earth City

distribution facility into our Bridgeton facility.

¢ |Installation of a common operating system in four of
our divisions, thus improving administrative and manu-

facturing operations and leveraging our IT investment.

* Implementation of a central services unit in St. Louis to
provide lower cost service to our divisions and improved

customer service.

¢ Reduction of our product offering by eliminating 1,500 low
volumeflow profit products, which represented less than

1% of sales.

These actions are enabling us to meet the expectations of
our primary customers operating within the Janitorialf
Sanitation and Food Service market channels. By centraliz-
ing selected functions we have improved communication
with our business partners, while reducing the related oper-
ating cost. As the number two supplier in our industry, it is
imperative we remain a low cost producer. Our aggressive
approach to controlling cost enabled us to dramatically
improve upon our prior year's performance, while generat-

ing momentum for the future.

THOMAS BURNS, President, Commercial Products

These results were driven by expanded market share in
Europe, especially the United Kingdom, as new products
generated additional sales at above-average margins. In
2003 our expansion into new categories begins with the
introduction of TrapMaster™, a patent pending product for
the golf course maintenance industry.

To properly convey our story to our customers, the sales
organization was restructured to reduce each regional
manager's geographic area as they now market all KMG
products rather than specializing in only one division's
product line. The "one face to our customers” goal established
for 2002 has been accomplished. This coming year, to assist
our customers in building their business, the sales organiza-
tion is spending 60% of their time working with end users
identifying which of our products best fits their needs.

Our performance in developing and introducing new prod-
ucts, the lifeblood of every successful organization, was not
acceptable. This was addressed with the creation of a talented
product development organization at KMG headquarters in
St. Louis. In conjunction with marketing, they will identify and
fill product gaps, while focusing on breakthrough innovations
aimed at reducing maintenance costs for our end-users.
Their goal for 2003 is to introduce products generating a
modest 5% of sales, expanding to 10% in 2004 and beyond.
This investment will self fund as new innovative products
earn higher gross margins and create a halo affect over the
entire offering.

The KMG team is committed to servicing our customers
through the most efficient supply chain process in the
industry, a continued focus on controlling costs, and
the development of new products that meet the needs of

end users.
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Katy Consumer Products was formed during 2002 to
group the consumer products companies under common
leadership. The companies in this group are Woods US, its
sister company, Woods Canada, Contico's Consumer division,
its sister company, Contico Europe Holdings, and Duckback.

The objectives of the new organization are to increase

sales, improve margins and reduce costs through:

e more effectively defining, designing and developing

new products;

e finding opportunities for cost reductions in sales activi-
ties such as joint sales efforts with common customers

and with shared presence at trade shows; and

e reducing staff among companies where functions, such

as finance and information technology, may be shared.

Results from many of the plans addressing these objec-

tives will be realized in 2003.

Progress in 2002

The majority of our sales are to very large retail chains
that use their size to pressure vendaors for price concessions.
Nevertheless, four of the five companies in this group had

improved results in 2002, as detailed elsewhere.

Woods U.S. and Woods Canada

Significant progress was made by closing domestic man-
ufacturing at Woods U.S. in December and from the cost
savings negoriated with overseas vendors in fate 2001 for
both companies. Our existing stable of brands, a revitalized
new product program (for example, the LockerStar™ locker
mirror with light in the adjacent lower left photograph) and

an extremely efficient supply chain operation have positioned

f DAVID RAHILLY, President, Consumer Products

the company as the best value marketer and distributor in
its markets.

Additionally, organizational changes expected for imple-
mentation in the first half of 2003 include joint management
between the U.S. and Canada in the areas of product develop-
ment and agency refations (UL and its Canadian equivalent,
CSA). In time, with changes to common computer systems,
itis anticipated that the financial and information technology
organizations will also be commanly managed.

All of these activities are directed at cost reduction in
personnel, development of products that can be sold in any

of our markets and better communication of information.

Contico Consumer and Contico Europe Holdings

Both companies, which are primarily in the plastic mold-
ing business, continue to receive pressure on pricing in the
face of increased resin and transportation costs as well as
from aggressive competitors. Contico also has metal form-
ing and assembly facilities, which produce truck tool boxes,
job site tool boxes and liquid holding boxes in various forms.
In both businesses, there is a renewed focus on higher mar-
gin products directed at other market channels through
non-traditional retailers.

As the new products are developed and savings from
restructuring of our malding and distribution operations
take effect, we will have the ability to improve margins.
Further, we are investing capital in new molds and manu-

facturing processes.

Duckback

This northern California manufacturer of wooden deck
and concrete stains continues to manage their market niche
extremely well and turned in a record year. Several new
products have been formulated, but consideration of private
labeling and expansion to new customers, especially in New

England, are the more promising routes for growth in 2003.
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# > ROGER G. ENGLE, Vice President and Chief information Officer

The 2002 activities of the Katy information technology
organization were focused on extracting return on invest-
ment by leveraging legacy systems and were guided by the

following prnciples:

® Customers will only pay for technology costs if the tech-
nology (generally through process re-engineering),
improves the products and/or services that we provide.

® Technology investments will only be made for projects that
yield concrete business value based on verifiable estimates.

¢ [T activities must match the strategic needs of the company.

Given the above, it was clear that implementation of a
common operating system for the commercial products
business offered the best opportunity to create value.

While the systems operated by the commercial products
business could be clearly classified as legacy, the system has
proven to be "bulletproof” and is very scalable—two major
requirements to serve as a platform from which to build. The
successful implementation of this project is directly attrib-
utable to a stable, motivated, and well-trained user group.
With a minimum investment, this group performed a nearly
flawless transfer of the "back office" activities of both Wilen
and Glit/Microtron to St. Louis, site of our commercial prod-
ucts business graup.

While reducing corporate, selling and general and
administrative expenses by eliminating over-capacity and
redundant functions was a significant factor in implement-
ing this model, other long lasting benefits will accrue to the

company through:

¢ Lleveraging one set of functional managers across the

commercial products business.

¢ Improvement of customer relationships by streamlining,
re-engineering and standardizing the commercial prod-
ucts business order cycle process.

® Providing custamers with a central location for
problem resolution. —

¢ Standardization of recruitment and the training require-
ments of our employees.

¢ Providing a common set of customer service metrics from
which to judge performance.

¢ Provision of a system that more readily facilitates the

management of customer and product information.

The balance of Katy IT costs were strictly controlled and,
even with an upgrade in core hardware equipment and EDI
capabilities, the consumer products business was able to
reduce IT costs by 5%.

2003 IT activities will continue to be guided by the prin-
ciples that served the company so well in 2002. Major

activities will be:

® Continuing to leverage current information systems
by extending a standardized software platform to our
Canadian, United Kingdom and Winters, TX operating
facilities.

¢ Extending our commercial products business model
where practical.

® Reducing transactional costs through continued order
cycle process improvement.

s Enhancing warehouse and logistics systems and
processes.

* Launching an e-commerce strategy aimed at providing

customer self-service applications.

With judicious investment and continued excellent imple-
mentation by our user group, | look forward to further

improvement in our IT systems.



My corporate responsibilities include the financial, legal
and human resources functions. 2002 was a significant
year as each of these areas encountered important changes
and improvements.

Our CEO has outlined the improvements to our financial
condition during the last year. In order to better measure our
financial performance, we made significant improvements to
the quality and timeliness of our financial reporting, which
would not have been possible without the assistance of our
dedicated professional staff. We have implemented an exten-
sive monthly reporting package and have reduced the time
necessary to provide that information so that we can react
quickly to internal and external developments.

Our auditing function experienced an important change
in 2002. Following the demise of Arthur Andersen, our
Audit Committee selected PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
company's auditor. The transition has proceeded smoothly
and we look forward to a long relationship with our new
auditing firm.

During 2002, we also decided to outsource our internal
audit function to Ernst & Young. Given the growing impor-
tance of this function, we have allocated significant
resources to this area in 2003.

The company has begun the important process of
complying with the applicable corporate governance
changes made over the course of 2002. This critical initiative
will continue well into 2003 and beyond and is a high prior-
ity for our management team.

In February of 2003, we funded a new $110 million credit
facility, consisting of a $90 million revolving line of credit
and a $20 million term loan. The term debt replaces a $30
million term loan that originated in June 2001 and was

repaid in full by October 2002, almost four years early. This

AMIR ROSENTHAL, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,

General Counsel and Secretary

new credit facility will provide sufficient liquidity as we pur-
sue our strategic objectives.

During 2002, we continued to closely manage our most
significant legal exposures. In particular, we are cooperating
with the US Environmental Protection Agency and the local
community with respect to cur remediation efforts in
Denison, TX. We believe that we can make meaningful fur-
ther progress during 2003. We also reduced the number of
outside law firms the company works with. Our goal is to
ensure that all legal services received by the company are of
the highest quality, and are delivered in an efficient, timely
and cost-effective manner.

In the area of risk management, we have implemented
several workplace and property safety programs. We are
working very closely with our insurers and our operations to
mitigate rising insurance premiums and related costs.
During 2003, we will take all steps necessary to reduce our
claims and improve our loss history.

On the human resources front, we have implemented a
new incentive compensation plan that we believe aligns the
interests of our employees and our stockholders. In addition,
we have further standardized the company's personnel
practices and procedures. Finally, we have simplified the
administration of our benefit plans. Each of these steps
makes us a more efficient and effective organization and
there are further steps we can and will take in this regard.

Finally, we are taking steps to simplify cur corporate
structure, which we believe will position us to better serve
our customers. This project should be substantially complete
by the end of 2003.

All of the initiatives outlined above are part of a larger
effort made by the company's management team to take a
more active role in improving the corporate oversight of our
operating subsidiaries, and to centralize many functions
that had previously been left to the individual operations.
This important process will continue in 2003 and | look for-

ward to reporting our further progress in next year's report.
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Contico International

305 Rock Industrial Park Drive
Bridgeton, MO 63044
800-831-7077

Continental Manufacturing
13330 Lakefront Drive

Earth City, MO 63045
800-325-1051

Contico Europe Holdings
Cardrew Way

Redruth, Cornwall, England
44-1209-315222

Contico Manufacturing
Limited

Cardrew Way

Redruth, Cornwall, England
44-1209-315222

Disco, Inc.

1895 Brannan Road
McDaonough, GA 30253
800-548-5150

Manufacturer and distributor
of consumer storage, home
and automotive products.

Manufacturer and distributor
of janitorial and food services
equipment and supplies.

Manufacturer and distributor
of plastic toot boxes, shelving
and storage organizers.

Manufacturer and distributor
of a wide range of cleaning
equipment, storage solutions
and washroom dispensers.

Manufacturer and distributor
of filtration and cleaning
products for the food

service industry.

Markets:
Home and Automotive.
Consumer Storage.

Markets:
Sanitary Maintenance.
Food Service.

Markets:
Home. Consumer Storage.

Markets:
Sanitary Maintenance.
Food Service.

Markets:
Food Service.
Sanitary Maintenance.
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Duckback Preducts, Inc.

2644 Hegan Lane
P.0O. Box 980
Chico, CA 95927
530-343-3261

Gemtex, Ltd.

60 Belfield Road
Etobicoke, Ontario
Canada, MOW 1G1
416-245-5605

Glit/Microtron
809 Broad Street
P.0. Box 709
Wrens, GA 30833
800-431-2976

Loren Products

250 Canal Street
Lawrence, MA 07840
978-685-0911

Wilen Products, Inc.
3760 Southside
Industrial Parkway
Atlanta, GA 30354
866-624-9300

Manufacturer and distributor
of quality coatings and
restoration products for
exterior surfaces.

Manufacturer and distributor
of coated abrasives.

Manufacturer and distributor
of non-woven floor mainte-
nance and scouring pads.

Manufacturer and distributor
of abrasive products and roof
ventilation products.

Manufacturer and distributor

of mops, brooms and brushes.

Markets:
Home improvement.
Construction.

Markets:
Automotive.

Home Improvement.
Sanitary Maintenance.
Food Service.

Markets:

Sanitary Maintenance.

Food Service.
Home Improvement.

Markets:

Sanitary Maintenance.

Construction.

Markets:

Sanitary Maintenance.
Food Service.

Home improvement.

2l Broducts

- Woods

INDUSTRIES (CANADA) INC.

Woods Industries, Inc.
510 Third Avenue, S.W.
Carmel, IN 46032
317-844-7261

Woods Industries
(Canada), inc.

375 Kennedy Road
Scarborough, Ontario
Canada, M1K 2A3
416-267-4610

Distributor of consumer
electric corded products,
including extension cords,
work fights, surge protectors
and power strips.

Manufacturer and distributor
of consumer electric corded
products, including garden
lighting and timers.

Markets:

Home [mprovement.
Mass merchants.
Industrial.

Markets:

Home Improvement,
Mass merchants.
Industrial.
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Corporate information

[N

Board of Directors

CHRISTOPHER ANDERSON™®
Associate, Kohlberg & Co. LLC

WILLIAM F. ANDREWS®2@
Chairman of the Board

ROBERT M, BARATTA
Former President and Chief
Executive Officer

DANIEL B. CARROL @
Member and Manager,
Newgrange LLC

WALLACE E. CARROLL™
Chairman of the Beard, CRL, Inc.

SAMUEL P. FRIEDERY
Principal, Kohiberg & Co. LLC

C. MICHAEL JACOB)*
President and Chief Executive Officer

JAMES A. KOHLBERG
Co-Founder and Managing
Principal, Kohlberg & Co. LLC

CHRISTOPHER [ACOVARAM @&
Principal, Kohlberg & Co. LLC

Executive Officers

C. MICHAEL JACOBI
President and Chief Executive Officer

AMIR ROSENTHAL
Vice President, Chief financial Officer,
General Counse! and Secretary

ROGER G. ENGLE
Vice President and Chief
Information Officer

THOMAS BURNS
President, Commercial Products

DAVID RAHILLY
President, Consumer Products

{1} Executive Committee {2} Audit Committee

(3} Compensation Committee

Headquarters

765 Straits Turnpike
Middlebury, Connecticut 06762
Telephane: (203) 598-0397
Fax: {203) 598-0712

Investor Relations
Stocknholders and afl prospective
investors are welcome to call,
write or visit our web site
{www.katyindustries.com)

with questions or requests for
additional information,

Contact: Amir Rosenthal
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
General Caunsel and Secretary

Independent Auditars
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
800 Market Street

St. Louis, Missouri 63101

Internal Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

The Plaza in Clayton

Suite 1300

190 Carondeiet Plaza

St. Louis, Missouri 63105-3434

Principal Outside Counsel
Hunton & Williams LLP

Bank of America Plaza

Suite 4100

600 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30308-2216

Stockhoider Inquiry Service
Correspondence concerning stockholder
accounts should be directed to the
Transfer Agent and Registrar:

LaSalle Bank, N.A.

135 S. LaSalle Street
Room 1811

Chicago, litinois 60603
(800} 246-5761

Shares Listed

Comman~New York Stock Exchange
(Symbol: KT) Daily stock prices are
listed in major newspapers, generally
alphabetically under "Katylnd"

Stockholder Information

Additional copies of this annual report,
proxy statement and Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, recent and historical
financial data and other information
about Katy Industries are available with-
out charge to interested stockholders
upon request to:

Mark P. Ingebritson

Corporate Director—External Financial
Reporting and Treasurer

765 Straits Turnpike

Middlebury, Connecticut 06762

or by accessing Katy's website,
www.katyindustries.com. Click
on “investor Info." and then
“Financial Reports".

Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this annual
report that are not historicat in nature
are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees since there are inherent
difficulties in predicting future results,
and actual results could differ materially
from those expressed or implied in the
forward-looking statements. For a list
of major factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those
projected, refer to Katy Industries’ 2002
Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

(4) Nominating and Governance Committee

This Annual Report should be read in conjunction with Katy Industries’ proxy statement dated April 30, 2003 and the 2002 Form 10-K.
Copies of the proxy statement and Form 10-K may be obtained online at www.katyindustries.com.

Designed by Curran & Connars, Inc. | www.curran-connors.com




United States
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

[X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended: December 31 5 2002
CR
{ ] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Item {. BUSINESS

Katy Industries, Inc. (Katy or the Company) was organized as a Delaware corporation in 1967. We carry on our
business through two principal operating groups: Maintenance Products and Electrical/Electronics. We also have a minority
interest in a seafood harvesting company. Each majority-owned company operates within a broad framework of policies and
corporate goals. Katy’s corporate management is responsible for overall plarning, financial management, acquisitions,
dispositions, and other related administrative and corporate matters.

Recapitalization

On June 28, 2001, we completed a recapitalization of the Company. Katy reached a definitive agreement on Jjune 2,
2001 with KKTY Holding Company, LLC. (KKTY), an affiliate of Kohlberg Investors IV, L.P. (Kohlberg), regarding the
recapitalization. On June 28, 2001, our stockholders approved proposals to effectuate the recapitalization at their annual
meeting, including classification of the board of directors into two classes with staggered terms. Under the terms of the
recapitalization, directors designated by KKTY represent 2 majority of our Board of Directors. Pursuant to the shareholder vote
at the annual meeting, four of the elected directors are considered Class I directors, and were elected for an initial term of one
year. These directors include C. Michael Jacobi, President and CEQ, and three directors who were not designated by KKTY.
The Class [ directors elected at the 2002 stockholders’ meeting, and their successors, will serve two year terms. Five of the
elected directors are considered Class Il directors, and will serve terms of two years. All of the Class II directors are designees
of KKTY.

Under the terms of the recapitalization, KKTY purchased 700,000 shares of newly issued preferred stock, $100 par value
per share (Convertible Preferred Stock), which is convertible into 11,666,666 commeon shares, for an aggregate purchase price
of $70.0 million. More information regarding the Convertible Preferred Stock can be found in Note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Katy included in Part I1, Item 8. The recapitalization allowed us to retire obligations we had under our
former revelving credit agreement which was agented by Bank of America (Bank of America Credit Agreement). In
connection with the recapitalization, we entered into a new credit agreement, agented by Bankers Trust Company, a subsidiary
of Deutsche Bank (Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement) to finance the future operations of Katy. More information regarding the
Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement can be found in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part I,
ftem 8, and in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, included in Part If, Item 7. Our debt obligations under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement were
refinanced on February 3, 2003, under a new credit agreement agented by Fleet Capital (Fleet Credit Agreement).

Also in connection with the recapitalization, we entered into an agreement with the holder of the preferred interest in our
Contico International, L.L.C. (Contico) subsidiary to redeem early approximately half of such interest at 2 discount, plus
accrued distributions thereon, which had a stated value prior to the recapitalization of $32.9 miilion. See Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part II, item 8. We utilized approximately $10.2 million of the proceeds
from the issuance of the Convertible Preferred Stock for this purpose. The difference between the amount paid on redemption
and the stated value of preferred interest redeemed ($6.6 million, plus the tax effect of $0.1 million) was recognized as an
increase to Additional Paid-in Capital on the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. This gain is also reflected in
Consolidated Statement of Operations as a reduction in net loss attributable to common shareholders. Following is a summary
of the sources and uses of funds from, and in connection with, the recapitalization:

(Thousands of Dollars)

Sources:

Sale of Convertible Preferred Stock $ 70,000

Borrowings under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement 93,211
3 163,211

Uses:

Paydown of principal obligations under the Bank of America Credit Agreement  § 144,300

Payment of accrued interest under the Bank of America Credit Agreement 624

Purchase of one-half of preferred interest of Contico at a discount 9,900

Payment of accrued distributions on one-half of preferred interest of Contico 322

Certain costs associated with the recapitalization 8,065
$ 163,211




In connection with the Fleet Credit Agreement completed in February 2003, the remainder of the preferred interest in
Contico (carrying value of $16.4 million at December 31, 2002) was redeemed early at a similar 40% discount. More
information regarding this redemption can be found in Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in
Part II, Item 8.

Operations

Selected operating data for each operating group can be found in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included in Part If, Item 7. Information regarding foreign and domestic operations and
export sales can be found in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part II, Item 8. Set forth
below is information about our operating groups and investments and about our business in general.

We are restructuring many of our operations in order to maintain a low cost structure, which is essential for us to be
competitive in the markets we serve. These restructuring efforts include consolidation of facilities, headcount reductions, and
evaluation of sourcing strategies to determine the lowest cost method for obtaining finished product. Costs associated with
these efforts include expenses for recording liabilities for non-cancelable leases at facilities that are abandoned, severance and
other employee termination costs, costs to move inventory and equipment, consultant costs for sourcing strategy evaluation,
and other exit costs that may be incurred not only with consolidation of facilities, but potentially the complete shut down of
certain manufacturing operations. We have incurred significant costs in this respect during 2002 ($19.2 million) and 2001
($13.4 million), and to a lesser extent in 2000 ($2.7 millicn). It should be noted that $8.3 million of the costs incurred during
2001 related mainly to severance and other employee termination costs and other non-recurring costs associated with the
closure of the former corporate office and a significant changeover in management. We expect to incur additional costs in 2003
and 2004, although the remaining costs in total are expected to be significantly lower than those recognized in 2002 and 2001.

Maintenance Products Group

The Maintenance Products group’s principal business is the manufacturing, distribution and sale of sanitary
maintenance supplies, professional cleaning products, consumer products, abrasives and stains. Total revenues during 2002
were $314.6 million, and operating loss was ($19.9) million. The operating loss included $20.8 million of impairments of long-
lived assets, and $13.6 million of severance, restructuring and related charges. The group accounted for 68% of the Company’s
sales from continuing operations in 2002. Duckback Products, Inc. is the only business in this group that is subject to
significant seasonal sales trends. The maintenance Products group sells product to both commercial and consumer end-users.
The business units in this group are:

Contico International, L.L.C. {Contico} Contico is headquartered in St. Louis, Missouri. Contico’s U.S. operations
consist of three primary business units. The Janitorial/Sanitation (Jan San) business is a plastics manufacturer and a distributor
of products for the commercial sanitary maintenance and food service markets. Examples of Contico Jan San products are trash
receptacles, bucket/wringer combo units for mops, wet floor signs, janitorial carts, food storage bins, and other products
designed for commercial cleaning and food service. The Consumer/Retail (Consumer) business is a plastics and metals
manufacturer of consumer and automotive storage products, sold primarily through major home improvement and mass market
retail outlets. Examples of Contico Consumer products are metal and plastic storage boxes designed for pickup trucks, garage
shelving, drawer storage units, and clear plastic and heavy duty storage bins. The Container business is a plastics manufacturer
of products for commercial and industrial use, including storage drums and pails. Contico also has operations in the United
Kingdom. Contico Manufacturing, Ltd. is a distributor of primarily plastic products for the commercial and sanitary
maintenance markets in the UK. Contico Europe Holdings is a plastics manufacturer of consumer storage products, sold
primarily to major retail outlets in the UK. Consumer products are sold under the Contico® brand name and jan San products
are sold under the Continental® and Contico® brand names. Contico also has operations in southern California and Winters,
Texas.

GlivDisco, Inc. (Disco) Disco, headquartered in McDonough, Georgia, is 2 manufacturer and distributor of filtration,
cleaning and specialty products sold to the restaurant/food service industry. Examples of Disco products include fryer filters,
grill bricks, and other food service items.

Duckback Products, Inc. (Duckback) Duckback, headquartered in Chico, California, is a manufacturer of high quality
exterior transparent stains, coatings and water repellents. These products are sold primarily under the trade names Superdeck®,
Mason’s Select® and Supershade®. Superdeck products are primarily protective deck stains for use on wood, while Mason’s
Select products are protective stains for use on concrete patios, driveways, and other similar surfaces. Duckback’s revenues
and operating income are subject to seasonal trends, with higher sales late in the first quarter and early in the second quarter, in
anticipation of warm weather outdoor work, and lower sales levels in the fourth quarter.




Glit/Microtron Abrasives (Glit/Microtron) Glit/Microtron is headquartered in Wrens, Georgia, and has an additional
manufacturing facility in Pineville, North Carclina. Glit/Microtron manufactures non-woven floor maintenance pads, abrasive
hand pads, scouring pads and specialty abrasive products for cleaning and finishing. Glit/Microtron sells certain abrasive
products under the Brillo brand name {under license) through commercial channels. Products are sold primarily through
commercial sanitary mainienance and food service markets, with some.products sold through consumer/retail outlets.

Gemtex, Ltd. (Gemtex) Gemtex, headquartered in Etobicoke, Ontario, Canada, is a manufacturer and distributor of
resin fiber disks and other coated abrasives for the original equipment manufacturers (CEM), automotive, industrial, and home
improvement markets.

Loren Products (Loren) Loren, headquartered in Lawrence, Massachusetts, is a manufacturer and distributor of
abrasive products and roof ventilation products for the sanitary maintenance and censtruction industries.

Wilen Products, Inc. (Wilen) Wilen, headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia, is a2 manufacturer and distributor of
professional cleaning products, inciuding mops, brooms, brushes, and plastic cleaning accessories. Wilen’s preducts are sold
primarily through commercial sanitary maintenance and food service markets, with some products sold through consumer/retail
outlets.

Electrical/Electronics Group

The Electrical/Electronics group’s principal business is the manufacturing, distribution, and sale of consumer electric
corded products, electrical and electronic accessories, and electronic components. Revenues in 2002 were $144.2 million and
operating income was $2.9 million. Operating income in 2002 included $0.4 million of impairments of long-lived assets, and
$5.2 million of severance, restructuring and related charges. The group accounted for 32% of the Company’s consolidated
sales in 2002. Both Woods Industries, Inc. and Woods Industries {Canada), Inc. are subject to seasonal sales trends, with
higher sales in the third and early fourth quarters in connection with the holiday shopping season. The Electrical/Electronics
group sells product to consumer end-users. On March 6, 2003, we announced that we are exploring the sale of the Woeds and
Woods Canada businesses. However, there can be no assurance that a sale of the Woods and Woods Canada businesses can be
completed. The business units in this group are:

Woods Industries, Inc. (Woods) Woods, headquartered in Carmel, Indiana, distributes consumer electric corded
products, supplies and electrical/electronics accessories. Examples of Woods products are outdoor and indoor extension cords,
cord reels, surge protectors, power strips, and work lights. Products are sold under brand names including Woods®, Yellow
Jacket®, Tradesman®, and AC/Delco®. These products are sold primarily through major home improvement and mass market
retail outlets. Woods’ products are sourced primarily from Asia.

Weods Industries (Canada), Inc. (Woeds Canada) Woods Canada, headquartered in Toronto, Ontario, Canada,
manufactures and distributes consumer electric corded products, supplies and electrical/electronics accessories. In addition to
products listed above for Woods, Woods Canada primary product offerings include garden lighting and timers. Products are
sold under brand names including Nema® and Woods®. These products are sold primarily through major home improvement
and mass market retail outlets in Canada. Certain of Woods Canada’s products are manufactured in Canada, while the
remainder is sourced from Asia.

Cther Operations

The businesses in this group include a 43% equity investment in a shrimp harvesting and farming operation, and a
waste-to-energy facility. :

Sahlman Holding Company, Inc. (Sahlman) Sahlman harvests shrimp off the coast of South and Central America and
owns shrimp farming operations in Nicaragua. Sahlman has a number of competitors, some of which are larger and have
greater financial resources. Katy’s interest in this company is an equity investment.

Savannah Energy Systems Company (SESCQO). SESCO operated a waste-to-energy facility in Savannah, Georgia.
On March 15, 2002, we signed agreements with a third party that turned over operation of the facility tc a partnership managed

by an affiliate of Montenay Power Corporation. See Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part II,
Item 8.




Discontinued Operations

We have identified certain operations that we consider non-core to the future operations of the Company. Hamilton
Precision Metals L.P. (Hamilton), a reroller of precision metal foils and strips located in Lancaster, Pennsylvania, was sold in
October 2002 for gross proceeds of $13.9 million. Hamilton was formerly part of the Electrical/Electronics group. Prior to its
sale, Hamilton generated $10.4 million of net sales and $1.6 million of operating income. GC/Waldom Electronics, Inc.
(GC/Waldom), described below, was still owned by Katy at December 31, 2002, but was considered held for sale, and was
subsequently sold on April 2, 2003 for gross proceeds of $8.3 million. GC/Waldom is headquartered in Rockford, Iilinois.
During 2002, GC/Waldom generated $22.5 million in net sales, and incurred a net operating loss of (36.3) million. We do not
expect to report a significant gain or loss on the sale of GC/Waldom. GC/Waldom is a leading value-added distributor of high
quality, brand name electrical and electronic parts, components and accessories. In addition, the company produces a full line of
home entertainment component parts and service technician products. GC/Waldom distributes primarily to the electronic,
automotive and communication industries. A significant portion of GC/Waldom’s products is sourced from Asia. GC/Waldom
was formerly a part of the Electrical/Electronics group, but has been classified in discontinued operations as the business was
held for sale at December 31, 2002, and has met the other criteria established by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

Customers
We have several large customers in the mass merchant/discount/home improvement retail markets. One customer

accounted for 17% of consolidated net sales. Sales to this particular customer are made by Contico, Woods and Glit/Microtron.
A significant loss of business at this retail outlet could have an adverse impact on our results.

Backlog

Maintenance Products:

Cur aggregate backlog position for the Maintenance Products group was $8.1 million and $11.9 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The orders placed in 2002 are firm and are expected to be shipped during 2003.

Electrical/Electronics:

Our aggregate backlog position for the Electrical/Electronics group was $3.6 million and $3.0 million as of December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The orders placed in 2002 are firm and are expected to be shipped during 2003.

Markets and Competition

Maintenance Products:

We market a variety of professional cleaning products to the commercial janitorial/sanitation markets. Sales and
marketing of these products is handled through a combination of direct sales personnel, manufacturers’ sales representatives,
and wholesale distributors. Cleaning products sold by the Company include 1) plastic items, such as trash receptacies, buckets,
carts, and signs, 2) abrasive products, including floor cleaning and polishing pads, and hand scouring pads, 3) mops, brooms,
and brushes, and 4) items for the food service industry, including filters, grill cleaning supplies, and food storage containers.

The commercial distribution channels for these products are highly fragmented, resulting in a large number of small
customers, mainly distributors of janitorial cleaning products. The markets for our maintenance products are highly
competitive. Competition is based primarily on price and the ability to provide superior customer service in the form of
complete on-time product delivery. Other competitive factors include brand recognition and product design, quality and
performance. We compete for market share with a number of different competitors, depending upon the specific product. In
large part, our competition is unique'in each ares of 1) plastics, 2) abrasives, and 3) mops, brooms and brushes. We believe
that we have established long standing relationships with our major customers based on quality products and service, while
continuing to sirive to be a low cost provider in this industry. Qur ability to remain a low cost provider in the industry is highly
dependent on the price of our raw materials, primarily resin. Resin prices are influenced to a certain degree by market prices
for natural gas and crude oil, as well as supply and demand factors within the plastics manufacturing industry. Being a low cost
producer is also dependent upon our ability to reduce and subsequently control our cost structure, which is further dependent
upon our ongoing restructuring efforts.

We market branded consumer in-home and automotive storage, protective sealant stains, and to a lesser extent,
abrasive products and mops and brooms, to consumer/retail outlets in the U.S. The consumer distribution channels for these
products, especially the in-home and automotive storage, are highly concentrated, with several large “mass-market” retailers
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representing a very significant portion of the customer base. However, the Company continues to develop new markets for its
producis, including sporting goods. Distribution channels for protective sealant stains are primarily through paint distribution
channels, with products ultimately being sold in specialty/high-end paint stores and hardware stores. Sales and marketing of
these products is generally handled by direct sales personnel. Our ability to remain competitive in these consumer markets is
dependent upon our position as a low cost producer, and also upen our development of new and innovative products. Being 2
low cost producer is also dependent upon our ability to reduce and subsequently control our cost structure, which is further
dependent upon our ongoing restructuring efforts. Our restructuring efforts include consolidation of facilities and headcount
reductions.

Less significant amounts (based on net sales dollars) are sold to different markets, such as roofing ventilation products
to the construction trade, and resin fiber disks and other abrasive disks to the OEM trade.

Electrical/Electronics:

We market branded electrical and electronics products primarily in North America through a combination of direct
sales personnel and manufacturers’ sales representatives. Qur primary customer base consists of major national retail chains
that service the home improvement, hardware, mass merchant, discount and automotive markets, and smaller regional concerns
serving a similar customer base.

Electrical and electronic products sold by the Company are generally used by consumers and include such items as
extension cords, work lights, surge suppressors, power taps and strips, and outdoor lights and timers. We have entered inio
license agreements pursuant to which we market certain of our products using certain other companies’ proprietary brand
names. Overall demand for our products is highly correlated with consumer demand, the performance of the general economy
and, to a lesser extent, home construction and resale activity.

The markets for our electrical and electronic products are highly competitive. Competition is based primarily on price
and the ability to provide superior customer service in the form of complete on-time product delivery. Other competitive factors
include brand recognition, product design, quality and performance. Foreign competitors, especially from Asie, provide an
increasing level of competition. Our ability to remain competitive in these markets is dependent upon continued efforts to
remain a low-cost provider of these products.

Raw Materials

Our operations have not experienced significant difficulties in obtaining raw materials, fuels, parts or supplies for their
activities during the most recent fiscal year, but no prediction can be made as to possible future supply problems or production
disruptions resulting from possible shortages. Our Electrical/Electronics businesses are highly dependent upon products
sourced from Asia, and therefore remain vulnerable to potential disruptions in that supply chain. We are also subject to
uncertainties involving labor relations issues at entities involved in our supply chain, both at suppliers and in the transportation
and shipping area. QOur Contico subsidiary (and some others to a lesser extent) uses polyethylene, polypropylene and other
thermoplastic resins as raw materials in a substantial portion of its plastic products. Prices of plastic resins, such as
polyethylene and polypropylene, have increased during the early months of 2003. Management has observed that the prices of
plastic resins are driven to an extent by prices for crude oil and natural gas, in addition to other factors specific to the supply
and demand of the resins themselves. We cannot predict the longevity of the current price increase, or if resin prices may
increase further or be reduced through the rest of 2003. We are also exposed to price changes for copper (used by Woods and
Woods Canada), corrugated packaging material and other raw materials. Copper prices have also increased in recent months.
We have not employed an active hedging program related to our commedity price risk, but are employing other strategies for
mitigating the risk. In a climate of rising raw material costs, we experience difficuity in raising prices to shift these higher costs
to our customers. Our future earnings may be negatively impacted to the extent increased costs for raw materials cannot be
recovered or offset.

Employvees

As of December 31, 2002, we employed 2,261 people. Approximately 585 of these employees were members of
various unions. Our labor relations are generally satisfactory and there have been no strikes in recent years. Our operations can
be impacted by labor relations issues involving other entities in our supply chain.




Régl_llatogg and Environmental Matters

We do not anticipate that federal, state or local environmental laws or regulations will have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated operations or financial position. We anticipate making additional expenditures for environmental matters
during 2003, in accordance with terms agreed upon with the United States Environmental Protection Agency and various state
environmental agencies. See Environmental and Other Contingencies in Part I, Item 7.

Licenses. Patents and Trademarks

The success of our products historically has not depended largely on patent, trademark and license protection, but
rather on the quality of our products, proprietary technology, contract performance, customer service and the technical
competence and innovative ability of our personnel to develop and introduce salable products, However, we do rely to a
certain extent on patent protection, trade marks and licensing arrangements in the marketing of certain products. Examples of
key licensed and protected trade marks include Yellow Jacket®, Woods®, Tradesman®, AC/Delco™ (Woods); Noma®
(Woods Canada); Contico® and Continental® (Contico); Glit®, Microtron®, Brillo™, and Kleenfast® (Glit/Microtron);
Wilen®; Trim-Kut® (Gemtex); and Superdeck®, and Mason’s Select® (Duckback). Divisions most reliant upon patented
products and technology are Contico, Woods, and Gemtex. Further, we are renewing our emphasis on new product
development, which will increase our reliance on patent and trademark protection across all business units.

Available Information

We maintain a website at http://www katvindustries.com. We make available, free of charge through our website, our
annual reperts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-X, and, if applicable, all amendments
to these reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed or fumished to the SEC. The
information on our website is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this report or incorporated into any other filings we
make with the SEC.




Item 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2002, our total building floor area owned or leased was 4,570,000 square feet, of which 1,038,000
square feet were owned and 3,532,000 square feet were leased. The following table shows by industry segment a summary of
the size (in square feet) and character of the various facilities included in the above iotals together with the location of the
principal facilities.

Industry Segment Owned Leased Total
(In thousands of square feet) ‘

Maintenance Products - primarily
plant and office facilities with principal

~ facilities located in Chico, Norwalk and
Santa Fe Springs, California; Wrens, Thomson,
McDonough and Atlanta, Georgia; Bridgeton,
St. Louis, Earth City and
Hazelwood, Missouri;
Pineville, North Carolina; Buffalo, New York;
Lawrence, Massachusetts; Winters, Texas;
Etobicoke and Mississauga, Ontario, Canada; and
Redruth, Cornwall, England 561 2,995 3,556

Electrical/Electronics - primarily plant and
office facilities with principal facilities
located in Carmel and Indianapolis, Indiana,
Toronto, Ontario, Canada,
and Taipei, Taiwan 477 532 1,009

Corporate - office facility in Middlebury, Connecticut 5 5

During 2002, we consolidated a majority of our Warson Road facility in St. Louis, Missouri into our Bridgeton,
Missouri building. We have abandoned 40% of the Earth City, Missouri facility at December 31, 2002, and plan to abandon
the remaining 60% during 2003, consolidating these operations into the Bridgeton, Missouri facility. At December 31, 2002,
we also owned a building occupied by GC/Waldom Electrenics, Inc. (GC/Waldom). The building contains 176,000 square
feet. GC/Waldom is classified as a discontinued operation at December 31, 2002. We believe that our current facilities meet
our needs in our existing markets for the foreseeable future.




Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except as set forth below, no cases or legal proceedings are pending against Katy, other than ordinary routine
litigation incidental to Katy and our businesses and other non-material cases and proceedings.

1. Environmental Claims - Administrative Order on Consent — W.J. Smith Wood Preserving Compan J. Smith) and
Katy Industries, Inc., U.S. EPA Docket No. RCRA-VI]-7003-93-02 and Texas Water Commission Administrative Enforcement
Action.

The W. J. Smith case originated in the 1980s when the United States and the State of Texas, through the Texas Water
Commission, initiated environmental enforcement actions against W.J. Smith alleging that certain conditions on the W.J. Smith
property (the Property) violated environmental laws. Following these enforcement actions, W.J. Smith engaged in a series of
cleanup activities on the Property and implemented a groundwater monitoring program.

In 1993, the Texas Water Commission referred the matter to the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA), which initiated a proceeding under Section 7003 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) against W.J.
Smith and Katy. The proceeding sought certain actions at the site and certain off-site areas, as well as development and
implementation of additicnal cleanup activities to mitigate off-site releases. In December 1995, W.J. Smith, Katy and the EPA
agreed to resolve the proceeding through an Administrative Order on Consent under Section 7003 of RCRA. W.J. Smith and
Katy completed cleanup activities required by the Order. W.J. Smith is currently implementing an RCRA facility investigation
of the site and an investigation of certain off-site areas pursuant to the request of the EPA.

While ultimate liability with respect to this matter is not easily determinable, we have recorded and accrued amounts
that we deem reasonable and probable for prospective costs with respect to this matter and we believe that any additional costs
with respect to this matter in excess of the accrual will not be material.

In addition to the claim specifically identified above, a purported class action lawsuit was filed by twenty individuals
in federal court in the Marshall Division of the Eastern District of Texas, on behalf of “landowners and persons who reside
and/or work in” an identified geographical area surrounding the W.J. Smith facility in Denison, Texas. The lawsuit purported to
allege claims under state [aw for negligence, trespass, nuisance and assauit and battery. It sought damages for personal injury
and property damage, as well as punitive damages. The named defendants were Union Pacific Corporation, Union Pacific
Railroad Company, Katy Industries and W.J. Smith. On June 10, 2002, Katy and W.J. Smith filed 2 motion to dismiss the case
for lack of federal jurisdiction, or in the alternative, to transfer the case to the Sherman Division of the Eastern District of Texas.
In response, plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to amend the complaint to add a federal claim under RCRA. On July 30, 2002,
the court dismissed plaintiffs’ lawsuit in its entirety.

On July 31, 2002, plaintiffs filed a new lawsuit against the same defendants, again in the Marshall Division of the
Eastern District of Texas, alleging class claims under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Liability and Compensation
Act (CERCLA)) and state law negligence, trespass, nuisance, assault and battery and unjust enrichment theories. Katy and W.J.
Smith have filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit or, in the altemative, to transfer venue to the Sherman Division. In response,
plaintiffs filed a motion for leave to amend the complaint. The court granted plaintiffs’ motion to amend and denied Katy and
W. J. Smith’s motion to dismiss or transfer venue. Plaintitf’s counsel has informed legal counsel for the Company that he is no
longer seeking class-wide relief for personal injury claims. Plaintiff’s counsel has therefore prepared and circulated a draft
amended complaint clarifying that this lawsuit is not a personal injury class action. A determination of ultimate liability with
respect to this matter is not estimable at this time.

General Environmental Claims

Katy and certain of our current and former direct and indirect corporate predecessors, subsidiaries and divisions have
been identified by EPA, state environmental agencies and private parties as potentially responsible parties at a number of waste
disposal sites under CERCLA or equivalent state laws, and, as such, may be liable for the costs of cleanup and other remedial
activities at these sites. The costs involved in these matters are, by nature, difficult to estimate and subject to substantial change
as litigation or negotiations with the United States, states and other parties proceed. While ultimate liability with respect to
these matters is not easily determinable, we have recorded and accrued amounts that we deem reasonable and probable for
prospective costs and we believe that any costs with respect to such matters in excess of the accruals will not be material.




2. Banco del Atlantico, S.A. v. Woods Industries, Inc., et al., Civil Action No. L-96-139 (U.S. District Court, Southern
District of Texas).

In December 1996, Banco del Atlantico, a bank located in Mexico, filed a lawsuit against Woods, a subsidiary of
Katy, and against certain past and then-present officers and directors and former owners of Woods, alleging that the defendants
participated in 2 violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) Act involving ailegedly fraudulently
obtained loans from Mexican banks, including the plaintiff, and “money laundering” of the proceeds of the illegal enterprise.
All of the foregoing is alleged to have occuired prior to Katy’s purchase of Woods. The plaintiff also alieged that it made loans
to an entity controlled by certain past officers and directors of Woods based upon fraudulent representations. The plaintiff
seeks to hold Woods liable for its alleged damages directly, and under principles of respondeat superior and successor liability.
The plaintiff is claiming damages in excess of $24.0 million and is requesting treble damages under RICO. Because certain
threshold procedural and jurisdictional issues have not yet been fully adjudicated in this litigation, it is not possible at this time
for the Company to reasonably determine an outcome or accurately estimate the range of potential exposure. Katy may have
recourse against the former owner of Woods and others for, among other things, viclations of covenants, representations and
warranties under the purchase agreement through which Katy acquired Woods, and under state, federal and commeon law. In
addition, the purchase price under the purchase agreement may be subject to adjustment as a result of the claims made by
Banco del Atlantico or other issues related to the litigation. The extent or limit of any such adjustment cannot be predicted at
this time. An adverse judgment in this matter could have a material impact on Katy’s liquidity and financial position if the
Company were not able to exercise recourse against the former owner of Woods.

3. General

Katy also has a number of product liability and workers’ compensation claims pending against it and its subsidiaries.
Many of these claims are proceeding through the litigation process and the final outcome will not be known until a settiement is
reached with the claimant or the case is adjudicated. The Company estimates that it can take up to 10 years from the date of the
injury to reach a final outcome on certain claims. With respect to the product liability and workers’ compensation claims, Katy
has provided for its share of expecied losses beyond the applicable insurance coverage, including those incurred bui not
reported to the Company or its insurance providers, which are developed using actuarial technigues. Such accruals are
developed using currently available claim information, and represent management’s best estimates. The ultimate cost of any
individual claim can vary based upon, among other factors, the nature of the injury, the duration of the disability period, the
length of the claim period, the jurisdiction of the claim and the nature of the final outcome.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of 2002.
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PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Cur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). The following‘table sets forth high and low
sales prices for the common stock in composite transactions as reported on the NYSE composite tape for the prior two years
and cash dividends declared during the respective periods.

Dividends
Period High Low Declared
2002
First Quarter $6.75 $3.40 $.000
Second Quarter 6.28 4.85 .000
Third Quarter 4.99 2.90 000
Fourth Quarter 3.70 2.50 .000
2001
First Quarter $8.00 $5.60 $.000
Second Quarter 7.35 405 .000
Third Quarter 4.80 2.95 000
Fourth Quarter 3.55 3.00 .000

Dividends are paid at the discretion of the Board of Directors. On March 30, 2001, our Board of Directors decided to
suspend quartierly dividends in order to preserve cash for operations. Additionally, under the restrictions related to our Fleet
Credit Agreement, the payment of dividends has been suspended through the term of that agreement.

As of April 1, 2003, there were approximately 596 holders of record of our common stock, in addition to
approximately 1,353 holders in street name, and there were 8,362,177 shares of common stock outstanding.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

On June 28, 2001, we sold 700,000 shares of preferred stock, $100 par value per share, to KKTY Holding
Company, L.L.C. (KKTY) for a total purchase price of $70,000,000. These shares were sold to KKTY based on exemption
from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 since the stock was not sold in a public offering. The
preferred stock is convertible into 11,666,666 shares of our common stock at the option of KKTY at any time after the earlier
of 1) June 28, 2006, 2) board approval of a merger, consclidation or other business combination involving a change in control
of Katy, or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets or liquidation of Katy, or 3) a contested election for directors of the
Company nominated by KKTY. The preferred shares 1) are non-voting (with limited exceptions), 2) are non-redeemable,
except in whole, but not in part, at the Company’s option (as approved by the Class I directors) at any time after June 30, 2021,
3) are entitled to receive cumulative payment in kind (PIK) dividends through December 31, 2004, at a rate of 15% percent, 4)
have no preemptive rights with respect to any other securities or instruments issued by the Company, and 5) have registration
rights with respect to any common shares issued upon conversion.

As discussed above, the preferred shares are entitled to a 15% PIK dividend (that is, dividends in the form of
additional shares of preferred stock), compounded annually, which started accruing on August 1, 2001, and are payable on the
first day in August in each of 2002, 2003, 2004, and on December 31, 2004. No dividends will accrue or be payable after
December 31, 2004. As a result, KKTY received an additional 105,000 shares of convertible preferred stock on August 1,
2002. If KKTY continues to hold the preferred stock through December 31, 2004, it will receive, including the 105,000 shares
already received, a total of 431,555 shares of preferred stock through PIK dividends, which would be convertible into an
additional 7,192,598 shares of common stock.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,
(Thousands of Dollars, except per share data and ratios)
Net sales $ 459,990 $ 460,176  § 523,639 $ 526,809 $ 295,245
(Loss) income from continuing operations [a] $ (51,391) $(62,867) § (7,781) § 10,845 $ 9,933
Discontinued operations [b) (2,844) 787 2,323 (390) 3,149
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt [b] [e] - (1,182) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle [b] [f] (2,514) - - - -
WNet (loss) income $ (56,749) § (63262) $§ (5458 § 10455 $ 13,082
(Loss) earnings per share — Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $ @747 $ (@23 § (093) § 1.29 3 1.20
‘Discontinued operations 0.34) 0.09 0.28 (0.04) 0.38
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (0.14) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30) - -
(Loss) earnings per common share $§ (@81l) § (728 8§ (065 $ 1.25 $ 1.58
(Loss) earnings per share — Diluted:
{Loss) income from continuing operations $ (747 $ (723) $ (093 8 1.25 $ 1.18
Discontinued operations : (0.34) 0.09 0.28 (0.04) 0.37
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (0.14) - - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30) - -
(Loss) earnings per common share $ @®iH % 7.28 $ 0.65 $ 1.21 3 1.55
Total assets $ 275,977 $ 347,955 $ 446,723 $ 493,104 $ 294,131
Total liabilities . 157,405 173,691 263,490 299,893 144,815
Preferred interest in subsidiary 16,400 16,400 32,900 32,900 -
Stockholders’ equity 102,172 157,864 150,333 160,311 149316
Long-term debt, excluding current portion - 12,474 771 150,835 39,508
Current portion of long-term debt 700 14,619 133,067 67 72
Revolving credit agreement, classified current 44,751 57,000 - - -
Depreciation and amortization [c]) 19,403 20,728 21,608 18,283 5,195
Capital expenditures 10,118 12,566 14,196 21,066 11,314
Warking capital [d] 35,206 65,733 97,258 112,463 87,775
Free cash flow {g) 21,370 5,086 7,485 14,306 8,727
Ratio of debt to capitalization 27.7% 32.5% 42.2% 43.8% 21.1%
Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic 8,370,815 8,393,210 8,403,701 8,366,178 8,289,915
Weighted average common shares outstanding -Diluted 8,370,815 8,393,210 8,403,701 10,015,238 8,443,591
Number of employees 2,261 2,922 3,509 3,834 2,472
Cash dividends declared per common share $0.00 $0.00 $0.30 $0.30 $0.30

[a] Includes distributions on preferred securities in 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
[b] Presented net of tax.
[c] From continuing operations only.
[d] Defined as current assets minus current liabilities, exclusive of 1) current balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities, and
2) current classifications of debt.
[¢] This amount represents the write-off of previously capitalized debt issuance costs related to the credit agreement in effect at the
time of the Recapitalization, which occurred on June 28, 2001,
[f] This amount is a transitional impairment of goodwill recorded with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
[g] Free cash flow is defined as cash flow from operations less capital expenditures and cash dividends paid. Below is a table
detailing fiee cash flow:

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Cash flow from operations $31,488 $£18,281 $24,201 $37,917 $22,533
Capital expenditures (10,118) (12,566)  (14,196) (21,066) (11,314)
Cash dividends paid - (629) (2.520) (2,508) (2.492)
Free cash flow $21,370 3.5.086 $7.485 $14.343 £8727
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAI, CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For purposes of this discussion and analysis section, reference is made to the table below and the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 8. We have two principal operating groups: Maintenance Products
and Electrical/Electronics. The segment labeled as other consists of a minority equity investment in a seafood harvesting and
farming company, as well as an operation exited by Katy in May 2002 which operated a waste-to-energy facility. Two
businesses formerly included in the Electrical/Electronics group, GC/Waldom and Hamilton, have been classified as
Discontinued Operations. GC/Waldom was held for sale at December 31, 2002 and was sold on April 2, 2003, and Hamilton
was sold in October 2002. Gross proceeds on the sale of GC/Waldom were $8.3 million. We do not expect to record a
significant gain or loss in 2003 related to the sale of GC/Waldom.

Key elements in achieving profitability in the Maintenance Products group include 1) maintaining a low cost structure,
both from a production and administrative standpoint, and 2) providing outstanding customer service. Most of our preducts in
the Maintenance Products group do not rely upon strong brand equity (the exception being Duckback’s products), so achieving
and maintaining a position as a low cost producer is a necessity, given that our comparative price point on many products is
below those of our competitors. New product development is especially important in the consumer/retail markets for
Maintenance Products, as new products or beneficial modifications of existing products increase demand from our customers,
provide novelty to the consumer, and offer an opportunity for favorable pricing from customers in the national mass market
retail area. Retention of customers, or more specifically, product lines with those customers, is also very important in the mass
market retail area, given the vast size of these national accounts. Prices for raw materials, especially plastic resins, have a very
significant impact on Contico, the largest division within the Maintenance Products group.

Key elements in achieving profitability in the Electrical/Electronics group are in many ways similar to those
mentioned for our Maintenance Products group. Achieving and maintaining a low cost structure is critical given the significant
level of foreign competition, primarily from Asia and Latin America. For this reason, in December 2002, Woods ceased all
U.S. manufacturing and initiated a fully outsourced strategy for its consumer electrical corded products. Customer service,
specifically the ability to fill orders at a rate designated by our customers, is very important to customer retention, given
seasonal sales pressures in the consumer electrical area. Retention of customers is critical in the Electrical/Electronics group,
given the size of national accounts.

The table below and the narrative that follows summarize the key factors in the year-to-year changes in operating
results.
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2002 2001

(Thousands of dollars)

$ 314,571 $ 324,642 $ 362,922
Operating income (foss) (19,915) (39,699) 10,298
Operating margin (deficit) -6% -12%
Impairments of long-lived assets 20,812 36,087
Severance, restructuring and related charges 13,629 3,489 1,177
Depreciation and amortization 17,769 19,926 20,238
Capital expenditures 9,306 10,060 11,737
Total assets 197,865 231,179 299,292
Net external sales $ 1447242 $ 130,949 $ 157,027
Operating income (loss) 2,874 (166) 4,511
Pretax margin (deficit) 2% 0% 3%
Impairments of long-lived assets 392 1,565 -
Severance, restructuring and related charges 5,239 1,552 385
Depreciation and amortization 1,484 220 810
Capital expenditures 601 301 723
Total assets 48,228 51,591 75,062

Total Company [a]

Net external sales [b] $ 459,990 $ 460,176 $ 523,639
Operating income (loss) [b] (35,028) (70,886) 4,662
Operating margin (deficit) [b] -8% -15% 1%
Severance, restructuring and related charges [b] 19,155 13,380 2,651
Impairments of long-lived assets [b] 21,204 47,469 -
Depreciation and amortization [b] 19,403 20,728 21,608
Capital expenditures [b] 10,065 11,064 13,215
Total assets [¢] 275977 347,955 446,723

[a]

Included in “Total Company” are certain amounts in addition to those shown for the Maintenance Products and
Electrical/Electronics segments, including amounts associated with 1) unallocated corporate expenses, 2) our equity investment
in a shrimp harvesting and farming operation, and 3) our waste-to-energy facility (SESCQ). See Note 18 to Consolidated
Financial Statements for detailed reconciliations of segment information to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
[b] Excludes discontinued operations
[c] Includes discontinued operations

2002 Compared to 2001

Maintenance Products Group

The Maintenance Products group had a mixed year in 2002, Operating income, excluding severance, restructuring, and
impairment charges, was up over 2001, as the various cost reduction programs put into place over the last two years have begun
to impact results. While the improvement in profitability was a positive step, significant improvement over 2001 was expected
since 2001 was an especially weak year in the Maintenance Products group. Sales volumes were down overall from 2001, with
the largest decrease in the Contico Consumer products business.

Sales from the Maintenance Products group decreased from $324.6 million in 2001 to $314.6 million in 2002, a
decrease of 3%. The largest sales decrease occurred within the consumer business, which sells primarily to mass market retail
customers. While certain product lines with retail customers remained stable, the revenue declines were caused by the loss of
certain product lines, as well as selected price erosion with retail customers through allowance, rebate, and other pricing
programs. In addition to continually striving to reduce our cost structure, we are seeking to offset these challenges by
developing new products for the retail markets. The development of new preducts is essential to remaining competitive and to
maintaining sirong relationships with large national mass market retail customers. Sales in the Maintenance Products divisions
serving commercial markets (primarily janitorial/sanitation) were essentially flat versus 2001. GlitMicrotron’s abrasives
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business saw a significant increase in sales from 2001, with sales increasing year over year for seven of their top ten customers.
Glit/Microtron’s sales increases included increases with several key, sizable, janitorial/sanitation distributors. Glit/Microtron
also grew its business with a large national retail chain, for which GlitMicrotron supplies their full stock of floor cleaning
abrasive pads for internal use at their stores nationwide. Sales were also higher in the international markets of Katy’s
janitorial/sanitation businesses, primarily in the UK. and Canada. These positive sales trends were offset by lower sales at
Contico’s janitorial/sanitation business (Continental) and at Wilen (mops, brooms and brushes). We believe that these negative
sales comparisons are in part due to the downturn in the travel (hotels, airports), restaurant, and hospitelity sectors of the
eccnomy, to which many of our maintenance products are sold. Other factors resulting from the worsening overall economic
environment are higher vacancy rates in office buildings, distribution facilities, and other commercial facilities where
professional cleaning products are used. The Maintenance Products group also made positive steps in 2002 toward managing
the various janitorial/sanitation supply divisions as one group, consolidating more of the customer service and administrative
functions of these divisions in St. Louis, Missouri. By the end of 2003, we expect to have centralized customer service and
administrative functions for Continental, Glit/Microtron, Wilen and Disce in place, allowing customers to order products from
any division on one purchase order. We believe that operating these businesses as a cohesive unit wiil improve customer
service in that our customers’ purchasing processes will be simplified, as will follow up on order status, billing, collection and
other related functions. This should increase customer loyalty, help in attracting new customers and lead to increased top line
sales in future years.

The group’s operating loss improved by $19.8 million from ($39.7) miliion in 2001 to ($19.9) million in 2002, an
improvement of 50%. The operating loss was primarily a result of costs for severance, restructuring and related costs, and asset
impairments, which are discussed further below. Excluding those items, operating income improved by $14.7 million from
(50.1) million in 2001 to $14.5 million in 2002. The improvement in income was primarily driven by GlitYMicrotron, Contico
and Wilen. Glit/Microtron’s operating income improvement was driven by strong sales volume and cost reductions in numerous
areas, including raw materials, freight, and headcount. Contico’s cperating income improved mainly due to cost reductions
implemented on a continuing basis throughout 2001 and 2002 producing results. The Wilen business deteriorated during 2000
and 2001 due to operational problems that were largely remedied in 2002. In addition, significant new business was gained in
early 2003 from a large national mass market retail store chain, who will use Wilen mops for their in-store floor care needs,
providing meaningful levels of new sales to use capacity existing at the Wilen plant. During 2001, the Maintenance Products
group recorded significant valuation reserve adjustments associated with inventory and receivables, totaling $3.5 miilion.
Operating income improved by $1.8 million as a result of the cessation of goodwill amortization per the adoption of SFAS No.
142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Operating results in 2002 were negatively impacted by several unusual charges. The group incurred severance and
restructuring charges of $13.6 million. The largest of these charges was the establishment of $10.8 million of liabilities for non-
cancelable lease payments at abandoned Contico facilities, the operations of which have been or will be consolidated into
Contico’s largest, mosi modern plant in Bridgeton, Missouri. The establishment of these liabilities involves estimates of future
sub-lease income. We generally assumed that there will be no sub-lease income on these facilities until January 2004, at which
time a portion of the facility costs are expected to be recovered. Adjustments to these liabilities are possible in the future
depending upon the accuracy of sub-lease assumptions made. Charges of $0.5 miilion were incuired in 2002 related to the
movement of equipment and inventory from an abandoned facility, and severance payments of $0.1 million were made to
employees impacted by this move. The Maintenance Products group incurred approximately $0.8 million in consulting fees
associated with outscurcing strategies, relating mainly to the Wilen business. While current plans call for Wilen to continue in a
manufacturing capacity, the outsourcing project resulted in improved prices from some new vendors on products that had
already been outsourced. The group incurred $0.4 million of severance costs related to various headcount reductions, primartly
at the executive level of operating divisions. The Maintenance Products group also incurred $0.5 million associated with
transitioning administrative and accounting functions of Wilen and GlitvMicrotron to St. Louis, Missouri, where those functions
are now performed by Contico.

The Maintenance Products group recognized impairment charges on certain long-lived assets totaling $20.8 million in
2002. Certain Contico property, plant and equipment, primarily molds and tooling assets, were impaired by $15.3 million, and 2
customer list intangible was impaired by $3.6 million. The majority of these impairments were associated with assets used in
the Contico Consumer business, and were the result of analyses indicating insufficient future cash flows to cover the carrying
values of the assets. It was determined that portions of the carrying values of certain assets would not be recovered by future
cash flows over the remaining useful life of the assets. Given the unique nature of molds for specific products, the fair values, if
any, are often less than historical cost, resulting in impairments. The Wilen business unit recorded asset impairments of $1.9
million, resulting from management decisions on the future use of certain manufacturing assets in the Atlanta, Georgia plant.

Operating results in 2001 for the Maintenance Products group were also negatively impacted by several unusual
charges. We recorded an impzirment charge of $33.0 million at Wilen because consistently poor operating performance led us
to conclude that the carrying values of certain long-lived assets were not recoverable through future cash flows. In addition to
the impairment at Wilen, an additional $3.1 million of impairment charges were taken, related primarily to management
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decisions regarding the discontinuance of certain property, plant and equipment. Additional items that negatively impacted
operating results during 2001 include severance and restructuring charges of $3.5 million, primarily at Contico and Wilen.

Identifiable assets for the group decreased primarily as a result of the impairments noted above, and due to the fact that
normal depreciation expense exceeded capital expenditures for the group.

Electrical/Electronics Group

The Electrical/Electronics group had a positive year in 2002, driven primarily by improved sales volume over 2001,
and secondarily, by higher margins over the prior year. In addition, during 2002 a major restructuring occurred at the Woods
business. After significant study and research into different sourcing alternatives, we decided that Woods would source all of its

products from Asia. In December 2002, Woods shut down all U.S. manufacturing facilities, which were in suburban
Indianapolis and in southern Indiana. As a result of these plant closures, 361 employees were terminated. The following
charges were recorded related to the shut down: severance and other closure costs of $2.4 million, asset impairments of $0.4
million, and write-offs of excess raw material inventory on hand at the time of the shut down of $0.9 million.

The Electrical/Electronics group’s sales increased from $130.9 million in 2001 to $144.2 million in 2002, an increase
of 10%. Higher sales volumes to the two largest customers of Woods, both national mass market retailers, drove the sales
increase. Sales to these two customers combined were up $13.2 million, or 21%, from 2001. Higher volumes of direct import
merchandise, which are shipped directly from our suppliers to our customers, such as extension cords and power strips, drove
the higher sales to one of these customers. The strong relationships with these large customers have provided a solid foundation
for growth in the Woods business. Woods Canada also experienced a significant sales increase to its largest customer, also a
large mass market retailer, to whom sales were higher by 21%. A portion of the sales growth at Woods from 2001 to 2002 was
due to a significant increase in purchases from a large customer, and some portion of the sales may not occur again in 2003.

The group’s operating income increased from ($0.2) million in 2001 to $2.9 million in 2002. Operating income was
reduced by costs for severance, restructuring and related costs, and asset impairments, which are discussed further below.
Excluding these costs, operating income increased from $3.0 million in 2001 to $8.5 million in 2002, an increase of 183%.
Higher sales volumes aided in maintaining margins, and ongoing cost control has allowed Woods and Woods Canada to reduce
product and variable costs. During 2002, Woods incurred a loss of $0.9 million related to obsolete raw material and packaging
inventory on hand which could not be utilized following the shutdown of the U.S. manufacturing facilities (see next paragraph).
Significant factors impacting 2001 results include lower of cost or market inventory valuation adjustments totaling $4.3 million,
the largest of which related to the exit of certain licensed branded product lines by Woceds in the first quarter of 2001. Woods
had entered into several proprietary licensed branding agreements with several companies well known in the electrenics and
computer industries, but efforts to market the products proved unsuccessful. Woods also incurred a litigation loss reserve of
$0.5 million. Woods also wrote off a related $0.1 miilion amount of prepaid maintenance related to sofiware licenses (see next
paragraph). Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses were negatively impacted in 2002 versus 2001, as a result of
the existence in 2001 of amortization of negative goodwill (an income item) of $1.7 million.

Operating results in 2002 were negatively impacted by a number of restructuring-related charges. The
Electrical/Electronics group incurred consulting fees of $2.8 million associated with product outsourcing strategies. In
December 2002, as mentioned above, Woods incurred charges related to the shut down of all U.S. manufacturing operations of
$2.4 million for severance and other exit costs, and $0.4 million of impaired assets that will not be utilized following the shut
down of Woods’ facilities. The group also incurred several unusual charges in 2001. Woods incurred $1.5 mitlion of severance
and other exit costs in early 2001 associated with the closure of several satellite manufacturing facilities in southern Indiana.
Asset impairments of $0.7 miilion were recorded, related primarily to previously capitalized software licenses that were not
being used.

We believe that restructuring steps executed in 2002 related to the Woods business will allow that business to remain
competitive within its markets. The fully outsourced product strategy has reduced headcount at the Woods division by 361
employees effective in mid-December 2002.

We are continually evaluating alternatives relating to divestitures of certain of our businesses. Divestitures present
opportunities to de-leverage our financial position and free up cash for further investments in core activities. On March 6,
2003, we announced that we are exploring the sale of the Woods and Woods Canada businesses. However, there can be no
assurance that a sale of the Woods and Woods Canada business can be completed.

QOther

Sales from other operations decreased by $3.4 million, or 74%, as a result of the SESCO waste-to-energy operation
being tummed over to a third party in April 2002, compared to a full year’s sales in 2001. Operating income from other
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operations in 2002 was driven by an unusual charge of $6.0 million, relating to an obligation created by Katy to the third party
who took over operation of the SESCO facility. Amounts will be paid in roughly equal installments through 2007. See Note 8
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Katy in Part II, Item 8, for a discussion of the SESCO partnership transaction.
Operating income in 2001 was impacted primarily by the $9.8 million impairment of all of the long-lived assets of the SESCO
operation. The assets were written down in anticipation of a cash flow-negative transaction that would be necessary for Katy to
exit the SESCO business.

Discontinued Operations

Two business units are repoited as discontinued operations for all periods presented: Hamilton Precisions Metals, L.P.
(Hamilton) and GC/Waldom Electronics, Inc. (GC/Waldom). Hamilton generated $1.5 million of operating income in 2002
(prior to its sale on October 31, 2002), versus operating income of $3.5 million in 2001. Hamilton’s business was affected by
general economic conditions and lower capital spending within the markets Hamilton serves. GC/Waldom incurred a $6.3
million operating loss in 2002, versus a $2.5 million operating loss in 2001. Nearly the entire operating loss of GC/Waldom in
2002 is the result of asset valuation adjustments in anticipation of a sale of the business unit in early 2003.

Corporate

During 2001, the Corporate group incurred $8.3 million of severance and restructuring charges and $3.0 million of
costs associated with completing the recapitalization. The majority of the severance and restructuring charges relate to
payments made in connection with management transition. Included in this amount is approximately $1.0 million of charges
that relate to outside consultants working with Katy to modify operating and financial strategies, and $0.7 million of non-
cancelable rent and other exit costs associated with the premature termination of our leased office facility in Englewood,
Colorade. The largest portions of the $3.0 million of costs associated with the recapitalization were non-capitalizable legal fees
and investment banker fees, board and committee fees and other internal incremental costs.

Identifiable assets at corporate decreased due to two primary items. Cash was lower by $3.0 million due to more
efficient management of borrowed funds at the end of 2002 versus 2001 and net deferred tax assets were lower by $10.5
million as a result of additional valuation allowance adjustments in 2002.

Interest was lower by $3.6 million, or 25%, in 2002 compared to 2001, primarily due to significant reductions in
outstanding debt balances due to 1) the infusion of equity capital with the recapitalization on June 28, 2001, and 2) reductions
in debt as a result of working capital reductions in the last half of 2001. Qur effective tax rate in 2002 was (21%), indicating
that $8.6 million of tax provision was recorded on a $41.1 million pretax loss. A net tax provision was recorded on the loss
rather than a net tax benefit because we determined that a greater valuation allowance was required on our net deferred tax asset
position. See “Deferred Income Taxes” in “Critical Accounting Policies” and Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part II, ltem 8., for further discussion of income tax accounting. The effective tax rate in 2001, while resulting in
book benefit on a pretax book loss, was only 25%, due to a significant increase in valuation allowances on net operating loss
deferred tax assets. We also recorded a $2.5 million, net of tax, transitional gocdwill impairment as a result of the adoption of
SFAS No. 142, which is shown on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 1, Item 8. for a further discussion of goodwill
impairments.

2001 Compared to 2000

Maintenance Products Group

Sales in the Maintenance Products group decreased from $362.9 million in 2000 to $324.6 million in 2001, a decrease
of 11%. Sales decreased in 2001 at Contico and Wilen, and to a lesser extent at Duckback, Gemtex and Disco. Sales increased
at GlivMicrotron and Loren. The group experienced weakness in both the retail and institutional sectors to which it sells.
Retailers’ efforts to reduce inventories, especially in early 2001, led to softer sales for Contico and Duckback, and a slower
economy contributed to softer sales in the janitorial/sanitation markets,

The group’s operating income decreased from $10.3 million in 2000 to ($39.7) million in 2001, a decrease of 485%.
Operating income was reduced by costs for severance, restructuring and related costs, and asset impairments, which are
discussed further below. Excluding the impact of these items, operating income for the group declined from $11.5 million in
2000 to (50.1) million in 2001. SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales improved at Contico, Glit/Microtron, Loren and Disco,
offset by higher percentages of SG&A expenses at Wilen, Duckback and Gemtex. The overall improvement in SG& A expenses
(excluding the unusual items) was offset by reduced gross margins at all businesses, led by Contico. Decreased volumes and the
inability to reduce overhead accordingly was the main cause of the margin decreases. Offsetting these factors were prices paid

17




for various resins, a key raw material for plastic products produced by Contico, which were lower in 2001 than in 2000,
especially for polypropylene. The lower prices for resins taken alone accounted for approximately $4.7 million in lower cost of
goods sold during 2001 versus 2000. The Maintenance Products group recorded valuation reserve adjustments for inventory
and receivables of $3.5 million during 2001, contributing to the lower operating results. 2000 results included 2 $0.7 million
increase (expense) to the LIFQO inventory reserve at Contico and an inventory write down at Wilen of $0.9 million

Operating results in 2001 were negatively impacted by unusual items of $39.6 million. We recorded an impairment
charge of $33.0 million at Wilen because consistently poor operating performance led us to conclude that the carrying values of
certain long-lived assets were not recoverable through future cash flows. In addition to the impairment at Wilen, an additional
$3.1 million of impairment charges were taken, related primarily to management decisions regarding the discontinuance of
certain property, plant and equipment. Additional items that negatively impacted operating results during 2001 include
severance and restructuring charges of $3.5 million, primarily at Contico and Wilen. Operating results in 2000 were negatively
impacted by $1.2 million in severance and restructuring charges

Identifiable assets for the group decreased by $68.2 million from $299.3 million in 2000 to $231.1 millicn in 2001, a
decrease of 23%. The decrease was due in part to the $33.0 million write-off of long-lived assets in the mop, broom and brush
business. An inventory reduction effort on a company-wide basis resulted in lower working capital levels at each division in
2001. Depreciation expense in excess of capital expenditures also contributed to the decline.

Electrical/Electronics Group

The Electrical/Electronics group’s sales decreased from $157.0 million in 2000 to $130.9 million in 2001, a decrease of
17%. Sales volumes were lower in 2001 at both Woods and Woods Canada. We sold Thorsen Teols during the second quarter
of 2001, which accounted for $7.3 million of the sales decrease. The sales decreases were primarily attributable to slower
economic conditions during 2001, especially as those conditions caused retailers to reduce inventory levels during the early
portion of 2001.

The group’s operating income decreased from $4.5 million in 2000 to ($0.2) million in 2001, a decrease of 104%.
Operating income was reduced by costs for severance, restructuring and related costs, and asset impairments, which are
discussed further below. Operating results excluding these unusual items decreased from $4.9 million in 2000 to $3.0 million in
2001, a decrease of 40%. Positive factors included significant reductions in SG&A expenses at Woods and Woods Canada in
2001 as compared to 2000. Negative factors in 2001 included $4.3 million of inventory lower of cost or market adjustments, the
largest occurring at Woods relating to exiting licensed branded product lines ($3.3 million). Negative factors impacting
operating income in 2000 included a charge of $0.8 million for costs associated with a product recall.

Operating results in 2001 were reduced by unusual items of $3.2 million, including severance and restructuring charges
of $1.6 million and related impairments of long-lived assets of $1.6 million. Unusual items impacted operating results in 2000
as well, including a $0.4 million severance charge at Woods.

Identifiable assets for the group decreased from $67.3 million in 2000 to $50.6 million in 2001, a decrease of 25%.
Lower working capital levels at Woods and Woods Canada drove this decrease. These reductions were the result of aggressive
efforts to reduce inventories, as well as lower levels of capital expenditures. Also, assets of Thorsen Tools, which were sold
during 2001, accounted for approximately $6.9 million of the reduction.

Other
Sales from other operations increased modestly as a result of higher sales at the SESCO waste-to-energy facility.

Operating income from other operations decreased $8.9 million, primarily as a result of a $9.8 million impairment of
our investment in SESCO’s waste-to-energy facility and related property, plant and equipment. Excluding the effect of the
write-off, operating income increased $0.9 million at the SESCC waste-to-energy facility.

Identifiable assets for our other operations decreased $9.5 million in connection with the write-off of Katy’s
investment in the SESCCO waste-to-energy facility.

Corporate

During 2001, the Corporate group incurred $8.3 million of severance and restructuring charges and $4.1 million of
other unusual items. The majority of the severance and restructuring charges relate to payments made in connection with
management transition. Included in this amount is approximately $1.0 million of charges that relate to outside consultants
working with Katy to modify operating and financial strategies, and $0.7 million of non-cancelable rent and other exit costs
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associated with the premature termination of cur leased office facility in Englewood, Colorado. The largest portion of the other
unusual items were approximately $3.0 million of costs asscciated with the recapitalization, including non-capitalizable legal
fees and investment banker fees, board and committee fees and other internal incremental costs. Other unusual items included
increases to claims and environmental reserves of $0.7 millicn and other items totaling $0.3 million. Corporate expenses in
2000 were negatively impacted by $0.6 million in unusual items, including $0.9 million of severance and restructuring charges
and $0.2 million of costs associated with the recapitalization, partiaily offset by proceeds of $0.5 million related to a previously
written-off investment.

Interest was lower by $3.6 million, or 25%, in 2001 compared to 2000, primarily due to the reduction in bank debt
caused by the recapitalization in June of 2001. Bank debt was reduced by $51.1 million when the recapitalization cccurred.
We incurred an extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million, net of tax, at the time of the recapitalization.
This loss represented the write-off of previously capitalized debt costs. The effective income tax rate for continuing operations
reduced from 35% in 2000 to 25% in 2001, resulting in lowered tax benefit from book losses in 2001, The lower tax rate and
benefit were the result of valuation allowance adjustments placed on certain deferred tax assets, particularly federal net
operating loss carry-forwards.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity was our strongest performance measure in 2002, with overall debt decreasing by $38.6 million from $84.1
millicn at the end of 2001 to $45.5 million at the end ¢f 2002. Cash decreased by $3.0 million from $7.8 million at the end of
2001 to $4.8 million at the end 0of 2002. During 2002, we accomplished the following:

o 0 0 o

Generated operating cash flow of $31.5 million.

Incurred capital expenditures from continuing operations of $10.1 million.

Sold the Hamilton business for gross proceeds of $13.9 million.

The three items listed above, along with strong working capital management in 2001, allowed us to repay by Ocicber
2002 the entire remaining balance of the $30 million term loan with Deutsche Bank, which was obtained in June 2001
at the time of the recapitalization. The term locan was scheduled to be paid ratably through June of 2006. At
December 31, 2002, scheduled remaining maturities of term debt per the repayment amortization schedule in the loan
document would have been $21 million.

In addition, during 2003, the following events occurred:

]

In February 2003, we funded a new credit agreement, agented by Fleet Capital (Fleet Credit Agreement), which
replaced the credit agreement entered into at the time of the recapitalization in June of 2001 (Deutsche Bank Credit
Agreement). The new $110 million facility, which provides for $20 million of term debt and $90 million of revolving
debt, involves a syndicate of banks, all of whom had participated in the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. The Fleet
Credit Agreement is an asset-based lending agreement, and is generally on similar terms to those found in the
Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. The term of the agreement is through January 30, 2008.

Sold the GC/Waldom business for gross proceeds of $8.3 million, which allowed us to further reduce our debt
obligations. '

While book losses in 2002 were significant, large portions of these losses were due to non-cash events such as

impairments of assets ($21.2 million), depreciation and amortizaticn ($19.4 miliion), and the creation of liabilities to be paid in
future years, such as the SESCO obligation {see discussion regarding Contractual Obligations below) (85.0 million, discounted)
and the recording of liabilities for non-cancelable leases at several operating locations ($10.9 million, discounted). Strong
collections of receivables late in 2002, as well as management of accounts payable, resulted in working capital improvement in

2002,

With the early pay down of the term loan in October 2002, we set out to take out a new term loan, which is

collateralized by real and personal property, in order to most efficiently leverage our entire asset base, and to create more
borrowing room under our revolving credit arrangements, which are based on the liquidation values of accounts receivable and
inventories. We belicve we have accomplished these goals by entering into the Fleet Credit Agreement in February of 2003.
Below is a summary of the sources and uses associated with the funding of the Fleet Credit Agreement:

{Thousands of Dollars)

Sources:

Term loan borrowings under the Fleet Credit Agreement $ 20,000

Revolving loan borrowings under the Fleet Credit Agreement 43,743
$ 63,743

Uses:

Payment of interest and principal under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement 3 52,895

Purchase of outstanding preferred interest of Contico at a discount 9,840

Payment of accrued distributions on cutstanding preferred interest of Contico 122

Certain costs associated with the Fleet Credit Agreement 886
3 63,743

The Fleet Credit Agreement, which provides for a total borrowing facility of $110.0 million, has a $20.0 million term

loan portion with a final maturity date of February 3, 2008 and quarterly repayments of $0.7 million, the first of which will be
made on April 1, 2003. A final payment of $5.7 million is scheduled to be made in 2008. The term loan is based on orderly
liquidation values of the Company’s property, plant and equipment. The remaining portion of the Fleet Credit Agreement is a
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$90.0 million revolving credit facility that also has an expiration date of February 3, 2008. The borrowing base of the revolving
credit facility is determined by eligible inventory and accounts receivable.

Unused borrowing availability on the revolving credit facility was $27.8 million at February 21, 2003.

All extensions of credit under the Fleet Credit Agreement are collateralized by a first priority perfected security interest
in and lien upon the capital stock of each material domestic subsidiary (65% of the capital stock of each material foreign
subsidiary), and all present and future assets and properties of Katy. Customary financial covenants and restrictions apply under
the Fleet Credit Agreement. Until June 30, 2003, interest accrues on revolving borrowings at 225 basis points over applicable
LIBOR rates, and at 250 basis points over LIBOR for term borrowings. Subsequent to June 30, 2003, margins are determined
on a pricing matrix which factors operating performance into the pricing grid. Margins drop an additional 25 basis peints in the
most favorable pricing grid from the pre-June 30 levels. Interest accrues at higher margins on prime rates for swing loans.

Katy incurred $0.9 million in debt issuance costs associated with the Fleet Credit Agreement. However, Katy expects
to charge to expense during the first quarter of 2003 approximately $1.2 million of previously capitalized debt issuance costs
from the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. While approximately $5.6 million of debt issuance costs were capitalized at the
time of the inception of the Fleet Credit Agreement, the $1.2 million represents an amount derived from the pro rata reduction in
borrowing capacity from the Duetsche Bank Credit Agreement to the Fleet Credit Agreement. The remainder of the previcusly
capitalized costs, along with the newly capitalized costs from the Fleet Credit Agreement will be amortized over the life of the
Fleet Credit Agreement, through January 2008.

With regard to the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement, we were in compliance with all covenants related to the
agreement at December 31, 2002. Total debt was 28% of total capitalization at December 31, 2002. The revolving credit
facilities under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement required lockbox agreements which provided for all receipts to be swept
daily to reduce borrowings outstanding. These agreements, combined with the existence of a Material Adverse Effect (MAE)
clause in the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement, caused the Revolving Credit Facility to be classified as a current liability, per
guidance in the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 95-22, Balance Sheet Classification of Borrowings Outstanding
under Revolving Credit Agreements that Include Both a Subjective Acceleration Clause and a Lock-Box Arrangement.
However, the Company did not expect to repay, or be required to repay, within one year, the balance of the Revolving Credit
Facility classified as a current liability. The MAE clause, which is a fairly typical requirement in commercial credit agreements,
allows the lender to require the loan to become due if it determines there has been a material adverse effect on our operations,
business, properties, assets, liabilities, condition or prospects. The classification of the Revolving Credit Facility as a current
liability is a result only of the combination of the two aforementioned factors: the lockbox agreements and the MAE clause.
However, the Revolving Credit Facility under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement did not expire or have a maturity date
within one year, but rather had a final expiration date of June 28, 2006. Also, we were in compliance with the applicable
financial covenants at December 31, 2002. The lender had not notified us of any indication of a MAE at December 31, 2002,
and to our knowledge, we were not in default of any provision of the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement at December 31, 2002.

The Fleet Credit Agreement also calls for similar lockbox arrangements, and has language regarding material adverse
changes. We anticipate that our obligations under the revolving credit facility will continue to be classified as current liabilities.

The Fleet Credit Agreement, and the additional borrowing ability on revolving credit obtained by incurring new term
debt, results in three important benefits related to the long-term strategy of Katy: 1) allowed us to redeem early at a discount a
preferred interest obligation of Contico, 2) provides borrowing power to invest in capital expenditures key to our strategic
direction, and 3) provides working capital flexibility to build inventory when necessary to accommodate lower cost outsourced
finished goods inventory. We feel that our operations and the Fleet Credit Agreement provide sufficient liquidity for our
operations going forward.

As a result of the refinance with the new Fleet Credit Agreement, we were able to redeem at a 40% discount the
remaining preferred interest that the former owner of Contico had held. This balance sheet liability, which had a carrying value
of $16.4 million at December 31, 2002, was redeemed for $9.8 million in February 2003. The gain on this redemption will be
an addition to stockholders’ equity, and will favorably impact eamnings per share. This will result in a reduction of preferred
cash distributions by approximately $1.3 million annually, which had accrued at an annual rate of 8%. After giving effect to the
interest cost incurred by the Company to fund the redemption, the net decrease in financing cost for the Company will be
approximately $1.0 million annually.

Funding for capital expenditures and working capital needs is expected to be accomplished through the use of available
borrowings under the Fleet Credit Agreement. Anticipated capital expenditures are expected to be higher in 2003 than in 2002
and 2001, mainly due to investments planned for the restructuring of the abrasives businesses and the various Contico facilities.
These restructuring and consolidation activities are important to reducing our cost structure to a competitive level.
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Cur borrowing base under the Fleet Credit Agreement is reduced by the outstanding amount of standby and
commercial letters of credit. Vendors, financial institutions and other parties with whom Katy does business may require letters
of credit in the future that either 1) do not exist today, or 2) would be at higher amounts than those that exist today. Our largest
letters of credit relate to our casualty insurance programs.

We have a number of obligations and commitments, which are listed on the schedule later in this section entitled
“Contractual Cbligations and Commercial Commitments.” We have considered all of these obligations and commitments in
structuring our capital resources to ensure that they can be met. See the notes accompanying the table in that section for further
discussions of those items.

Businesses classified as discontinued operations were both sold by early 2003. Therefore, we will not have the benefit
of the cash flow generated by those businesses in the past. However, the proceeds of the sales of those businesses were used to
pay down debt, more than offsetting the negative liquidity impact of losing their cash flow from cperations.

We are continually evaluating alternatives relating to divestitures of certain of our businesses. Divestitures present
opportunities to de-leverage our financial position and free up cash for further investments in core activities. On March 6,
2003, we announced that we are exploring the sale of the Woods and Woods Canada businesses. However, there can be no
assurance that a sale of the Woods and Woods Canada business will be completed. 'On April 2, 2003, we announced the sale of
GC/Waldom with gross proceeds of $8.3 million, which were used to reduce our debt obligations.. On February 3, 2003, we
announced that we sold a Woods manufacturing facility in Moorseville, Indiana. Gross proceeds were $1.9 million, of which
$0.7 million was used to repay a mortgage loan payable on the property. The remainder of the proceeds reduced our debt
obligations.

BITDA

Non-GAAP Financial Measure — Earnings before Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization

Cash flow generation is integral to the success of our business, and EBITDA is used on a routine basis as a measure of
operating performance at Katy. While it is a non-GAAP measure, EBITDA is used extensively on an internal basis, acting as a
primary metric for performance measurement related to incentive compensation for management. EBITDA is also the prime
measure of operating results used by the lenders in our bank group when evaluating cur performance. While appreciating the
importance of depreciation charges and the information operating income provides regarding returns on assets, we actively
monitor the payback and return on capital projects by thorough review of projects prior io their approval, ensuring that returns
on those projects are specified in operating budgets, and subsequent follow up on the return provided by those projects. The
items added back in the table below to arrive at an EBITDA amount shown below should not be ignored or considered irrelevant
in the analysis of our performance. However, management routinely views operating results with unusual items such as those
below excluded, so that a reasonable profitability answer can be derived that can be used as a reliable indicator for future
performance. We think it is useful for investors to understand EBITDA because it provides a link between profitability and
operating cash flow, and also allows the investor to view performance in a manner similar to the method used by our
management. Below are reconciliations of net income, computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and displayed on the Consolidated Statements of Operations (Total Company), with EBITDA, a measure we use on a routine
basis:
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Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general & administrative expenses
Impairments of long-lived assets
Severance, restructuring & other costs
SESCO joint venture transaction
Operating (loss) income
Equity in income of unconsolidated investment
Interest
Other, net
(Loss) income before provision for income taxes
Income taxes
(Loss) income before distributions on preferred interest in subsidiary
Distributions on preferred interest of subsidiary, net of tax
(Loss) income from continuing operations

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
(excluding unusual items)

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Selling, general & administrative expenses
Impairments of long-lived assets
Severance, restructuring & other costs
SESCO joint venture transaction
Operating (loss) income
Equity in income of unconsolidated investment
Interest
Other, net
(Loss) income before provision for income taxes
Income taxes
(Loss) income before distributions on preferred interest in subsidiary
Distributions on preferred interest of subsidiary, net of tax
(Loss) income from continuing operations

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
(excluding unusual items)

Twelve months ended

Excluding
December 31, Unusual unusual
2002 Items items % of sales
$ 459,990 $ - $ 459,990
381,846 - 381,846
78,144 - 78,144 17.1%
66,803 - 66,803 14.5%
21,204 (21,204) (a) -
19,155 (19,155) (b) -
6,010 (6,010) (c) -
(35,028) 46,369 11,341 2.6%
295 - 295
(6,046) - (6,046)
(407) - (407)
(41,186) 46,369 5,183 1.3%
(8,612) 6,642 (d) (1,970)
(49,798) 53,011 3,213 0.8%
(1,593) - (1,593)
$ (51,391) $ 53,011 $ 1,620 0.4%
Pretax income $ 5,183
Interest 6,046
Depreciation and amortization 19,403
EBITDA $ 30,632 6.8%
Twelve months ended
Excluding
December 31, Unusual unusual
2001 Items items % of sales
$ 460,176 $ - $ 460,176
395,789 - 395,789
64,387 - 64,387 14.0%
74,424 (2,973) (e) 71,451 15.5%
47,469 (47,469) (a) -
13,380 (13,380) (b) -
(70,886) 63,822 (7,064) -1.5%
72 - 72
(10,822) - (10,822)
(604) - (604)
(82,240) 63,822 (18,418) -4.0%
20,647 (16,024) (d) 4,623
(61,593) 47,798 (13,795) -3.0%
(1,274) - (1,274)
$ (62,867) § 47,798 $ (15,069) -3.3%
Pretax income $ (18418)
Interest 10,822
Depreciation and amortization 20,728
EBITDA $ 13,132 2.9%

Items to reconcile to EBITDA are discussed in further detail in the Results of Operations section of MD&A.

Summaries of the items are presented below:

a) Impairments of long-lived assets include carrying value adjustments relating to property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, and goodwill {except for goodwill write-offs recorded with the adoption of SFAS No. 142,

Goodwill and Intangible Assets).
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b} Severance and restructuring costs include costs related o 1) accruals for non-cancelable lease payments for rented
facilities that have been, or will be, abandoned as part of facilities consclidation or other restructuring projects, 2)
severance charges for terminated employees, 3) consultant fees for outsourcing and other restructuring projects, 4)
costs to move inventory and equipment between facilities related to consolidation projects.

¢) SESCQ transaction costs include the charge for the contracted amount payable to the third party who has taken
prime responsibility within the partnership for the operations of SESCO, and the cost of certain spare parts that
were contributed to the partnership.

d) Adjustment to reflect 2 more normalized effective tax rate excluding unusual items.

¢) Recapitalization costs include costs associated with completing the recapitalization that for various reasons were
not charged against the proceeds of convertible preferred stock or capitalized with debt issuance costs.

EBITDA, excluding unusual items as shown above, increased by $17.5 million from $13.1 million in 2001 to $30.6
million in 2002, an improvement of 133%. Higher EBITDA was generated in both the Maintenance Products group and the
Electrical/Electronics group in 2002 versus 2001. The reasons for the improvements in EBITDA for both segments are largely
the same as those discussed for operating income in the Results of Cperations discussion above regarding 2002 versus 2001.
EBITDA in 2001 was negatively impacted by valuation adjustments of $6.9 million for excess and obsolete inventory.

EBITDA enhances the understanding of our liquidity and helps provide a link between eamings and cash provided by
operating activities in the Consoclidated Statements of Cash Flows in Part II, ltem 8. Depreciation, amortization, impairments of
long-lived assets and increases to valuation allowances on deferred tax assets are non-cash charges. Also, certain severance,
restructuring and related charges did not result in cash outflows in 2002, but created liabilities that will be settled in future years;
most significantly, those for non-cancelable lease liabilities associated with facilities that have been (or will be) abandoned as a
result of restructuring and consolidation efforts. Included in severance, restructuring and related charges in 2002 are costs of
$11.8 million for the establishment of these types of liabilities. The balance sheet liabilities for these types of costs increased by
$10.5 million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002. This change is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows in the line item which shows the change in “Accrued expenses and other liabilities” as a positive adjustment from net
income to cash provided by operating activities in 2002. As the non-cancelable lease payments are made in future years, they
will negatively impact operating cash flow through opposite changes in this line item. See also the section entitled
“Restructuring and Severance Charges” for a discussion of charges and payments against restructuring reserves, and estimates
of future settlement of related liabilities.

OFE-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

COn April 29, 2002, Katy and SESCQ, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with
Montenay Power Corporation and its affiliates (Montenay) that turned over the operation of SESCO’s waste-to-energy facility
to Montenay. The Company entered into this agreement as a result of evaiuations of SESCQ’s business. First, we determined
that SESCO was not a core component of our long-term business strategy. Moreover, we did not feel the Company had the
management expertise to deal with certain risks and uncertainties presented by the operation of SESCQ’s business, given that
SESCO was the Company’s only waste-to-energy facility. We had explored options for divesting SESCO for a number of
years, and management felt that this transaction offered a reasonable strategy to exit this business.

The partnership, with Montenay’s leadership, assumed SESCO’s position in various contracts relating to the facility’s
operation. Under the agreement, SESCO contributed its assets and liabilities (except for its liability under the loan agreement
with the Resource Recovery Development Authority (the Authority) of the City of Savannah and the related receivable under
the service agreement) to the partnership. While SESCO will maintain a 99% partnership- interest as a limited pariner,
Mecntenay will have most of the day to day responsibility of the partnership, and accordingly, the partnership will not be
consolidated. Katy agreed to pay Montenay $6.6 million over the span of seven years under a note payable as part of the
partnership and related agreements. This note payable is recorded as a liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets included in
Part II, Item 8. Certain amounts may be due to SESCO upon expiration of theé service agreement in 2008; also, Montenay may
purchase SESCO’s interest in the partnership at that time. Katy has not recorded any amounts receivable or other assets relating
to amounts that may be received at the time the service agreement expires, given their uncertainty.

The Company recognized in the first quarter of 2002 a charge of $6.0 million, consisting of 1) the discounted value of the
$6.6 million note, which is payable over seven years, 2) the carrying value of certain assets contributed to the partnership,
consisting primarily of machinery spare parts, and 3) costs to close the transaction. It should be noted that all of SESCO’s long-
lived assets were reduced to a zero value at December 31, 2001, so no additional impairment was required. Going forward,
Katy does not expect any income statement activity as a result of its involvement in the partnership, and Katy’s balance sheet
will carry the liability mentioned above.
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In 1984, the Authority issued $55.0 million of Industrial Revenue Bonds and lent the proceeds to SESCO, under the loan
agreement for the acquisition and construction of the waste-to-energy facility that has now been transferred to the partnership.
The funds required to repay the loan agreement come from the monthly disposal fee paid by the Authority to SESCO under the
service agreement for certain waste disposal services, a component of which is for debt service. To induce the required parties
to consent to the SESCO partnership transaction, SESCO retained its liability under the loan agreement. In connection with that
liability, SESCO also retained its right to receive the debt service component of the monthly disposal fee.

Based on an opinion from outside legal counsel, SESCO has a legally enforceable right to offset amounts it owes to the
Authority under the loan agreement against amounts that are owed from the Authority under the service agreement. At
December 31, 2002, this amount was $35.8 million. Accordingly, the amounts owed to and due from SESCO have been netted
for financial reporting purposes and are not shown on the consolidated balance sheets.

In addition to SESCO retaining its liabilities under the loan agreement, to induce the required parties to consent to the
partnership transaction, Katy also continues to guarantee the obligations of the partnership under the service agreement. The
partnership is liable for liquidated damages under the service agreement if it fails to accept the minimum amount of waste or to
meet other performance standards under the service agreement. The liquidated damages, an off balance sheet risk for Katy, are
equal to the amount of the bonds outstanding, less $4.0 million maintained in a debt service reserve trust. We do not expect
non-performance by the other parties. Additionally, Montenay has agreed to indemnify Katy for any breach of the service
agreement by the partnershlp

Following are scheduled prmc1pal repayments on the loan agreement (and the Industrial Revenue Bonds) (in thousands):

2003 $ 5,385
2004 6,765
2005 8,370
2006 15,300
Total _$ 35,820

L

We also enter into operating lease agreements in the ordinary course of business, and many of our facilities are leased.
Contractual obligations associated with these leases are listed in the table under the following section entitled “Contractual
Obligations and Commercial Obligations.”

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Cbligations

Katy’s obligations are summarized below:

(In thousands of dollars)

4 Due in less Due in Due in Due after
Revolvmg credlt facﬂlty [d] $§ 44,751 g $ - $ 44,751 $ -
Term loans - - - -
Preferred interest in subsidiary [e] 16,400 - - 16,400 -
Operating leases [c] 52,070 11,942 20,040 13,556 6,532
Severance and restructuring [c] 3,613 3,220 378 15
SESCO payable to Montenay [b] 5,800 1,000 2,050 2,200 550
Other 700 700 - - -
Total Contractual Obligations $ 123334 $ 16,862 $ 22,468 $ 76,922 $ 7,082

Due in less Due in Due in Due after

Other Commer Commitment: Total than 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 3 years
Commercxal letters of credlt 3 1,007 $ 1,007 $ - $ - b -
Stand-by letters of credit 6,361 6,361 - - -
Guarantees [a] 35,820 5,385 15,135 15,300 -
Total Commercial Commitments $ 43188 $ 12,753 $ 15,135 $ 15,300 $ -

[ RS o Tt L st S AP i & Butinsto R S chutt Ll

(a) As discussed in the Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements section above, SESCQ, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Katy,
is party to a parmership that operates a waste-to-energy facility, and has certain contractual obligations, for which Katy provides
certain guarantees. If the partnership is not able to perform its obligations under the contracts, under certain circumstances
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SESCO and Katy could be subject to damages equal to the amount of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding (which financed
construction of the facility) less amounts held by the partnership in debt service reserve funds. Katy and SESCO do not
anticipate non-performance by parties to the contracts. See the Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements section above and Note 8 to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) Amount owed to Montenay as a result of the SESCO partnership, discussed above and in Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. $1.0 million of this obligation is classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an Accrued Expense in
Current Liabilities, while the remainder is included in Other Liabilities, recorded on a discounted basis.

{c) These “Severance and restructuring” obligations represent liabilities associated with restructuring activities, other than
liabilities for non-cancelable lease rentals. Future non-cancelable lease rentals are included in the line entitled “Operating
leases.” Qur balance sheet at December 31, 2002, includes $10.9 million in discounted liabilities associated with non-
cancelable operating lease rentals, net of estimated sub-lease revenues, related to facilities that have been abandoned as a result
of restructuring and consolidation activities.

(d) As discussed in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section above, the entire Deutsche Bank Revolving Credit Facility is
classified as a current liability on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as a result of the combination in the
Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement of 1) lockbox agreements on Katy’s depository bank accounts and 2) a subjective Material
Adverse Effect (MAE) clause. The Deutsche Bank Revolving Credit Facility was paid off on February 3, 2003, with funds
received under the Fleet Credit Agreement. The Fleet Credit Agreement contains similar provisions, and it is expected that
borrowings under the Fleet revolving facility will be classified as current as well.

(e) The preferred interest in subsidiary was redeemed early on February 3, 2003, coincident with the refinancing of Katy’s debt
obligations through the Fleet Credit Agreement. The stated amount of $16.4 million was redeemed at a 40% discount for $9.8
million. The resulting $6.6 million (pre-tax) gain on the redemption will be recognized as an increase to Paid-in Capital on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets for period ended March 31, 2003.

QTHER ITEMS

Effect of Transactions with Related and Certain Other Parties

In connection with the Contico acquisition on January 8, 1999, we entered into building lease agreements with
Newcastle Industries, Inc. (Newcastle). Newcastle was the holder of the $16.4 million preferred interest in Contico (see Note
13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8). Lester Miller, the former owner of Contico, and a Katy director
from 1999 to 2000, is the majority owner of Newcastle. Also, several additional properties utilized by Contico are leased
directly from Lester Miller. Rental expense for these properties approximates historical market rates. Related party rental
expense for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 200C was approximately $0.8 million, $1.5 million and $1.5 millicn,
Tespectively.

We paid Newcastle $1.3 million of preferred distributions for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $2.0
and $2.6 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 respectively. The decreases in distributions were
due to the early redemption (at a discount) of half of the preferred interest at the time of the recapitalization in June 2001. On
February 3, 2003, the remainder of the preferred interest was redeemed at a 40% discount. As a resuit, we do not owe an
further distributions. :

Kohtberg & Co.,'L.L.C., an affiliate of Kohlberg Investors [V, L.P., whose affiliate holds all 805,000 shares of our

Convertible Preferred Stock, provides ongoing management oversight and advisory services to Katy. We paid $500,000 for
such services in 2002, and expect to pay $500,000 annually in future years.

RESTRUCTURING EFFORTS AND SEVERANCE CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded $2.4 million of severance and other exit cosis associated with the shut
down of the Woods manufacturing facilities in Indiana. Manufacturing operations were ceased in order to implement a more
cost-effective procurement of finished goods inventory through sourcing with third party suppliers. 361 operational employees
were terminated as a result of this shut down. Woods incurred $1.5 million in severance, pension, and other employee-related
costs associated with the employee terminations. Woods also incurred a charge for the creation of a liability for non-cancelable
lease costs at abandoned production facilities of $0.8 miilion. An additional $0.1 million of other exit costs were incurred
related to facility repairs and other minor costs. Woods alse incurred $0.9 million of inventory write-offs related to raw and
packaging materials that will not be utilized efficiently with the change-over to a fully sourced inventory sirategy. Contico
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incurred restructuring costs of $0.6 million associated with costs of revaluing their non-cancelable lease liability at the Warson
Road and Earth City facilities, and $0.3 million of costs in moving inventory and equipment from the Warson facility to the
Bridgeton facility.

During the third quarter of 2002, we recorded $9.5 million of severance, restructuring and other charges. During the
third quarter, we committed to a plan to abandon Contico’s Earth City, Missouri distribution facility, and to consolidate its
operations into the Bridgeton, Missouri facility (both facilities are in the St. Louis, Missouri area). As a result, a $7.1 million
charge was recorded to accrue a liability for non-cancelable lease payments associated with the Earth City facility. Also during
the third quarter, the Contico business recorded a $1.4 million charge related to rent and other facility costs associated with its
Warson Road facility (also in the St. Louis, Missouri area), whose operations are also being consolidated into Bridgeton,
Missouri. A charge of $1.8 million was recorded in the second quarter of 2002 for the Warson Road facility, and the additional
amount of $1.4 million was recorded afier consideration of the market for sub-leasing and to accrue costs to refurbish the
facility. The Contico business recorded related charges of $0.2 million incurred in moving inventory and equipment from the
Warson Road facility to Bridgeton, Missouri, and $0.2 million in severance costs. The Corporate group recorded a $0.1 million
charge for non-cancelable lease payments related to the former corporate headquarters. Also in the third quarter of 2002, a
charge of $0.5 million was recorded for payments to consultants working with us on sourcing and other manufacturing and
production efficiency initiatives.

Certain assumptions have been made regarding potential future sub-lease revenue at rented facilities that have been, or
will be, abandoned as a resuit of restructuring and consolidation activities. If we are unable to achieve our estimated sub-lease
revenue estimates, charges could be recognized in future periods to update the estimated liability and cost to Katy for these
facilities.

During the second quarter of 2002, we recorded $3.8 million of severance, restructuring, and other charges.
Approximately $1.6 million of the charges related to accruals for payments to consultants working with us on sourcing and other
manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives. Additionally, net non-cancelable rental payments of $1.8 million
associated with the shut down of Contico’s Warson Road facility in St. Louis, Missouri were accrued at June 30, 2002, as well
as involuntary termination benefits of $0.1 million. The Warson Road facility shutdown involves a reduction in workforce of
nineteen employees. The remaining $0.3 million was for involuntary termination benefits related to SESCO and for various
integration costs in the consolidation of administrative functions into St. Louis, Missouri, from various operating divisions in the
Maintenance Products group.

During the first quarter of 2002, we recorded $2.3 million of severance, restructuring and other charges.
Approximately $1.9 million of the charges related to accruals for payments to consultants working with us on sourcing and other
manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives. Approximately $0.3 million related to involuntary termination benefits for
two management employees whose positions were eliminated, and $0.1 million were costs associated with the consolidation of
administrative and operational functions.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded $3.2 million of severance and restructuring charges. Approximately
$1.0 million was related to severance payments. These payments related to the closing of the former corporate headquarters in
Englewood, Colorado and an adjunct corporate office in Chicago, Illinois and the related terminations of employees, as well as
severance paid to employees at operating divisions in headcount reduction efforts. Approximately $1.4 million of the charges
related to a consultant working with us on sourcing and other manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives.
Approximately $0.2 million of the charges related to transition activities within the Company. Other costs related to
manufacturing restructuring initiatives at Contico.

During the third quarter of 2001, we recorded $6.5 million of severance and restructuring charges, of which $5.1
million related to the payment or accrual of severance and other expenses associated with the management transition as a result
of the recapitalization. Additionally, $1.0 million of costs were incurred related primarily to outside consultants working with
us on strategic operational and financial strategies. Included in this amount is a charge of $0.5 million for the fair value of stock
options awarded to this non-employee firm.

During the second quarter of 2001, Contico undertook restructuring efforts that resulted in severance payments to
various individuals. Forty-three employees, including two members of Contico and Katy executive management, received
severance benefits. Total involuntary termination benefits were $1.6 million.

During the first quarter of 2001, Woods undertook a restructuring effort that involved reductions in senior management
headcount as well as facility closings. We closed facilities in Loogootee and Bloomington, Indiana, as well as the Hong Kong
office of Katy International, a subsidiary which coordinates sourcing of products from Asia. Sixteen management and
administrative employees received severance packages. Total involuntary severance benefits were $0.5 million and other exit
costs were $0.3 million.
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During the third and fourth quarters of 2000, the Company implemented a workferce reduction that reduced headcount
by approximately 90. Employees affected were primarily in general and administrative functions, with the largest number of
affected employees coming from the Maintenance Products group. The workforce reduction included severance and related
costs for certain employees. Total severance and related costs was $2.4 million.

The table below details activity in restructuring reserves since December 31, 2000,

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2000 $ 1,121
Additions to restructuring liabilities 13,380
Payments on restructuring liabilities (11,488)

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2001 3,013
Additions to restructuring liabilities 19,155
Payments on restructuring liabilities (7,669)

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2002 $ 14,499

The table below summarizes the future obligations for severance and restructuring charges detailed above:

2003 $ 7,459
2004 1,592
2005 1,601
2006 1,368
2007 1,300
Thereafter 1,179

Total Payments $ 14,499

OUTLOOK FOR 2003

We anticipate a continuation of the difficult economic conditions and business environment in 2003, which will
present challenges in maintaining net sales. In particular, we expect to see sofiness contimue in the restaurant, travel and hotel
markets to which we sell cleaning products. However, we began to see some improvement in this channel as 2002 progressed.
We have also seen strong sales performance from the Woods and Woods Canada retail electrical corded products business, but
we do not expect to see the same level of top line growth from those businesses in 2003. We have a significant concentration
of customers in the mass-market retail, discount and do-it-yourself market channels. Our ability to maintain and increase our
sales levels depends in part on our ability to retain and improve relationships with these customers. We face the continuing
challenge of recovering or offsetting cost increases for raw materials.

Gross margins are expected to improve during 2003 as we realize the benefits of various profit-enhancing strategies
begun in 2001 and 2002, These strategies include sourcing previously manufactured products, as well as locating new sources
for products already sourced outside the Company. We have significantly reduced headcount, and continue to examine issues
related to excess facilities. Cost of goods sold is subject to variability in the prices for certain raw materials, most significantly
thermoplastic resins used by Contico in the manufacture of plastic products. Prices of plastic resins, such as polyethylene and
polypropylene, have increased during the early months of 2003. Management has observed that the prices of plastic resins are
driven to an extent by prices for crude oil and natural gas, in addition to other factors specific to the supply and demand of the
resins themselves. We cannot predict the longevity of the current price increase, or if resin prices may increase further or be
reduced through the rest of 2003. We are also exposed to price changes for copper (a primary material in many of the products
sold by Woods and Woods Canada), corrugated packaging material and other raw materials. Copper prices have also increased
in recent months. We have not employed an active hedging program related to our commodity price risk, but are employing
other strategies for managing this risk. In a climate of rising raw material costs, we experience difficulty in raising prices to
shift these higher costs to our customers,

Depreciation expense is expected to be higher during 2003 as a result of the reduction in depreciable lives for certain
assets used in Contico’s manufacturing process. However, many of these assets will become fully depreciated during 2003
since the Contico acquisition occurred in early 1999. Therefore, depreciation expense is expected to reduce again in 2004 and
subsequent years,
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Selling, general and administrative expenses are expected to remain stable as a percentage of sales from 2002 levels,
Cost reduction efforts are ongoing throughout the Company. Our corporate office has relocated, and we expect to maintain
modest headcount and rental costs for that office. We have completed the process of transferring most back-office functions of
our Wilen subsidiary from Atlanta, Georgia to St. Louis, Missouri, the headquarters of Contico. We are nearly complete with
the process of transferring most back office functions of the GlitYMicrotron subsidiary in Wrens, Georgia to St. Louis, Missouri.
We will evaluate the possibility of further consolidation of administrative processes at our subsidiaries.

We have announced or committed to several restructuring plans involving our operations. Dunng the second and third
quarters of 2002, respectively, we announced plans to consolidate the Warson and Earth City facilities of Contico into the
Bridgeton facility. All of these facilities are located in the St. Louis, Missouri area. The move from our Warson Road facility is
complete. The move from our Earth City facility will require approximately $1.9 million of incremental cash, $1.6 million in
the form of capital expenditures, mainly for material handling equipment, and $0.3 million to move inventory and equipment,
This cash will be spent in 2003. The large expense charges recorded during the second and third quarters of 2002 related to
these facilities were mainly to accrue non-cancelable lease payments for these facilities (i.e., non-incremental cash). We expect
the Contico business unit to benefit from significantly lower overhead costs in 2003 and beyond as a result of these
consolidations. Further facility consolidations with respect to the Contico operations are under review.

During October 2002, we also announced the planned closure of four Woods manufacturing facilities in Indiana,
necessitated by our decision to fully outsource our supply of electrical consumer corded products to lower cost sources. Prior to
the plant closures, Woods already sourced approximately half of its finished goods from vendors. The plant closures took place
in December 2002. While outsourcing of the Woods’ products is a cost-saving measure, Woods expects to maintain higher
inventory levels, especially during mid-2003, as a result of this move.

We have committed to other restructuring alternatives as well, most of which center around consolidation of operations
into fewer facilities. Certain of these projects under consideration could require more significant levels of incremental cash for
both capital expenditures and moving and relocation costs. Expected capital needs for these projects may reach $6.0 million,
which would be spent mainly in early- to mid-2003.

We continue to pursue a sirategy of developing the Katy Maintenance Group (KMG). By the latter portion of 2003,
we expect to have operational centralized customer service functions for Continental, Glit, Wilen and Disco, allowing
customers to order products from any division on one purchase order. We believe that operating these businesses as a cohesive
unit will improve customer service in that our customers’ purchasing processes will be simplified, as will follow up on order
status, billing, collection and other related functions. We hope that these steps will increase customer loyalty and help in
attracting new customers and increasing top line sales in future years.

Interest expense in 2003 is expected to be stable to lower than the amount reported in 2002, due primarily to similar or
lower expected debt balances. We cannot predict the future levels of interest rates.

Regarding income tax expense, we did not record the net benefit of any deferred tax benefits as of December 31, 2002.
Given our history of operating losses, along with guidance provided by the accounting literature covering accounting for
income taxes, we were unable to conclude it is more likely than not that we will be able to generate future taxable income
sufficient to realize the benefits of deferred tax assets carried on our books. Therefore, a full valuation allowance on the net
deferred tax asset position was recorded at December 31, 2002. Therefore, we do not expect to record the benefit of any losses
or deferred tax assets that may be generated in 2003.

We are continually evaluating altemnatives relating to divestitures of certain of our businesses. Divestitures present
opportunities to de-leverage our financial position and free up cash for further investments in core activities. On March 6,
2003, we announced that we are exploring the sale of the Woods and Woods Canada businesses. However, there can be ne
assurance that a sale of the Woods and Weods Canada business will be completed. On April 2, 2003, we announced the sale of
GC/Waldom with gross proceeds of $8.3 million. Katy does not expect to record a significant gain or loss during 2003 as a
result of this transaction.

Cautionary Statement Pursuant to Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This report and the information incorporated by reference in this report contain various “forward-looking statements”
as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs of our management, as well as assumptions made by, and information
currently available to, our management. We have based these forward-looking statements on current expectations and
projections about future events and trends affecting the financial condition of our business. These forward-locking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties that may lead to results that differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
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statement made by us or on our behalf, including, among other things:
— Increases in the cost of, or in some cases continuation of the current price levels of, plastic resins, copper, paper
board packaging, and other raw materials.
—  Our inability to reduce product costs, including manufacturing, sourcing, freight, and other product costs.

—  The greater reliance on third parties for our finished goods as we increase the portion of our manufacturing that is
outsourced.

~  QCur inability to reduce administrative costs through consolidation of functions and systems improvements.
—  Our inability to successfully integrate our operations as a result of the facility consolidations.

— QOur inability to sub-lease rented facilities which have been abandoned as a result of consolidation and
restructuring initiatives.

—  Our inability to achieve product price increases, especially as they relate to potentially higher raw material costs.
—  The potential impact of losing lines of business at large retail outlets in the discount and do-it-yourself markets.
—  Competition from foreign competitors.

—  The potential impact of new distribution channels, such as e-commerce, negatively impacting us and our existing
channels.

—  The potential impact of rising interest rates on our Eurodollar-based Credit Agreement.

—  Our inability to meet covenants associated with the Credit Agreement.

— The potential impact of rising costs for insurance for properties and various forms of liabilities.

~ Labor issues, including union activities that require an increase in production costs or lead to a strike, thus
impairing production and decreasing sales. We are also subject to labor relations issues at entities involved in our
supply chain, including both suppliers and those involved in transportation and shipping.

—  Changes in significant laws and government regulations affecting environmental compliance and income taxes.

~  OQOur inability to sell certain assets to raise cash and de-leverage its financial condition.

Words and phrases such as “expects,” “estimates,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “anticipates” and the like are

intended to identify forward-looking statements. The results referred to in forward-looking statements may differ

materially from actual results because they involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. Forward-looking

statements included herein are as of the date hereof and we undertake no obligation to revise or update such statements

to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. All forward
looking statements should be viewed with caution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Qur significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy
included in Part I, ltem 8. Certain of our accounting policies as discussed below require the application of significant judgment
by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating amounts to record in our financial statements. By their
nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty.

Accounts Receivable - We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and adjust credit limits based upon
payment history and the customer’s current credit worthiness, as determined by our review of their current credit information,
We continuously monitor collections and payment from cur customers and maintain a provision for estimated credit losses
based upon our historical experience and any specific customer collection issues that we have identified. While such credit
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losses have historically been within our expectations and the provision established, we cannot guarantee that we will continue to
experience the same credit Joss rates that we have in the past. Since our accounts receivable are concentrated in a relatively few
number of large sized customers, especially our consumer/retail customers, a significant change in the liquidity or financial
position of any one of these customers could have a material adverse impact on the collectibility of our accounts receivable and
our future operating results.

Inventories - We value our inventory at the lower of the actual cost to purchase and/or manufacture the inventory or the
current estimated market value of the inventory. We regularly review inventory quantities on hand and record a provision for
excess and obsolete inventory based primarily on our estimated forecast of product demand and production requirements for the
next twelve months. Our accounting policies state that operating divisions are to identify, at a minimum, those inventory items
that are in excess of either one year’s historical or one year’s forecasted usage, and to use business judgment in determining
which is the more appropriate metric. Those inventory items must then be evaluated on a lower of cost or market basis for
realizability. A significant increase in the demand for our products could result in a short-term increase in the cost of inventory
purchases while a significant decrease in demand could result in an increase in the amount of excess inventory quantities on
hand. Additionally, our estimates of future product demand may prove to be inaccurate, in which case we may have understated
or overstated the provision required for excess and obsolete inventory. In the future, if our inventory is determined to be
overvalued, we would be required to recognize such costs in our cost of goods sold at the time of such determination. Likewise,
if our inventory is determined to be undervalued, we may have over-reported our costs of goods sold in previous periods and
would be required to recognize such additional operating income at the time of sale. Therefore, although we make every effort
to ensure the accuracy of our forecasts of future product demand, any significant unanticipated changes in demand or product
developments could have a significant impact on the value of our inventory and our reported operating results. Cur reserves for
excess and obsolete inventory were $5.8 million and $5.9 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2002 and December 31,
2001,

Impairments of Long-Lived Assets — We regularly review our long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. For assets that are to be held and used, this is
done by comparing undiscounted future cash flows associated with the asset (or asset group) and determining if the carrying
value of the asset (asset group) will be recovered by those cash flows over the remaining useful life of the asset (or of the
primary asset of an asset group). If the future undiscounted cash flows indicate that the carrying value of the asset (asset group)
will not be recovered, then the asset is marked to fair value. We monitor our operations to look for triggering events that may
cause us to perform an impairment analysis. These events include, among others, loss of product lines, poor operating
performance and abandonment of facilities. We determine the lowest level at which cash flows are separately identifiable to
perform the future cash flows tests, and apply the results to the assets related to those separately identifiable cash flows. In
some cases, this may be at the individual asset level, but in other cases, it is more appropriate to perform this testing at a
business unit level (especially when poor operating performance was the triggering event). For assets that are to be disposed of
by sale or by a means other than by sale, the identified asset (or disposal group if a group of assets or entire business unit) is
marked to fair value less costs to sell. In the case of the planned sale of a business unit, SFAS No. 144 indicates that disposal
groups should be reported as discontinued operations on the consolidated financial statements if cash flows of the disposal group
are separately identifiable. SFAS No. 144 has had an impact on the application of accounting for discontinued operations,
making it in general much easier to classify a business unit (disposal group) held for sale as a discontinued operation. The rules
covering discontinued operations prior to SFAS No. 144 generally required that an entire segment of a business be planned for
disposal in order to classify it as a discontinued operation. We recorded significant impairments of long-lived assets during
2002 in accordance with SFAS No. 144, which are discussed in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I1., Item
8. We also recorded amounts as discontinued operations in 2002 (and for all periods presented), which are detailed further in
Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deferred income taxes - We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax assets also include federal,
state and foreign net operating loss carry forwards, primarily due to the significant operating losses incurred during recent years,
as well as various tax credits. We regularly review our deferred income tax assets for recoverability taking into consideration
historical net income (losses), projected future income (losses) and the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary
differences. We establish a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that these assets will not be recovered. As of
December 31, 2002, we had a valuation allowance of $42.8 million. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we increased
the valuation allowance by $29 million primarily to provide a full reserve against our net deferred tax asset position. Given the
negative evidence provided by our history of operating losses, and considering guidance provided by SFAS No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes, we were unable to conclude that our deferred tax assets would be recoverable through the generation of future
taxable income. We will continue to evaluate our valuation allowance requirements based on future operating results and
business acquisitions and dispositions, and we may adjust our deferred tax asset valuation allowance. Such changes in our
deferred tax asset valuation allowance will be reflected in current operations through our income tax provision.
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Workers’ compensation and preduct liabilities — We make payments for workers’ compensation and product liability
claims generally through the use of a third party claims administraior. We have purchased insurance coverage for large claims
over our self-insured retention levels. Our workers’ compensation and health benefit liabilities are developed using actuarial
methods based upon historical data for payment patterns, cost trends, and other relevant factors. In order to consider a range of
possible gutcomes, we have estimated our liabilities in this area on several different sources of loss development factors,
including those from the insurance industry, the manufacturing industry, and factors developed in-house. Our general approach
is to identify a reasonable, logical conclusion, typically in the middle range of the possible cutcomes. While we believe that our
liabilities for workers’ compensation and product liability claims as of December 31, 2002, are adequate and that the judgment
applied is appropriate, such estimated liabilities could differ materially from what will actually transpire in the future.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer amortized on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life,
but will be tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever indicators of impairment arise. The goodwill impairment
test, which is based on fair value, is to be performed on a reporting unit level. A reporting unit is defined as an operating
segment determined in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,
or one level lower. Goodwill will no longer be allocated to other long-lived assets for impairment testing under SFAS No. 121,
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of. Additionally, goodwill on
equity method investments will no longer be amortized; however, it will continue to be tested for impairment in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 18, The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock.
Under SFAS No. 142 intangible assets with indefinite lives will not be amortized. Instead they will be carried at the lower of
cost or fair value and tested for impairment at least annually or when indications of impairment arise. All other recognized
intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.

SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 although goodwill on business
combinations consummated after July 1, 2001 will not be amortized. The Company has adopted the non-amortization
provisions of SFAS No. 142 with regards to goodwill that has been reported on the balance sheets historically. The amount of
goodwill amortization not recorded during the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 as a result of the adoption of the non-
amortization provisions was $1.9 million, before tax. Negative goodwill, which was created with the acquisition of Woods
Industries in December 1996 and was amortized over five years, was fully amortized by December 31, 2001; therefore, the
adoption of the non-amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 had no impact on negative goodwill.

See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part II, Item 8. for further discussion of the
final transition to SFAS No. 142.

In August 2001, the FASB released SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.
Previously, two accounting models existed for long-lived assets to be disposed of, as SFAS No. 121 did not address the
accounting for a segment of a business accounted for as a discontinued operation under APB Opinion 30, Reporting the Results
of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions. This statement establishes a single model based on the framework of SFAS No. 121. This
statement also broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions. Katy anticipates that
the impiementation of SFAS No. 144 could have a future impact on its financial reporting as 1) Katy is considering divestitures
of certain businesses and exiting certain facilities and operational activities, 2) the statement broadens the presentation of
discontinued operations, and 3) the Company anticipates that impairments of long-lived assets may be necessitated as a result
of the above contemplated actions. If certain divestitures occur, they may qualify as discontinued operations under SFAS No.
144, whereas they would not have met the requirements of discontinued operations treatment under APB Opinion 30.
However, the Company is not able to conclude that it is probable that these divestitures will occur within one year, and
recognizes that significant changes to plans or intentions may occur. Therefore, these operations have not been classified as
discontinued operations. See Notes 5 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy included in Part I, Item 8. for
further discussion of impairments and discontinued operations.

In April 2002, the FASB released SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections. SFAS No. 145 rescinds and makes technical corrections regarding various
topics, including early extinguishments of debt and sale-leaseback transactions. The statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after May 15, 2002. We intend to adopt SFAS No. 145 on January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 145 will require that certain
costs and losses associated with early extinguishments of debt be reported as interest expense as a component of income from
continuing operations, whereas the prior accounting guidance provided for classification so these costs and losses as
extraordinary items, reported separate on a tax-effected basis after income from continuing operations. The adoption of SFAS
No. 145 will require that we reclassify a2 $1.2 million after-tax ($1.8 miilion pre-tax) write-off of previously capitalized debt
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costs that occurred during 2001 to interest expense in income from continuing operations during 2001, as opposed to its
previous classification as an extraordinary item. Future write-offs of capitalized debt costs would be classified in interest
expense in a similar manner. We anticipate writing off approximately $1.2 million of debt costs, pre-tax, during the first quarter
of 2003, associated with the refinancing of our debt obligations through the Fleet Credit Agreement. These costs will be
reported as interest expense as a component of income from continuing operations.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, dccounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. The
standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at
the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by the standard include lease termination costs
and certain employee severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing, or other exit
or disposal activity. Previous accounting guidance was provided by EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). SFAS
No. 146 replaces EITF Issue No. 94-3. The new standard is effective for exit or restructuring activities initiated after December
31, 2002. We are considering a number of restructuring and exit activities at the current time, including plant closings and
consolidation of facilities. Since these activities will be initiated afier December 31, 2002, this statement could have a
significant impact on the timing of the recognition of these costs in our statements of operations, tending to spread the costs out
as opposed to recognition of a large portion of the costs at the time we commit to and communicate such restructuring and exit
plans. Katy is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 146 in 2003. Qur operating plans call for additional restructuring
and facility consolidation activity during 2003 and 2004, concerned mainly with further consolidation of St. Louis, Missouri
plastics manufacturing facilities, and restructuring and consolidation of certain abrasives manufacturing facilities. Current
estimates indicate $7.0 million to $7.5 million will be expensed in 2003 and 2004 associated with these activities. The largest
share of these costs would have been expensed as incurred under either the old or new rules, as they pertain to moving of
inventory and equipment, and cleaning and refurbishing facilities. The new rules could potentially push the recognition of a
portion of the costs, related to an estimated $2.0 million non-cancelable lease liability, from 2003 to 2004, since the facility
would probably not be abandoned until 2004.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This interpretation elaborates on the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued.
It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. We are currently evaluating the interpretation and determining the impact that
this interpretation could have on certain disclosures made regarding Katy’s guarantees, especially those involving SESCO.

In January 2003, the FASB released Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51. The Interpretation clarifies issues regarding the consolidation of entities which may have features
that make it unclear whether consolidation or equity method accounting is appropriate. FIN 46 is generally effective in 2003.
Katy is evaluating FIN 46 to determine any potential impact on its financial reporting.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure. This standard provides aiternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based methods of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to require prominent disclosure in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on
reported results. The new standard is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15 2002. Katy will continue to comply
with the provisions under APB Opinion No. 25, dccounting for Stock Issued to Employees, for accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. The disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 have been reflected in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8.

Environmental and Other Contingencies

The Company and certain of its current and former direct and indirect corporate predecessors, subsidiaries and
divisions are involved in remedial activities at certain present and former locations and have been identified by the EPA, state
environmental agencies and private parties as potentially responsible parties (PRPs) at a number of hazardous waste disposal
sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (Superfund Act) or equivalent state
laws and, as such, may be liable for the cost of cleanup and other remedial activities at these sites. Responsibility for cleanup
and other remedial activities at a Superfund site is typically shared among PRPs based on an allocation formula. Under the
federal Superfund statute, parties could be held jointly and severally liable, thus subjecting them to potential individual liability
for the entire cost of cleanup at the site. Based on its estimate of allocation of liability among PRPs, the probability that other
PRPs, many of whom are large, solvent, public companies, will fully pay the costs apportioned to them, currently available
information conceming the scope of contamination, estimated remediation costs, estimated legal fees and other factors, the
Company has recorded and accrued for indicated environmental liabilities amounts that it deems reasonable and believes that
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any liability with respect to these matters in excess of the accrual will not be material. The ultimate costs will depend on a
number of factors and the amount currently accrued represents management’s best current estimate of the total cost to be
incurred. The Company expects this amount to be substantially paid over the next one to four years.

The most significant environmental matter in which the Company is currently involved relates to the W.J. Smith site.
In 1993, the EPA initiated a Unilateral Administrative Order Proceeding under Section 7003 of the RCRA against W.J. Smith
and Katy. The proceeding requires certain actions at the W.J. Smith site and certain off-site areas, as well as development and
implementation of additional cleanup activities to mitigate off-site releases. In December 1995, W.J. Smith, Katy and USEPA
agreed to resolve the proceeding through an Administrative Order on Consent under Section 7003 of RCRA. Pursuant to the
Crder, W.J. Smith is currently implementing a cleanup to mitigate off-site releases.

In December 1996, Banco del Atlantico, a bank located in Mexico, filed a lawsuit against Woods, a subsidiary of
Katy, and against certain past and then-present officers and directors and former owners of Woods, alleging that the defendants
participated in a violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) Act involving allegedly fraudulently
obtained loans from Mexican banks, including the plaintiff, and “money laundering” of the proceeds of the illegal enteiprise.
All of the foregoing is alleged to have occurred prior to Katy’s purchase of Woods. The plaintiff also alleged that it made loans
to an entity controlled by certain past officers and directors of Woods based upon fraudulent representations. The plaintiff
seeks to hold Woods liable for its alleged damages directly, and under principles of respondeat superior and successor liability.
The plaintiff is claiming damages in excess of $24.0 million and is requesting treble damages under RICO. Because certain
threshold procedural and jurisdictional issues have not yet been fully adjudicated in this litigation, it is not possible at this time
for the Company to reasonably determine an ocutcome or accurately estimate the range of potential exposure. Katy may have
recourse against the former owner of Woods and others for, among other things, violations of covenants, representations and
warranties under the purchase agreement through which Katy acquired Woods, and under state, federal and commeon law. In
addition, the purchase price under the purchase agreement may be subject to adjustment as a result of the claims made by
Banco del Atlantico or other issues relating to the litigation. The extent or limit of any such adjustment cannot be predicted at
this time. An adverse judgment in this matter could have a material impact on Xaty’s liquidity and financial position if the
Company were not able to exercise recourse against the former owner of Woeds.

Katy also has a number of product liability and workers’ compensation claims pending against it and its subsidiaries.
Many of these claims are proceeding through the litigation process and the final outcome will not be known until a settlement is
reached with the claimant or the case is adjudicated. The Company estimates that it can take up to 10 years from the date of the
injury to reach a final outcome on certain claims. With respect to the product liability and workers’ compensation claims, Katy
has provided for its share of expected losses beyond the applicable insurance coverage, including those incurred but not
reported to the Company or its insurance providers, which are developed using actuarial techniques. Such accruals are
developed using currently available claim information, and represent management’s best estimates. The ultimate cost of any
individual claim can vary based upon, among other factors, the nature of the injury, the duration of the disability period, the
length of the claim period, the jurisdiction of the claim and the nature of the final outcome.

Although we believe that these actions individually and in the aggregate are not likely to have a material adverse effect
on the Company, further costs could be significant and will be recorded as a charge to operations when such costs become
probable and reasonably estimable.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk associated with changes in interest rates relates primarily to our debt obligations and a
preferred interest in one of our subsidiaries (which was redeemed as of February 3, 2003). We currently do not use derivative
financial instruments relating to this exposure. Our interest obligations on outstanding debt at December 31, 2002, were
indexed from short-term Eurodollar rates.

The following table presents as of December 31, 2002, our financial instruments, rates of interest and indications of fair
value:

Expected Maturity Dates
(Thousands of Dollars)

ASSETS
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Tofal Fair Value

Temporary cash investments
Fixed rate $ - $ - $- $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 -
Average interest rate - - - - - - - -

INDEBTEDNESS

Fixed rate debt $ 700 % - $- 5 - $- P - $ 700 § 700
Average interest rate 7.14% - - - - - 7.14% -

Variable interest rate $ - $ - $ - $44,751 § - $ - $ 44751 $ 44,751
Average interest rate 3.86% 3.86% 3.86% 3.86% - - 3.86% -

Fixed rate obligation $ - $ - $ - $16,400 $ - $ - $ 16,400 $ 9,840
Average interest rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% - - 8.00% -

On February 3, 2003, the Company refinanced its variable interest rate indebtedness and entered into the Fleet Credit
Agreement. The Fleet Credit Agreement provides for a $20 million term loan, with 20 quarterly payments of $0.7 million, and a
$5.7 million final payment in 2008. The remainder of the borrowings are covered under a revolving credit facility. Rates of
interest are variable and are based on short-term LIBOR rates. Therefore, we expect that the fair value of this indebtedness in
future periods will approximate its carrying value. Coincident with this transaction, the Company redeemed early, at a 40%
discount, the remaining preferred interest in Contico, which, as disclosed above, had a stated value of $16.4 million. Katy
utilized approximately $9.8 million (plus $0.2 million for payment of accrued distributions) of the proceeds from the Fleet
Credit Agreement funding for this purpose. Therefore, it was determined that the fair value of this instrument at December 31,
2002, was $9.8 million.
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Itern 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILTY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Katy Industries, Inc. is responsible for the accuracy and internal consistency of all information contained in
this annual report, including the Consolidated Financial Statements. Management has followed those generally accepted
accounting principles that it believes to be most appropriate to the circumstances of the Company, and has made what it believes
to be reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates where necessary.

Katy Industries, Inc. operates under a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that its
financial records are accurate, that the assets of the Company are protected and that the financial statements fairly present the
financial position and results of operations of the Company. The internal accounting controls system is tested, monitored and
revised as necessary.

Three directors of the Company, not members of management, serve as the Audit Committee of the Beard of Directors and are
the principal means through which the Board oversees performance of the financial reporting duties of management. The Audit
Committee meets with management and the Company’s independent auditors several times a year to review the results of the
external audit of the Company and to discuss plans for future audits. At these meetings, the Audit Committee also mests
privately with the independent auditors to assure its unrestricted access to them.

The Company’s independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, audited the financial statements prepared by the
management of Katy Industries, Inc. Their opinion cn these financial statements is presented below.

/S8/C. Michael Jacobi /S/ Amir Rosenthal
C. Michael Jacobi Amir Rosenthal
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and Secretary

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Katy Industries, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and cash flows, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Katy Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for cur opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142. Also as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for discontinued operations to conform to Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,

/S/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
April 11, 2003
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KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002 and 2001
{Thousands of Dollars)

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

ASSETS

2002

4,842

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,806 and $2,762 58,913

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Other current assets

Current assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS:

Geodwill

Intangibles

Deferred income taxes

Equity method investment in unconsolidated affiliate
Other

Non-current assets of discontinued operations

Total other assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Less - Accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment
Total assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

57,967

1,942
5,970

129,634

11,211
25,491

7,306
12,342
3,100
59,450

—c i e

3,180
14,707
143,089

160,976

(74,083)

86,893

$ 275,977
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2001

$ 7836
67,602
53,330

8,243
2,619
18,306

157,936

13,571
32,630
2,278
7,011
12,825
11,942

80,257

—

3,053
16,206
152,150

171,409

(61,647)

105,762

$ 347,955



KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2002 and 2001
(Thousands of Dollars, except Per Share Data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOI DERS’ EQUITY

2002 2001
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 37,058 $ 32,923
Accrued compensation 7214 6,442
Accrued expenses 47,712 41,440
Current maturities, long-term debt 700 14,619
Revolving credit agreement 44,751 57,000
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 2,444 3,155
Total current liabilities 139,879 155,579
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities - 12,474
OTHER LIABILITIES 17,526 4,933
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - 705
Total liabilities 157,405 173,691
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 19 and 22)
PREFERRED INTEREST OF SUBSIDIARY . 16,400 16,400
STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
15% Convertible Preferred Stock, $100 par value, authorized
1,200,000 shares, issued and outstanding 805,000 shares, liquidation
value $70,000 80,696 69,560
Common stock, $1 par values; authorized 35,000,000;
issued 9,822,204 shares 9,822 9,822
Additional paid-in capital 46,701 58,314
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,046) (4,625)
Unearned compensation - (106)
{Accumulated deficit) retained earnings (11,773) 44 976
Treasury stock, at cost, 1,460,027
and 1,430,621 shares, respectively (20,228) (20,077)
Total stockholders' equity 102,172 157,864
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $275,977 $347,955.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

2002 2001 2000
Net sales $ 459,99 $ 460,176 $ 523,639
Cost of goods sold 381,846 395,789 433,541
Gross profit 78,144 64,387 90,098
Selling, general and administrative expenses (66,803) (74,424) (82,785)
Impairments of long-lived assets ‘ (21,204) (47,469) -
Severance, restructuring and related charges (19,155) (13,380) (2,651)
Loss on SESCO joint venture transaction (6,010) - -
Operating (loss) income (35,028) (70,886) 4,662
Equity in income (loss) of unconsoclidated affiliate - 295 72 61)
Interest (6,046) (10,822) (14,399)
Other, net (407) (604) 453
Loss before income taxes (41,186) (82,240) (9,345)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes from continuing operations (8,612) 20,647 3,275
Loss from continuing operations before distributions on preferred (49,798) (61,583) (6,070)
interest of subsidiary
Distributicns on preferred interest of subsidiary (net of tax) (1,593) (1,274) (1,711)
Loss from continuing operations (51,391) (62,867) (7,781)
(Loss) income from operations of discontinued businesses (net of tax) (6,150) 787 2,323
Gain on sale of discontinued businesses (net of tax) 3,306 - -
Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle (54,235) (62,080) (5,458)
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt (net of tax) - (1,182) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (net of tax) (2,514) - -
Net loss (56,749) (63,262) (5,458)
Gain on early redemption of preferred interest of subsidiary - 6,600 -
Payment in kind of dividends on convertible preferred stock (11,136) (4,459) -
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (67,885 $ (61,121) 3 (5,458)

Loss per share of common stock - Basic and diluted
Loss from continuing operations atiributable to common stockholders $ (7.47) $ (7.30) 3 (0.93)

Discontinued operations (0.34) 0.09 0.28
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (0.14) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30)

®1) S (7?2@1 $ @.@

&

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)
2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (56,749) § (63262) $(5,458)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 2,514 - -
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - 1.182 -
Loss (income) from operations of discontinued businesses 6.150 (787) (2.323)
Gain on sale of discontinued businesses (3,.306) - -
Loss from continuing operations (51,391) (62.867) {7.781)
Adjustments to reconctle loss from continuing operations
to net cash provided by continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization 19,403 20,728 21,608
Amortization of debt issue costs 1,605 728 764
Impairment of long-lived assets 21,204 - 47,469 -
Loss on SESCO transaction 6.010 - -
Equity in {income) loss of unconsolidated affiliates (295) (72) 61
Deferred income taxes 10,521 (22.836) 885
Other 290 670 (1,192)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition/disposition of subsidiaries:
Accounts receivable 8.689 10,753 3,833
Inventories (4.637) 30,757 10,203
Other assets, including current (976) 287 (3311)
Accounts payable 4,135 (13,959 (2,241)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 13,752 (603) (10,149
Net cash provided bv continuing operations 28310 11,055 12,680
Net cash provided by discontinued operations 3.178 7.226 11,521
Net cash provided by operating activities 31,488 18,281 24201
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures of continuing operations (10,065) (11,064) (13,215)
Capital expenditures of discontinued operations (53) (1,502 (981)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 13,947 1,576 -
Collections of notes receivable from sales of subsidiaries 820 137 581
Proceeds from sale of assets 249 _691 904
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4 898 (10.162) (12.711)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (repayments) on revolving loans, prior to Recapitalization

11,300 (17,064)

Repayment of borrowings under revolving loans at Recapitalization - (144,300)
Proceeds on mitial borrowings at Recapitalization -- term loans - 30.000 -
Proceeds on initial borrowings at Recapitalization -- revolving loans - 63.211 -
Net repayments of revovling loans following Recapitalization (12.249) (3.675) -
Repayments of term loans following Recapitalization (26.393) (6.282) -
Direct costs associated with debt facilities (720 (7.471) -
Proceeds from issuance of Convertible Preferred Stock - 70.000 -
Direct costs related to issuance of Convertible Preferred Stock - (4.899) -
Redemption of preferred interest of subsidiary - {9,900) -
Payment of dividends - (629) (2,520)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (262)
Other 42 122 75
Net cash used in financing activities (39.320) (2523) _(19771)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (60) 9 54
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,994) 5.605 (8,227
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7.836 2231 10,458
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period S 4842 % 7836 _§ 2231

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2002 and 2001
(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Note 1. ORGANIZATION OF THE BUSINESS

The Company is a manufacturer and distributor of a variety of commercial and consumer products,
including sanitary maintenance supplies, coated abrasives, stains and electrical and electronic components.
Principal markets are in the United States, Canada, and Europe and include the sanitary maintenance, restaurant
supply, retail, electronics, automotive, and computer markets. These activities are grouped into two primary
reportable segments: Electrical/Electronics and Maintenance Products.

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation Policy - The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of Katy Industries, Inc.
and subsidiaries in which it has a greater than 50% voting interest, collectively “Katy” or the “Company”. All
significant intercompany accounts, profits and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in
affiliates that are not majority-owned and where the Company exercises significant influence are reported using the
equity method.

As part of the continuous evaluation of its operations, Katy has acquired and disposed of certain of its
operating units in recent years. Those which affected the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 are discussed in Notes 6 and 7.

At December 31, 2002, the Company owns 30,000 shares of common stock, a 43% interest, in Sahlman
Holding Company, Inc., (Sahlman) that is accounted for under the equity method. Sahlman is engaged in the
business of harvesting shrimp off the coast of South and Central America and shrimp farming in Nicaragua. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 the investment balances were $7,306 and $7,011, respectively.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue is recognized for all sales, including sales to agents and distributors, at
the time the products are shipped and title has transferred to the customer, provided that a purchase order has been
received or a contract has been executed, there are no uncertainties regarding customer acceptances, the sales price
is fixed and determinable and collectibility is deemed probable. The Company’s standard shipping terms are FOB
shipping point. Sales discounts, returns and allowances, and cooperative advertising are included in net sales, and
the provision for doubtful accounts is included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Additionally, it is
the Company’s practice to include revenues generated from freight billed to customers in net sales with
corresponding freight expense included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Advertising Costs — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs expensed in 2002, 2001
and 2000 were $4.0 million, $8.5 million and $9.7 million, respectively.

Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Customer collections,
receivables aging, and information on customer creditworthiness are continuously monitored, and provisions are
maintained for estimated credit losses based upen historical experience and specific customer collection issues that
are identified.
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Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value, and reserves are established for
excess and obsolete inventory (shown below in the table as “Inventory Reserves™) in order to ensure proper
valuation of inventories. Cost includes materials, labor and overhead costs. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
approximately 35% and 49%, respectively, of Katy’s inventories (excluding discontinued operations) were
accounted for using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method, while the remaining inventories were accounted for using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Current cost, as determined using the FIFO method, exceeded LIFO cost by
$1.3 million and $1.5 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The components of inventories are:

December 31

2002 2001

{Thousands of dollars)

Raw materials $ 19472 $ 22,081
Work in process 1,539 2,016
Finished goods 42,736 35,097
Inventory reserves (5.780) (5.864)
$57,967 $53,330

Goodwill - In connection with certain acquisitions, the Company recorded goodwill representing the cost
of the acquisition in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired. Beginning in 2002, goodwill is not
amortized in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and
Intangible Assets. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed annually in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The fair
value of each reporting which carries goodwill is determined annually, and the fair value is compared to the
carrying value of the reporting unit. ifthe fair value exceeds the carrying value, then no adjustment is necessary. If
the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, appraisals are performed of long-lived assets and
other adjustments are made to arrive at a revised fair value balance sheet. This revised fair value balance sheet
{(without goodwill) is compared to the fair value of the business previously determined, and a revised goodwill
amount is reached. If the indicated goodwill amount meets or exceeds the current carrying value of goodwill, then
no adjustment is required. However, if the result indicates a reduced level of goodwill, an impairment is recorded
to state the goodwill at the revised level. See Note 4 for a discussion of goodwill impairments recognized with the
adoption of SFAS No. 142, which were recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle. Any future impairments of goodwill determined in accordance with
SFAS No. 142 would be recorded as a component of operating income.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over their estimated
useful lives: buildings (10-40 years) generally using the straight-line method; machinery and equipment (3-20
years) using straight-line or composite methods; and leasehold improvements using the straight-line method over
the remaining lease period or useful life, if shorter., Costs for repair and maintenance of machinery and equipment
are expensed as incurred, unless the result significantly increases the useful life or functionality of the asset, in
which case capitalization is considered. Depreciation expense from continuing operations for 2002, 2001 and 2000
was $19.4 million, $20.7 million, and $21.6 million, respectively.

Impairment of Assets - Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment if events or circumstances indicate
the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable through future undiscounted cash flows. If this review
indicates that the carrying value of these assets will not be recoverable, based on future undiscounted net cash flows
from the use or disposition of the asset, the carrying value is reduced to fair value (see Note 5). Katy adopted SFAS
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets on January 1, 2002,

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for using a balance sheet approach known as the liability
method. The liability method accounts for deferred income taxes by applying the statutory tax rates in effect at the
date of the balance sheet to the differences between the book basis and tax basis of the assets and liabilities. The
Company records a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
income tax asset will not be realizable.
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Foreign Currency Translation - The results of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated to U.S.
dollars using the cuirent-rate method. Assets and liabilities are translated at the year end spot exchange rate,
revenue and expenses at average exchange rates and equity transactions at historical exchange rates. Exchange
differences arising on translation are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Where the fair values of Katy’s financial instrument assets and
liabilities differ from their carrying value or Katy is unable to establish the fair value without incurring excessive
costs, appropriate disclosures have been given in the Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements. All other
financial instrument assets and liabilities not specifically addressed are believed to be carried at their fair value in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Stock Options and Other Stock Awards — The Company follows the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, regarding accounting for stock options
and other stock awards. APB Opinion No. 25 dictates a measurement date concept in the determination of
compensation expense related to stock awards including stock options, restricted stock, and stock appreciation
rights. [Katy’s outstanding stock options all have established measurement dates and therefore, fixed plan
accounting is applied, generally resulting in no compensation expense for stock option awards. However, the
Company has issued stock appreciation rights and restricted stock awards and compensation expense has been
recorded for these awards in accordance with relative accounting literature. Compensation expense recorded in
2002, 2001, and 2000 related to stock awards was $0.1 million, $0.4 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for stock options.
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” was issued and, if fully adopted by the Company,
would change the method for recognition of expense related to option grants to employees. Under SFAS No. 123,
cost is based upon the fair value of each option at the date of grant using an option-pricing model that takes into
account as of the grant date the exercise price and expected life of the option, the current price of the underlying
stock and its expected volatility, expected dividends on the stock and the risk-free interest rate for the expected term
of the option. Had compensation cost been determined based on the fair value method of SFAS No. 123, the
Company’s net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts
indicated below. The weighted average fair values of options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $1.89, $2.70 and
$5.02 respectively.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions: dividend yield from 0% to 3.16%; expected volatility ranging from 37.7% to
53.6% for all grants, risk-free interest rates ranging from 3.09% to 6.50% for all grants; and expected lives of five to
ten years for all grants.

For the years ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Net loss attributable to common stockholders, asreported  $§ (67,885) § (61,121} $ (5,458)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under fair
value based method for ail awards, net of
related tax effects 276 695 512

Pro forma net loss $ (68,161) § (61,816) 3 (5970)

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted-as reported $ (811) $ (728 $ (0.65)

Basic and diluted-pro forma $ @14 $§ (@737) § (071

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future amounts.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets. Under SFAS No, 142, goodwill is no longer amortized on a straight line basis over its
estimated useful life, but will be tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever indicators of impatrment
arise. The goodwill impairment test, which is based on fair value, is to be performed on a reporting unit level. A
reporting unit is defined as an operating segment determined in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, or one level lower. Goodwill will no longer be allocated to
other long-lived assets for impairment testing under SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of. Additionally, goodwill on equity method investments will no
longer be amortized; however, it will continue to be tested for impairment in accordance with APB Opinion No. 18,
The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock. Under SFAS No. 142 intangible assets with
indefinite lives will not be amortized. Instead they will be carried at the lower of cost or fair value and tested for
impairment at least annually or when indications of impairment arise. All other recognized intangibie assets will
continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.

SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 although goodwill on
business combinations consummated after July 1, 2001 will not be amortized. The Company has adopted the non-
amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 with regards to goodwill that has been reported on the consolidated
balance sheets historically. The amount of goodwill amortization not recorded during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2002 as a result of the adoption of the non-amortization provisions was $1.2 million, before tax.
Negative goodwill, which was created with the acquisition of Woods Industries in December 1996 and was
amortized over five years, was fully amortized by December 31, 2001; therefore, the adoption of the non-
amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 had no impact on negative goodwill.

See Note 4 for further discussion of the final transition to SFAS No. 142,

In August 2001, the FASB released SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets. Previously, two accounting models existed for iong-lived assets to be disposed of, as SFAS Neo. 121
did not address the accounting for a segment of a business accounted for as a discontinued operation under APB
Opinion 30, Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. This statement establishes a single
model based on the framework of SFAS No. 121. This statement, which was adopted by the Company on January
1, 2002, also broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions. See Notes
5 and 7 for further discussion of impairments and discontinued operations.

In April 2002, the FASB released SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections. SFAS No. 145 rescinds and makes technical
corrections regarding various topics, including early extinguishments of debt and sale-leaseback transactions. The
statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The Company intends to adopt SFAS No. 145
on January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 145 will require that certain costs and losses associated with early extinguishments
of debt be reported as interest expense as a component of income from continuing operations, whereas the prior
accounting guidance provided for classification so these costs and losses as extraordinary items, reported separate on
a tax-effected basis after income from continuing operations. The adoption of SFAS No. 145 will require that the
Company reclassify a write-off of previcusly capitalized debt costs that occurred during 2001 to interest expense in
income from continuing operations during 2001, as opposed to its previous classification as an extraordinary item.
Future write-offs of capitalized debt costs would be classified in interest expense in a similar manner.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities. SFAS No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they
are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by the
standard include lease termination costs and certain employee severance costs that are associated with a
restructuring, discontinued operation, plant closing, or other exit or disposal activity. Previous accounting guidance
was provided by Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).
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SFAS No. 146 replaces EITF Issue No. 94-3. The new standard is effective for exit or restructuring activities
initiated after December 31, 2002. We are considering a number of restructuring and exit activities at the current
time, including plant closings and consolidetion of facilities. Since these activities will be initiated after December
31, 2002, this statement could have a significant impact on the timing of the recognition of these costs in our
statements of operations by extending the period over which these costs are recognized, as opposed to recognition of
a large portion of the costs at the time we commit to such restructuring and exit plans. Katy is required to adopt the
provisions of SFAS No. 146 in 2003. Katy’s operating plans call for additional restructuring and facility
consoclidation activity during 2003 and 2004, concerned mainly with further consclidation of St. Louis, Missouri
plastics manufacturing facilities, and restructuring and consclidation of certain abrasives manufacturing facilities.
The largest share of these costs would have been expensed as incurred under either the old or new rules, as they
pertain to moving of inventory and equipment, and cleaning and refurbishing facilities. The new rules could
potentially shifi the recognition of a non-cancelable lease liability from 2003 to 2004, since the facility will probably
not be abandoned until 2004. ‘

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) Ne. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This
interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations
under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception
of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. Katy has
determined that its disclosures in regards to guarantees are in accordance with FIN Ne. 45.

In January 2003, the FASB released Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities — an Interpretation of ARB No. 51. The Interpretation clarifies issues regarding the consolidation of entities
which may have features that make it unclear whether consolidation or equity method accounting is appropriate.
FIN 46 is generally effective in 2003. Katy is evaluating FIN 46 to determine any potential impact on its financial
reporting.

During December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure. SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the
fair value based methods of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to require prominent
disclosure in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The new standard is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2002. Katy will continue to comply with the provisions of APB Opinicn No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, for accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 148 have been reflected in this Note 2.

Reclassifications - Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 2002
financial statement presentation. See unaudited Note 21 for a further discussion of these reclassifications.
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Note 3. RECAPITALIZATION

On June 28, 2001, Katy announced that it completed a recapitalization of the Company (the
“Recapitalization”). Katy had reached a definitive agreement on June 2, 2001 with KKTY Holding Company, LLC
(KKTY), an affiliate of Kcohlberg Investors 1V, L.P. (Kohlberg) regarding the Recapitalization. On June 28, 2001,
1) Katy stockholders approved proposals to effectuate the Recapitalization at their annual meeting, including
classification of the board of directors into two classes with staggered terms, and 2) Katy, KKTY and a syndicate of
banks agreed to a new credit facility (Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement) to finance the future operations of Katy.
Under the terms of the Recapitalization, directors designated by KKTY represent a majority of Katy’s Board of
Directors. Pursuant to the shareholder vote at the annual meeting, four of the elected directors are considered Class [
directors, and were elected for one year terms. These directors include C. Michael Jacobi, the President and CEQO,
and three directors who were not designated by KKTY. Five of the elected directors are considered Class II
directors, and will serve a two year term. All of the Class II directors are designees of KKTY.

Under the terms of the Recapitalization, KKTY purchased 700,000 shares of newly issued preferred stock,
$100 par value per share (Convertible Preferred Stock), which is convertible into 11,666,666 common shares, for an
aggregate purchase price of $70.0 million. See Note 10. The Recapitalization allowed Katy to retire obligations it
had under its former revolving credit agreement, which was agented by Bank of America (Bank of America Credit
Agreement). In connection with the Recapitalization, Katy entered into the Deuische Bank Credit Agreement,
agented by Bankers Trust Company, a subsidiary of Deutsche Bank. See Note 9.

Also in connection with the Recapitalization, the Company entered into an agreement with the holder of the
preferred interest in Contico International, L.L.C. (Contico), a subsidiary of Katy, to redeem at a 40% discount
approximately half of such interest, plus $0.3 million of accrued distributions thereon. The stated value prior to the
recapitalization was $32.9 million. See Note 13. Katy utilized approximately $10.2 million of the proceeds from
the issuance of the Convertible Preferred Stock for this purpose. The difference between the amount paid on
redemption and the stated value of preferred interest redeemed ($6.7 million, net of tax) was recognized as an
increase to Additional Paid-in Capital on the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders” Equity. This gain is also
shown on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as an amount included in net income attributable to common
shareholders. The holder of the remaining preferred interest retained approximately 50% of the original preferred
interest, or a stated value of $16.4 million. See Note 24. Following is a summary of the sources and uses of funds
from, and in connection with, the Recapitalization:

(Thousands of Dollars}

Sources:

Sale of Convertible Preferred Stock $ 70,000

Borrowings under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement 93,211
3 163,211

Uses:

Paydown of principal obligations under the Bank of America Credit Agreement  $ 144,300

Payment of accrued interest under the Bank of America Credit Agreement 624

Purchase of one-half of preferred interest of Contico at a discount 9,900

Payment of accrued distributions on one-half of preferred interest of Contico 322

Certain costs associated with the recapitalization 8,065
$ 163,211
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Note 4. GOCDWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During 2002, Katy completed the transition to SFAS No. 142 with regard to accounting and reporting of
goodwill and other intangible assets.

The first phase in the determination of a potential transitional goodwill impairment was completed in the
second quarter of 2002. Valuations of six Katy reporting units’ carrying values were completed. Those reporting
units were Contico, Glit/Disco, Inc. (Disce), Duckback Products, Inc., Gemtex, Ltd, Loren Products (Loren) and
GC/Waldom Electronics, Inc. (GC/Waldom). The analyses indicated that the fair values were less than the carrying
values for three of the six reporting units: Contico, Loren and GC/Waldom. The second phase in the determination
of the transitional goodwill impairment was completed by September 30, 2002. Independent appraisals were
obtained on the relevant reporting units' property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The fair value balance
sheets as of December 31, 2001 which resulted from this work indicated that transitional goodwill impairment
charges of $4.2 million (pre-tax) were required at the Loren and GC/Waldom reporting units. The goodwill of the
Contico business unit, which was alsc evaluated in the second phase of the project, was determined to have a
carrying value that was not in excess of fair value as of December 31, 2001. The transitional goodwill impairment
of $4.2 million (pre-tax) is shown in the Consolidated Statements of Cperations as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Loren Products is part of the Maintenance Products group
and GC/Waldom is a discontinued operation (formerly part of the Electrical/Electronics group). In accordance with
SFAS No. 142, Katy evaluated the carrying value of goodwill balances at the reporting units as of December 31,
2002, and determined that no further impairments were required.

As part of the project to implement SFAS No. 142, certain changes to the carrying value of goodwill at
the Loren Products and Disco reporting units were made, relating to 1) reclassification of formerly recognized work
force intangibles to goodwill, and 2) reclassification of formerly recognized goedwill to a non-compete intangible.
Below is a summary of activity in the goodwill accounts during the twelve-month period ending December 31, 2002
(in thousands):

Total from
Maintenance  Continuing  Discontinued
Products Operations Operations Total

Goodwill, net, at December 31, 2001 $ 13,571 $ 13,571 $ 1,554 $ 15,125
Net changes to carrying value 276 276 - 276

Adjusted carrying value 13,847 13,847 1,554 15,401
Transitional impairment charge (2,636) (2,636) (1,554) (4,190)

Goodwill, net, at December 31, 2002 $ 11,211 $ 11,211 $ - $ 11,211

The Company adopted the non-amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 during the first quarter of 2002.
Below is a calculation of earnings, removing the impact of amortization recorded on goodwill and negative goodwill
(shown net of tax):
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2002 2000 2000

Reported net loss from continuing operations § (51,391) $§ (62,867) $ (7,781)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax - 1,348 1,602
Deduct: Negative goodwill amortization - {1,704) (1,704)

Adjusted net loss from continuing operations $ (51,391) $§ (63,223) § (7.883)
Reported net (loss) income from discontinued businesses $ (61500 $ 787 $ 2,323
Add back: Goodwill amortization - 88 . 117

Adjusted net (loss) income from discontinued businesses 6,150) 875 2,440
Gain on sale of discontinued businesses 3,306 - -
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (1,182) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (2,514) - -
Adjusted net loss from continuing operations (51,391) (63,223) (7,883)

Adjusted net loss (56,749) (63,530) (5.443)
Gain on early redemption of preferred interest in subsidiary - 6,600 -
Paid-in-kind dividends (11,136) (4,459) -

Adjusted net loss attributable to common sharcholders $ (67,885) § (61,38%) § (5443)

Below is a presentation of pro forma earnings per share, removing the impact of amortization on
goodwill and negative goodwill (net of tax):

2002 2001 2000
Reported net loss from continuing operations 3 6.14) §$ (749) § (0.93)
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax - 0.16 0.19
Deduct: Negative goodwill amortization - (0.20) (0.20)
Adjusted net loss from continuing operations 3 (6.14) § (7.53) $ (0.94)
Reported net (loss) income from discontinued businesses b (0.73) $ 0.09 $ 0.28
Add back: Goodwill amortization ' - 0.01 0.01
Adjusted net (loss) income from discontinued businesses (0.73) - 010 0.29
Gain on sale of discontinued businesses 0.39 - -
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - 0.14) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (0.30) - -
Adjusted net loss from continuing operations (6.14) (7.53) (0.94)
Adjusted net loss (6.78) (7.57) (0.65)
Gain on early redemption of preferred interest in subsidiary - 0.79 -
Paid-in-kind dividends (1.33) (0.53) -
Adjusted net loss attributable to common shareholders g 81 § (731) & (063)

During 2002, Katy reviewed its intangible assets for impairment purposes, and determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 144 that the carrying value of a customer list intangible asset at the Contico business unit would not
be recovered by projected future undiscounted cash flows. Specifically, Katy determined that the portion of the
customer list intangible associated with the Consumer/Retail side of the Contico business required impairment. As a
result, an impairment charge of $3.6 million was recorded during 2002, reducing the carrying value of the customer
list intangible to $14.8 million. Fair value was determined on a discounted cash flow basis, assuming an estimated
cash flow stream resulting from the customer list. This charge is recorded in the line entitled "Impairments of Long-
Lived Assets" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Contico is part of the Maintenance Products group.
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Also during 2002, Katy recorded $0.7 million impairment on the trademark intangible asset at the Wilen Products,
Inc. (Wilen) business unit. Poor performance at Wilen in recent years has driven Wilen’s profitability to very low
levels (including some years with operating losses). This performance continued in 2002, and it was determined that
these performance levels negated the relative value of the trademark intangible.

During 2001, the Company recorded an impairment of certain long-lived assets, including goodwill and
certain intangible assets, of its mop, broom and brush division. The division had experienced consistently poor
operating results for a number of periods, causing the Company to evaluate the division for impairment. While the
Company had plans to improve the division’s performance, the then current sales levels and operating results did not
suppori the pre-impairment carrying value of certain long-lived assets that would not be recoverable through
forecasted future undiscounted cash flows. A determination of the division’s fair value was made using the income
approach, specifically, a discounted cash flow analysis using the same cash flow stream used to initially determine
that an impairment existed. The adjustment to record the impaired long-lived assets at fair value amounted to a
reduction of goodwill of $21.6 million and a reduction to other intangible assets of $11.4 million, for a total
reduction of the division’s carrying value of $33.0 million.

Following is detailed information regarding Katy's intangible assets (in thousands):

December 31,

December 31,

2002 2001

Trade Names 3 8,916 $ 9,668
Customer lists 21,447 25,035
Patents 4,283 4,232
Non-compete agreements 1,000 -
Work force - 1,480
Other - 27

Subtotal 35,646 40,442
Accumulated amortization (10,155) (7,812)

Intangible assets, net $ 25,491 $ 32,630

All of Katy’s intangible asses are definite-lived intangibles. Katy recorded amortization expense on
intangible assets of $2.6 million, $2.7 million and $3.1 million in 2002, 2041 and 2000, respectively.

Estimated aggregate amortization expense related to intangible assets is (in thousands):

2003 $1,920
2004 1,696
2005 1,696
2006 1,696
2007 1,696

Note 5. IMPAIRMENTS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During 2002, certain manufacturing equipment assets at the Contico business unit were impaired, resulting in
charges of $15.2 million. These impairments were the result of management’s analysis of the projected
undiscounted future cash flows associated with the assets, and the related conclusion that the carrying values of the
assets would net be recovered by future cash flows. Approximately 83% of Contico’s impaired assets were molds
and tooling equipment (which are used to shape specific products in the molding process), the majority of which
were associated with consumer/retail products of Contico. Restructuring initiatives, and their impact on the future
use of certain assets, triggered approximately $2.6 million of the impairments, making up most of the other 17% of
impaired assets. Of this $2.6 million, $2.4 million of assets that had been used at the closed Warson Road plant, and
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$0.2 million of assets of the Earth City, Missouri plant (both of which are in the St. Louis, Missouri area), were
impaired as a result of the consolidation of those plants to the Bridgeton, Missouri plant.

Also during 2002, the Wilen business unit recorded an impairment charge of $1.2 million related to certain of
its property, plant and equipment, as a result of the decision to reduce costs by sourcing product from outside
vendors. The Company is continuing its evaluation of its various operating units and therefore additional
impairments of long-lived assets may be recorded in future periods.

The Woods business unit recorded asset impairments during 2002 of $0.4 miilion associated with the
shutdown of all U.S. manufacturing operations, which occurred in December 2002, impacting the future use and
cash flow to be generated by certain assets located in Indiana.

During 2001, the Company recorded an impairment of all of the long-lived assets of the waste-to-energy
facility previously operated by Savannah Energy Systems Company (SESCO) (See Note 8). SESCO’s long-lived
assets consisted of equity contributions that SESCO was required to make as a result of contractual obligations
through 1993, which had a carrying value of $8.5 million, and certain property, plant and equipment, which had a
carrying value of approximately $1.3 million. Upcen determining that future undiscounted cash flows would not be
adequate to cover the carrying amount of long-lived assets, the Company determined that the long-lived assets had a
fair value of zero. The fair value estimate is based on attempts to dispose of SESCO.

Also during 2001, the Company recorded other impairments of long-lived assets totaling $4.7 million.
These impairments were primarily the result of management decisions regarding the retirement of certain capitalized
assets.

Note 6.  DISPOSITIONS
See Note 7 for dispositions accounted for as discontinued operations.

On May 3, 2001, Katy sold the Thorsen Tools business for $2.5 million, including a note receivable for
$1.0 million, due over five years. The company recognized losses on impairments of goodwill of $0.8 million and a
write-down on the value of inventory through cost of goods sold of $0.2 million in connection with the sale.

Note 7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Two of Katy’s operations have been classified as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2002, and for
all periods shown, in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

Hamilton Precision Metals, L.P. (Hamilton) was sold on October 31, 2002, with Katy collecting gross
proceeds of $13.9 million. These proceeds were used primarily to pay off the remaining balance of the Company’s
term debt. The Company may receive additional payments in the future dependent upon the occurrence of certain
events associated with Hamilton’s financial performance. These contingent amounts have not been recorded as
receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. A gain on the sale of Hamilton of $3.3 million was recognized as a
result of the sale.

GC/Waldom was held for sale at December 31, 2002 and was sold on April 2, 2003.

Both Hamilton and GC/Waldom had been presented as part of the Electrical/Electronics group for segment
reporting purposes. Management and the board of Katy determined that these businesses are not core to the
Company’s long-range strategic goals.

The historical operating results have been segregated as discontinued operations on the Consolidated

Statements of Operations and the related assets and liabilities have been separately identified on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Following is a summary of the major asset and liability categories for the discontinued operations:
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December 31, December 31,

2002 2001
Current assets
Trade accounts receivable, net 3 1,738 3 5,207
Inventories 4,164 12,611
Other 68 488
$ 5,970 18,306
Non-current assets - -
Goodwill $ - $ 1,554
Net properties 3,100 10,388

8 3,100 3 11,542

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 3 1,415 5 1,381
Cther 1,029 1,774
$ 2,444 5 3,155

Non-current liabilities
Post-retirement benefit obligations 3 - $ 705

Selected financial data for discontinued operations is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Net sales $ 32,891 $ 42466  $ 52451
Pre-tax profit (loss) $ (48100 $ 1,051 $ 3,576
Pretax gain on sale of discontinued operations $ 5,462 3 - h) -

At December 31, 2002, Katy anticipated the sale of GC/Waldom in early 2003, and indications were that a
book loss was probable. Therefore, the carrying value of the net assets of GC/Waldom were reduced by $6.2
million via a charge in discontinued operations as of December 31, 2002.

Katy anticipates that the implementation of SFAS No. 144 could have a future impact on its financial
reporting as 1) Katy is considering divestitures of certain businesses and exiting of certain facilities and operational
activities, 2) the statement broadens the presentation of discontinued operations, and 3) the Company anticipates
that impairments of long-lived assets may be necessitated as a result of the above contemplated actions. If certain
divestitures occur, they may qualify as discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144, whereas they would not have
met the requirements of discontinued operations treatment under APB Opinion 30. However, the Company is not
able to conclude that it is probable that these divestitures will occur within one year, and recognizes that significant
changes to plans or intentions may occur. Therefore, these operations have not been classified as discontinued
operations.

Note 8. SESCO PARTNERSHIP

On April 29, 2002, Katy and Savannah Energy Systems Company (SESCO), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with Montenay Power Corporation and its affiliates (Montenay)
that turned over the operation of SESCOQO's waste-to-energy facility to Montenay. The Company entered into this
agreement as a result of evaluations of SESCO's business. First, Katy determined that SESCO was not a core
component of the Company's long-term business strategy. Moreover, Katy did not feel it had the management
expertise to deal with certain risks and uncertainties presented by the operation of SESCO's business, given that
SESCC was the Company's only waste-to-energy facility. Katy had explored options for divesting SESCO for a
number of years, and management felt that this transaction offered a reasonable strategy to exit this business.
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The partnership, with Montenay's leadership, assumed SESCC's position in various contracts relating to
the facility's operation. Under the agreement, SESCO contributed its assets and liabilities {except for its liability
under the loan agreement with the Resource Recovery Development Authority (the Authority) of the City of
Savannah and the related receivable under the service agreement with the Authority) to the partnership. While
SESCO will maintain a 99% interest as a limited partner, Montenay will have most of the day to day responsibility
for operations of the partnership, and accordingly, the partnership will not be consolidated. Katy agreed to pay
Montenay $6.6 million over the span of seven years under a note payable as part of the parmership and related
agreements. Certain amounts may be due to SESCQ upon expiration of the service agreement in 2008; also,
Montenay may purchase SESCO's interest in the partnership at that time. Katy has not recorded any amounts
receivable or other assets relating to amounts that may be received at the time the Service Agreement expires, given
their uncertainty.

The Company made a payment of $0.8 million in July 2002 on the $6.6 million note. The table below
schedules the remaining payments:

2003 § 1,000
2004 1,000
2005 1,050
2006 1,100
2007 1,160

2008 550

5 5800

The Company recognized in the first quarter of 2002 a charge of $6.0 million, consisting of 1) the
discounted value of the $6.6 million note, 2) the carrying value of certain assets contributed to the partnership,
consisting primarily of machinery spare parts, and 3) costs to close the transaction. It should be noted that all of
SESCO's long-lived assets were reduced to a zero value at December 31, 2001, so no additional impairment was
required. On a going forward basis, Katy would expect little if any income statement activity as a result of its
involvement in the partnership, and Katy's consolidated balance sheet will carry the liability mentioned above.

In 1984, the Authority issued $55.0 million of Industrial Revenue Bonds and lent the proceeds to
SESCQO, under the loan agreement for the acquisition and construction of the waste-to-energy facility that has now
been transferred to the partnership. The funds required to repay the loan agreement come from the monthly disposal
fee, paid by the Authority under the service agreement for certain waste disposal services, a component of which is
for debt service. To induce the required parties to consent to the SESCO partnership transaction, SESCO retained
its liability under the loan agreement. In connection with that liability, SESCO also retained its right to receive the
debt service component of the monthly disposal fee.

Based on an opinion from outside legal counsel, SESCO has a legally enforceable right to offset amounts
it owes to the Authority under the loan agreement against amounts that are owed from the Authority under the
service agreement. At December 31, 2002, this amount was $35.8 million. Accerdingly, the amounts owed to and
due from SESCO have been netted for financial reporting purposes and are not shown on the consolidated balance
sheet.

In addition to SESCO retaining its liabilities under the loan agreement, to induce the required parties to
consent to the partnership transaction, Katy also continues to guarantee the obligations of the partnership under the
service agreement. The joint venture is liable for liquidated damages under the service agreement if it fails to accept
the minimum amount of waste or to meet other performance standards under the service agreement. The liquidated
damages, an off balance sheet risk for Xaty, are equal to the amount of the bonds outstanding, less $4.0 million
maintained in a debt service reserve trust. We do not expect non-performance by the other parties. Additionally,
Montenay has agreed to indemnify Katy for any breach of the service agreement by the partnership.
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Following are scheduled principal repayments on the loan agreement (and the Industrial Revenue Bonds)
(in thousands):

2003 § 5,385
2004 6,765
2005 8,370
2006 15,300
Total _§ 35,820

Note 9. INDEBTEDNESS

Katy’s indebtedness at December 31, 2002, was outstanding under a credit agreement that became effective in
June 2001 at the time of the Recapitalization. The credit agreement was a collateralized, asset-based lending
arrangement agented by Deutsche Bank (the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement), with seven other banks completing
the syndicate. The Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement, which provided for 2 total borrowing facility of $140.0
millicn, had a $30.0 million term loan portion (Term Loan) with a final maturity date of June 28, 2006 that required
quarterly repayments of $1.5 million. As a result of the sale of Hamilton, and operating cash flow in 2002 and 2001,
the term loan was repaid in full in Gctober 2002. The Term Loan was collateralized by the Company’s property,
plant and’ equipment. The remaining portion of the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement was a $110.0 million
revolving credit facility (Revolving Credit Facility) that also had an expiration date of June 28, 2006. The
borrowing base of the Revolving Credit Facility was determined by eligible inventory and accounts receivable of the
Company. Unused borrowing availability on the Revolving Credit Facility was $24.3 million at December 31,
2002. All extensions of credit to the Company were collateralized by a first priority perfected security interest in
and lien upon the capital stock of each material domestic subsidiary (65% of the capital stock of each material
foreign subsidiary), and all present and future assets and properties of the Company. Customary financial covenanis
and restrictions on the payment of dividends applied to the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. Interest accrued on
borrowings at appreximately 225 basis points over the Eurodpllar rate for Eurodollar loans, and 125 basis points
over the prime rate for base rate loans, margins which were determined by the Company’s leverage ratio. The
Company paid a commitment fee of 0.5% of the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility.

December 31, December 31,
- 2002 2001
(Thousands of Dollars)

Term loan payable under New Credit Agreement, interest based on

Eurodollar Rate (3.75%), due through 2006 $ - $ 26,325
Revolving loans payable under New Credit Agreement, interest based on

Eurodollar and Prime Rates (3.75 - 5.50%) 44,751 57,000
Real estate and chattel mortgages, with interest at fixed rates (7.14%), :

due through 2003 700 768
Total debt 45,451 84,093
Less revolving loans, classified as current (see below) 44,751y (57,000)
Less current maturities (700) (14,619)
Long-term debt $ - 3 12,474

In connection with the Revolving Credit Facility, the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement required lockbox
agreements which provide for all receipts to be swept daily to reduce borrowings outstanding. These agreements,
combined with the existence of a Material Adverse Effect (MAE) c¢lause in the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement,
caused the Revolving Credit Facility to be classified as a current liability, per guidance in the FASB’s Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 95-22, Balance Sheet Classification of Borrowings Outstanding under
Revolving Credit Agreements that Include Both a Subjective Acceleration Clause and a Lock-Box Arrangement.
However, the Company did not expect to repay, or be required to repay, within one year, the balance of the
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Revolving Credit Facility classified as a current liability. The MAE clause, which is a typical requirement in
comunercial credit agreements, allows the lender to require the lcan to become due if it determines there has been a
material adverse effect on the operations, business, properties, assets, liabilities, condition or prospects. The
classification of the Revolving Credit Facility as a current liability is a result only of the combination of the two
aforementioned factors: the lockbox agreements and the MAE clause. However, the Revolving Credit Facility did
not expire or have a maturity date within one year, but rather had a final expiration date of June 28, 2006. Also, the
Company was in compliance with the applicable financial covenants at December 31, 2002, the lender had not
notified the Company of any indication of a MAE at December 31, 2002, and to our knowledge, the Company was
not in default of any provision of the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement at December 31, 2002.

Letters of credit totaling $7.4 million were cutstanding at December 31, 2002, which reduced the unused
borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility.

All of the debt under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement is re-priced to current rates at frequent intervals.
Therefore, its fair value approximates its carrying value at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had an unamortized balance of capitalized debt issuance costs of $5.7
million, included in the Other line under Other Assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These costs were largely
incurred in 2001 with the initiation of the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. Part of the direct costs incuired in
2001 were $1.4 million paid to Kohlberg (who worked on behalf of KKTY) for consulting fees and out-of-pocket
expenses relating to negotiation of terms and covenants associated with the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement.
These costs have been capitalized and were being amortized over the five year length of the agreement {through
June 2006).

The extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt of $1.2 million {net of tax of $0.6 million) recorded
in 2001 was due to the write-off of deferred financing costs associated with the early extinguishment of the credit
agreement that had existed prior to the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement.

In February 2003, we funded a new credit agreement, agented by Fleet Capital (Fleet Credit Agreement),
which replaced the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement. See Note 24 for further information.

Note 10. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

As discussed in Note 3 above, KKTY purchased from Katy 700,000 shares of newly issued Convertible
Preferred Stock, $100 par value per share, which is convertible into 11,666,666 common shares, for an aggregate
purchase price of $70.0 million. The Convertible Prefeired shares are entitled to a 15% payment in kind (PIK)
dividend (that is, dividends in the form of additional shares of Convertible Preferred Stock), compounded annually,
which started accruing on August 1, 2001, and was paid on August 1, 2002 (105,000 convertible preferred shares,
equivalent to 1,745,240 common shares), and will be payable on August 1 of 2003 and 2004, and on December 31,
2004. No dividends will accrue or be payable after December 31, 2004. If converted, the 11,666,666 common
shares, along with the 2,594,367 equivalent common shares paid (1,745,240) and accrued (849,127) PIK dividends
through December 31, 2002, would represent 63% of the outstanding shares of common stock as of December 31,
2002, excluding outstanding options. If the holder continues to hold the Convertible Preferred Stock through
December 2004, it will receive an additional 259,613 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock, which would be
convertible into an additional 4,588,950 shares of common stock. The shares of common stock issuable on the
conversion of the Cenvertible Preferred Stock issued at closing, together with the shares of common stock issuable
on the conversion of the Convertible Preferred Stock issued through the PIK dividend, would represent 69% of the
outstanding common shares of commeon stock, excluding cutstanding options. The accruals of the PIK dividends
were recorded as a charge to Retained Earnings and/or Paid-in Capital and an increase to Convertible Preferred
Stock. The dividends were recorded at fair value, reduced eamings available to common shareholders in the
calculation of basic earnings per share, and are presented on the Consolidated Statements of COperations as an
adjustment to arrive at net loss available to common shareholders.

The Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time after the earlier of 1)
June 28, 2008, 2) board approval of a merger, consolidation or other business combination involving a change in
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control of the Company, or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets or liquidation of the Company, or 3) a
contested election for directors of the Company nominated by KKTY. The preferred shares 1) are non-voting (with
limited exceptions), 2) are non-redeemable, except in whole, but not in part, at the Company’s option (as approved
only by the Class I directors) at any time after June 30, 2021, 3) are entitled o receive cumulative PIK dividends
through December 31, 2004, as mentioned above, at a rate of 15% percent, 4) have no preemptive rights with respect
to any other securities or instruments issued by the Company, and 5) have registration rights with respect to any
common shares issued upon conversion of the Convertible Preferred Stock. Upon a liquidation of Katy, the holders
of the Convertible Preferred Stock would receive the greater of (i) an amount equal to the par value ($100 per share)
of their Convertible Preferred Stock, or (ii) an amount that the holders the Convertible Preferred Stock would have
received if their shares of Convertible Preferred Stock were converted inte common stock immediately prior to the
distribution upen liquidation.

The Company incurred approximately $4.9 million in 2001 of direct costs related to the issuance of the
Convertible Preferred Stock, including $1.7 million paid to Kohlberg (who worked on behalf of KKTY) for
consulting fees and out-of-pocket expenses relating to due diligence and structuring of the recapitalization. These
costs have been netted against the stated amount of the Convertible Preferred Stock on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Note 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company’s diluted earnings per share were calculated using the treasury stock method in accordance
with the SFAS No. 128, “Eamings Per Share.” The basic and diluted earnings per share calculations are as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Loss from continuing operations $ (51,391) § (62,867) $  (7,781)
Gain on early redemption of preferred interest of subsidiary - 6,600 -
Payment-in-kind dividends on convertible preferred stock (11,136) (4,459) -
Loss from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders (62,527) (60,726) (7,781)
Discontinued operations, net of tax (2,844) 787 2,323
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt, net of tax - (1,182) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax (2,514 - -
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (67,885 § (61,121) §  (5,458)
Weighted average shares — Basic and Diluted 8,371 8,393 8,404
Per share amount:
Loss from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders $ (7.47) § (7.23) § (0.93)
Discontinued operations, net of tax 0.34) 0.09 0.28
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt, net of tax - (0.14) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax : (0.30) - -
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (8.11) § (7.28) § (0.65)

As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, 150,000 options were in-the-money. 1,800,750 and
1,728,650 options were out-of-the-money at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively. No options
were in the money at December 31, 2000. At December 31, 2002, 805,000 convertible preferred shares were
outstanding, along with 50,947 convertible preferred shares accrued through paid in kind dividends, which were in
total convertible into 14,265,812 shares of Katy common stock. At December 31, 2001, 700,000 convertible
preferred shares were cutstanding, along with 44,301 convertible preferred shares accrued through paid in kind
dividends, which were in total convertible into 12,405,041 shares of Katy common stock. No convertible preferred
stock was outstanding at December 31, 2000. In-the-money options and convertible preferred shares were not
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included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share in any period presented because of their anti-dilutive impact
as a result of the Company’s net loss position.

Note 12. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

Several subsidiaries have pension plans covering substantially all of their employees. These plans are
noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans. The benefits to be paid under these plans are generally based on
employees’ retirement age and years of service. The companies’ funding policies, subject to the minimum funding
requirements of employee benefit and tax laws, are to contribute such amounts as determined on an actuarial basis
to provide the plans with assets sufficient to meet the benefit obligations. Plan assets consist primarily of fixed
income investments, corporate equities and government securities. The Company also provides certain health care
and life insurance benefits for some of its retired employees. The post-retirement health plans are unfunded.
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Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2002 2001 2002 2001
(Thousands of dollars)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,085 $1,988 $3,025 $3,187
Service cost 111 169 37 15
Interest cost 149 150 224 155
Plan amendments 254 - - -
Actuarial loss 192 48 175 -
Settlement - (194) - -
Benefits paid (198) (76) (362) (332)
Benefit obligation at end of year $2,593 $2,085 $3,099 $3,025
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,713 $2,118 $ - £ -
Actuarial return on plan assets (11) (305) - -
Employer contribution 356 237 362 332
Settlement - (261) - -
Benefits paid (198) (16) (362) (332)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $1,860 $1,713 $ - 5 -
Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) benefit cost:
Funded status $ (734) $ (372) $ (3,099 $ (3,0625)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain)/loss 896 963 (680) (325)
Unrecognized prior service cost - - 785 845
Unrecognized net transition asset 27 35 - -
Additional minimum liability adjustment (691} (391) - -
Prepaid/(accrued) benefit cost $ (502) $ 235 $ (2,994 $ (2,505)
Components of net pertodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 1 $ 169 $ 37 $ 15
Interest cost 149 150 224 155
Expected return on plan assets (144) (170} - -
Amortization of net transition asset 9 9 - -
Amortization of prior service cost - - 60 81
Amortization of net gain/(loss) 67 37 ) 97
Curtailment/settlement recognition 605 156 535 -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 797 $ 351 $ 849 $ 348
Assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rates 6.75% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 0% 0%
Assumed rates of compensation increases 0-5% 0-5% 0-5% 0-5%
Impact of one-percent increase in health care trend rate:
Increase in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ 189 § 123
Increase in service cost and interest cost 3 11
Impact of cne-percent decrease in health care trend rate:
Decrease in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ 151 $ 99
Decrease in service cost and interest cost 8 9 3 -
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The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation as
of December 31, 2002 was 7.5% in 2002 grading to 5% by 2009. Prepaid/accrued benefit costs were included in accrued
expenses or other liabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

In addition to the plans described above, in 1993 the Company’s Board of Directors approved a retirement
compensation program for certain officers and employees of the Company and a retirement compensation
arrangement for the Company’s then Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Board approved a total of $3.5
million to fund such plans. This amount represented the best estimate of the obligation that vested immediately
upon Board approval and is to be paid for services rendered to date. The Company had $2.7 million and $2.9
million recorded in accrued compensation and other liabilities at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively, for this obligation.

40]1(k) Plans

The Company offers its employees the opportunity to voluntarily participate in one of two 461(k) plans
administered by the Company or one of its subsidiaries. On January 1, 2002, Katy consolidated certain of its
401(k) plans and reduced the number of plans within the Company from five to two. The Company makes
matching and other contributions in accordance with the provisions of the plans and, under certain provisions, at the
discretion of the Company. The Company made annual matching and other contributions of $0.5 mullion, $0.5
miilion and $0.7 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note 13. PREFERRED INTEREST OF SUBSIDIARY

Upon the Company’s purchase of the common interest of Contico on January 8, 1999, Newcastle
Industries, Inc. (Newcastle) retained a preferred interest in Contico, represented by 329 preferred units, each with a
stated value of $100,000, for an aggregate stated value of $32.9 million. The preferred interest yielded an 8%
cumulative annual retumn on its stated value while outstanding, payable quarterly in cash. In connection with the
Recapitalization, the Company entered into an agreement with Newcastle to redeem at a 40% discount 165 preferred
units, plus accrued distributions thereon, which, as disclosed above, at a stated value prior to the Recapitalization of
$32.9 million. Katy utilized approximately $10.2 million of the proceeds from the Recapitalization for the purpose
of redeeming the 165 preferred units. The holder of the preferred interest retained 164 preferred units, or a stated
value of $16.4 million. The difference between the amount paid on redemption and the stated value of preferred
interest redeemed (36.6 million, plus $0.1 million of tax benefit) was recognized as an increase to Additional Paid-in
Capital on the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, and was an addition to earnings available to
common stockholders in the calculation of basic earnings per share in 2001.

As discussed in Note 24, Katy refinanced its debt obligations on February 3, 2003, and entered into the

Fleet Credit Agreement. As a result of the transaction that occurred on February 3, 2003 referenced above, it was
determined that the fair value of the preferred interest at December 31, 2002, was $9.9 million.

Note 14. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share Repurchase

On February 26, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized management to spend up to $5.0
million over a twelve month period for the repurchase of Katy common stock in the open market. During 2000, the
Company repurchased 24,800 shares of Katy common stock at a total cost of $262,000 and an average stock price
0f $10.48. The Company did not repurchase any of its shares during calendar 2002 or 2001.

Stockholder Rights Plan

In January 1995, the Board of Directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Agreement and distributed one right
for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock (not otherwise exempted under the terms of the
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agreement). The rights entitle the stockholders to purchase, upon certain triggering events, shares of either the
Company’s common stock or any acquiring company’s stock, at a reduced price. The rights are not and will not
become exercisable unless certain change of control events or increases in certain parties’ percentage ownership
occur. Consistent with the intent of the Stockholder Rights Agreement, a shareholder who caused a triggering event
would not be able to exercise their rights. If stockholders were to exercise rights, the effect would be to increase the
percentage ownership stakes of those not causing the triggering event, while decreasing the percentage ownership
stake of the party causing the triggering event, The Stockholder Rights Agreement was amended on June 2, 2001 to
clarify that the Recapitalization was not a triggering event under the Rights Agreement. As of December 31, 2002,
there are 8,362,177 rights outstanding, of which none are currently exercisable.

Restricted Stock Grant

During 2000 and 1999, the Company issued restricted stock grants in the amount of 3,000 and 45,100
shares, respectively, to certain key employees of the Company. These stock grants vest over a three-year period, of
which 25% vested immediately upon distribution. As a result of restricted stock grants, the Company has
recognized compensation expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 in the amount of $0.1 million, $0.3 million, and $0.4
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2002, all compensation expense associated with restricted stock grants
has been carned and expensed.

Director Stock Grant

During 2002, 2001 and, 2000, the Company granted all independent, non-employee Directors 500 shares
of Company common stock as part of their compensation. For 2002 and 2001, this grant was limited to the three
non-employee Class I directors. The total grant to the Directors for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 was 1,500, 1,500 and 4,000 shares, respectively.

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

On November 21, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the 2002 Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (the
“2002 SAR Plan”), authorizing the issuance of up to 1,000,000 stock appreciation rights (SARs). Vesting of the
SARs occurs ratably over three years. The 2002 SAR Plan provides limitations on redemption by holders,
specifying that no more than the greater of (a) 50% of vested SARs held by an employee and (b) 10% of the total
SAR award (vested or not) could be exercised in any cne calendar year. The SARs expire ten years from the date
of issue. The Board approved grants on November 22, 2002, of 917,175 SARs to 60 individuals with an exercise
price of $3.15, which equaled the market price of Katy’s stock on the grant date. An insignificant amount of
compensation expense was recorded as of December 31, 2002, associated with these grants. The 2002 SAR Plan
also provides that in the event of a Change in Control of the Company, all outstanding SARs become fully vested.
In accordance with the 2002 SAR Plan, a “Change in Control” is deemed to have occurred upon any of the
following events: 1) a sale of 100 percent of the Company’s outstanding capital stock, as may be outstanding from
time to time; 2) a sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s operating subsidiaries or assets; or 3) a transaction
or series of transactions in which any third party acquires an equity ownership in the Company greater than that
held by KKTY Helding Company, L.L.C. and in which Kohlberg & Co., L.L.C. relinquishes its right to nominate a
majority of the candidates for election to the Board of Directors.

At the 1998 Annual Meeting, the Company’s stockholders approved the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(the “1997 Incentive Plan”), authorizing the issuance of up to 875,000 shares of Company common stock pursuant
to the grant or exercise of stock options, including incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, SARs,
restricted stock, performance units or shares and other incentive awards. The Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors administers the 1997 Incentive Plan and determines to whom awards may be granted, the type of
award as well as the number of shares of Company common stock to be covered by each award, and the terms and
conditions of such awards. The exercise price of stock options granted under the 1997 Incentive Plan cannot be less
than 100 percent of the fair market value of such stock on the date of grant. The restricted stock grants in 1999 and
1998 referred to above were made under the 1997 Incentive Plan. Related to the 1997 Incentive Plan, the Company
granted SARs as described below.
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Under the 1997 Incentive Plan, 204,473 SARs have been granted and will become exercisable at any time
up to and including January 22, 2005, the Company’s average closing stock price over a 45 calendar day period has
equaled or exceeded $53.80 per share. During 2001, 146,965 of these SARs were cancelled due to employee
terminations; 57,508 remain outstanding. An additional 163,579 SARs have been granted and will become
exercisable at such time, up to and including January 22, 2005, the Company’s average closing stock price over a
45-calendar day period has equaled or exceeded $53.80 per share. During 2001, 117,572 of these SARS were
cancelled due to employee terminations; 46,007 remain outstanding. All SARs which have met the performance
goals above, as the case may be, will expire December 9, 2007. As a result of the underlying stock price, no
compensation expense was recorded in 2002, 2001 or 2000. The exercise price of each SAR is $19.56. Katy would
record compensation expense for each SAR to the extent its stock price were to exceed $19.56.

The 1997 Incentive Plan also provides that in the event of a Change in Control of the Company, as defined
below, 1) any SARs and stock options outstanding as of the date of the Change in Control which are neither
exercisable or vested will become fully exercisable and vested {the payment received upon the exercise of the SARs
shall be equal to the excess of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of
exercise over the grant date price multiplied by the number of SARs exercised); 2) the restrictions applicable to
restricted stock will lapse and such restricted stock will become free of all restrictions and fully vested; and 3) all
performance units or shares will be considered to be fully earned and any other restrictions will lapse, and such
performance units or shares will be settled in cash or stock, as applicable, within 30 days following the effective
date of the Change in Control. For purposes of subsection 3), the payout of awards subject to performance goals
will be a pro rata portion of all targeted award opportunities associated with such awards based on the number of
complete and partial calendar months within the performance period which had elapsed as of the effective date of
the Change in Control. The Compensation Committee will also have the authority, subject to the limitations set
forth in the 1997 Incentive Plan, to make any modifications to awards as determined by the Compensation
Committee to be appropriate before the effective date of the Change in Control.

For purposes of the 1997 Incentive Plan, “Change in Control” of the Company means, and shall be deemed
to have occurred upon, any of the following events: 1) any person (other than those persons in control of the
Company as of the effective date of the 1997 Incentive Plan, a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an
employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation cwned directly or indirectly by the stockholders of the
Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company) becomes the beneficial
owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 30 percent or more of the combined voting
power of the Company’s then outstanding securities; or 2) during any period of two consecutive years (not
including any period prior to the effective date), the individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute the
Board of Directors (and any new director, whose election by the Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote
of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office who either were directors at the beginning of the period or
whose election or nomination for election was so approved), cease for any reason to constitute a majority thereof, or
3) the stockholders of the Company approve: (a) a plan of complete liquidation of the Company; or (b) an
agreement for the sale or disposition of all or substantially all the Company’s assets; or (¢) a merger, consolidation,
or reorganization of the Company with or involving any other corporation, other than a merger, consolidation, or
reorganization that would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto
continuing to represent at least SO percent of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company (or
such surviving entity) outstanding immediately after such merger, consolidation, or reorganization. The Company
has determined that the Recapitalization did not result in such a Change in Control.

At the 1995 Annual Meeting, the Company’s stockholders approved the Long-Term Incentive Plan (the
“1995 Incentive Plan”) authorizing the issuance of up to 500,000 shares of Company common stock pursuant to the
grant or exercise of stock options, including incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, SARs, restricted
stock, performance units or shares and other incentive awards to executives and certain key employees. The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers the 1995 Incentive Plan and determines to whom
awards may be granted, the type of award as well as the number of shares of Company common stock to be covered
by each award and the terms and conditions of such awards. The exercise price of stock options granted under the
1995 Incentive Plan cannot be less than 100 percent of the fair market value of such stock on the date of grant.
Stock options granted pursuant to the 1995 Incentive Plan generally vest in four equal annual installments from the
date of grant and generally expire 10 years after the date of grant. In the event of a Change in Control of the
Company, awards granted under the 1995 Incentive Plan are subject to substantially similar provisions to those
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described under the 1997 Incentive Plan. The definition of Change in Control of the Company under the 1995
Incentive Plan is substantially similar to the definition described under the 1997 Incentive Plan.

At the 1995 Annual Meeting, the Company’s stockholders approved the Non-Employee Direciors Stock
Option Plan (the “Directors Plan™) authorizing the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Company common stock
pursuant to the grant or exercise of nonqualified stock options to cutside directors. The Board of Directors
administers the Directors Plan. The exercise price of stock options granted under the Directors Plan is equal to the
fair market value of the Company’s commen stock on the date of grant. Stock options granted pursuant to the
Directors Plan are immediately vested in full on the date of grant and generally expire 10 years after the date of

grant,

Emplovment Agreements and Stock Option Grants

On June 28, 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with C. Michael Jacobi, President
and Chief Executive Officer. To induce Mr. Jacobi to enter into the employment agreement, on June 28, 2001, the
Compensaticn Committee of the Board of Directors approved the Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Executive
Officer’s Plan. Under this plan, Mr. Jacobi was granted 978,572 stock options. Mr. Jacobi was also granted 71,428
stock options under the Company’s 1997 Incentive Plan. All stock options granted to Mr. Jacobi will vest over a
three year period provided that certain performance measures are met. The performance measures were not met in
2002 or 2001. The options vest unconditionally (assuming continued employment) in nine years.

On September 4, 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Amir Rosenthal, Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and Secretary. To induce Mr. Rosenthal to enter into the
employment agreement, on September 4, 2001, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved
the Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Financial Officer’s Plan. Under this plan, Mr. Rosenthal was granted 123,077
stock options. Mr. Rosenthal was also granted 126,923 stock options under the Company’s 1995 Incentive Plan.
All stock options granted to Mr. Rosenthal will vest over a three year period provided that certain performance
measures are met in each year. The performance measures were not met in 2062 or 2001. The options vest
unconditionally (assuming continued employment) in nine years,

The following table summarizes option activity under each of the 1997 Incentive Plan, 1995 Incentive
Plan, the Chief Executive Officer’s Plan, the Chief Financial Officer’s Plan and the Directors Plan:
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Qutstanding at January 1, 2000

Gra_nted
Exercised
Canceled

Qutstanding at December 31, 2000

Granted
Exercised
Canceled

Qutstanding at December 31, 2001

Granted
Exercised
Canceled

Qutstanding at December 31, 2002

Vested and Exercisable at December 31, 2002

Available to grant as of December 31, 2002

Options

655,850

166,000
(4,500)

(53,550)
763,800

1,429,000

(314,150)
1,878,650

295,000

(222,900)

1,950,750

292,450

159,588

Exercise Price
$ 8.50-19.56
$ 9.63-10.50
3 850 - 925
$ 8.50-19.56
$ 8.50-19.56
$3.02-474
3 8.50-- 18.13
$ 3.02-19.56
$ 3.11- 515

$ 8.50-19.56

Weighted

Average Weighted
Remaining Average
* Contractual Exercise
Life Price
7.6 years $12.64
$10.33
$9.00
$13.86
7.2 years $12.07
$4.04
$11.72
8.83 years $6.03
$3.65
$12.38
8.27 years $4.94

The following table summarizes information about stock options cutstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Cutstanding Options Excercisable
Weighted-
Number Average Weighted- Number Weighted-
Range of Exercise  Cutstanding at Remaining Average Exercise  Exerciseable at Average Exercise
Prices 12/31/2002 Contractual Life Price 12/31/2002 Price
$3.02 -5.15 1,724,000 8.73 3 3.97 24,000 % 3.89
$8.50 - 10.50 103,400 4.94 9.38 118,450 9.55
$13.19-13.50 77,650 3.97 13.22 77,650 1322
$16.13-19.50 45,700 6.37 17.25 72,350 -17.47
1,950,750 8.27 3 4.94 292,450 $ 12.02

During 2001, the Company promised to grant a non-employee consultant 200,000 options to purchase
common stock. As of December 31, 2001, this grant had not occurred. However, the Company recorded compensation
expense, with a corresponding increase to Additional Paid in Capital, of $0.5 million during 2001 representing the fair value
of options promised, determined using a binomial option-pricing model. During 2002, the non-employee consultant was
awarded 200,000 SARs under the 2002 SAR Plan, in lieu of a grant of stock options. As of December 31, 2002, these SARs
were out-of-the-money. Therefore, the $0.5 million of compensation expense was reversed during 2002.
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Please refer to Note 2 for a discussion of accounting for stock awards, and related fair value and pro forma

incomes disclosures.

Note 15. INCOME TAXES

The components of the net (benefit) provision for income taxes are:

2002 2001 2000
{Thousands of Dollars)
Continuing operations:
Current:
Federal $ (2,080) $ (B4) $ (3,978)
State 337 208 168
Foreign 1,466 957 624
Total $ 277) $ 1,131 § (3,186)
Deferred:
Federal 7,761 (18,955) 927)
State 1,326 (2,872) 368
Foreign (198) 49 470
Total $ 8,889 § (21,778 § (89)
Total continuing operations, excluding preferred interest of subsidiary $ 8,612 § (20,647) $ (3,275
Preferred interest of subsidiary 281 (686) 921)
Discontinued operations 3,496 264 1,253
Extracrdinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (636) -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (1,676) - -
$ 10,713 ' §  (21,705) $ (2,943)

Net provision for (benefit from) income taxes

The total income tax provision from continuing operations differed from the amount computed by applying
the statutory federal income tax rate to pre-tax income from continuing operations. The computed amount and the
differences for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:
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2002 2001 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)
{Benefit) provision for income taxes at statutory rate $ (14415 8§ (28,784) § (3,271
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 219 (711 477
Amortization of negative goodwill - (596) (596)
Preferred interest of subsidiary (281) 686 921
Discontinued businesses (3,496) (264) (1,253)
Early extinguishment of debt - 636 -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 1,676 - -
Valuation allowance adjustments 28,974 9,748 544
Valuation allowance adjustments related to discontinued business (4,235) - -
Other, net 170 (1,356) (87
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations
before distrubtions on preferred interest of subsidiary $ 8612 $§ (20,647) § (3,275
Distributions on preferred interest of subsidiary 281 (686) 921)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations 1,340 264 1,253
Gain on sale of discontinued businesses 2,156 - -
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (1,676) - -
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt - (636) -
Net (benefit) provision for income taxes $ 10,713 § (2L,705) $ (2,943)

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s net deferred tax asset (liability) as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2002 2001
(Thousands of Dollars)
Deferred tax liabilities
. " Difference between book and tax basis of property $ - $ (1,926)
Waste-to-energy facility (9,172) (12,426)
Inventory costs (2,263) (867)
Undistributed earnings of equity investees (1,699) {1,645)
$ (13,134) §  (16,864)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables $ 1,943 § 1,395
Accrued expenses and other items 20,566 10,926
Difference between book and tax basis of property & goodwill 7,445 -
Operating loss carry-forwards - domestic 22,747 25,580
Operating loss carry-forwards - foreign 543 661
Tax credit carry forwards 2,718 2,677
55,962 41,239
Less valuation allowance (42,828) (13,854)
13,134 27,385
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) 3 - § 10,521

The Company has approximately $52.9 million of United States federal net operating loss carry-forwards
(“federal NOLs”) which will expire in years 2020 through 2022 if not utilized prior to that time. Due to tax laws
governing change in control events and their relation to the Recapitalization, approximately $30.4 million of the
federal NOLs are subject to certain limitations as to the amount that can be used to offset taxable income in any
single year. The remainder of the Company’s domestic and foreign net operating loss carry-forwards relate to
certain U.S. operating subsidiaries, primarily SESCO, and the Company’s Canadian operations, respectively, and
can only be used to offset income from these operations. The Company’s Canadian subsidiaries have Canadian net
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operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $1.6 million at December 31, 2002 that expire in the years 2003
through 2009. SESCO has state net operating loss carry-forwards of $46.9 million at December 31, 2002 that
expire in the years 2003 through 2019. The tax credit carry-forwards relate to United States federal minimum tax
credits of $1.2 million that have no expiration date, general business credits of $0.1 million that expire in years
2011 through 2021, and foreign tax credit carryovers of $1.3 million that expire in the years 2003 through 2007.

During 2002, the Company realized a tax benefit of $2.1 million as a result of a change in federal tax law
that governs the utilization of federal NOLs. The Company utilized this tax benefit to increase its valuation
allowance.

The valuation allowance relates to federal, state and foreign net operating loss carry-forwards, foreign and
domestic tax credits, and other deferred tax assets to the extent they exceed deferred tax liabilities. Katy’s history
of operating losses provides significant negative evidence with respect to the Company’s ability to generate future
taxable income, a requirement in order to recognize deferred tax assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. For
this reason, the Company was unable to conclude that NOLs and other deferred tax assets would be utilized in the
future.

Note 16. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company, a lessee, has entered intc non-cancelable leases-for manufacturing and data processing
equipment and real property with lease terms of up to ten years. Future minimum lease payments as of December
31, 2092 are as follows:

2003 $11,942
2004 11,007
2005 9,033
2006 7,087
2007 6,469
Later years 6.532

Total minimum payments $ 52,070

Liabilities totaling $10.9 million were recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002,
related to leased real facilities that have been abandoned. These facilities were abandoned as cost saving measures
as a result of efforts to restructure the Company’s operations. These liabilities are stated at fair value (ie.,
discounted), and include estimates of sub-lease revenue. See Note 22 for further detail on accrued amounts in both
current and long-term liabilities related to non-cancelable, abandoned, leased facilities.

Rental expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 for operating leases was $12.9 miilion, $14.0 million, $13.6
million, respectively. Also, $1.0 million of rent was paid and charged against liabilities in 2002 for non-cancelable
leases at facilities abandoned as a result of restructuring initiatives.

Note 17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the Contico acquisition on January 8, 1999, the Company entered into building lease
agreements with Newcastle. Newcastle was the holder of the $16.4 million preferred interest in Contico (see Note
13). Lester Miller, the former owner of Contico, and a Katy director from 1999 to 2000, is the majority owner of
Newcastle. Also, several additional properties utilized by Contico are leased directly from Lester Miller. Rental
expense for these properties approximates historical market rates. Related party rental expense for the year ending
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $0.8 millicn, $1.5 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

The Company paid Newcastle $1.3 million of preferred dividends for the year ended December 31, 2002,
compared to $2.0 and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decreases in
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dividends were due to the early redemption of half of the preferred interest at the time of the recapitalization in June
2001. On February 3, 2003, the remainder of the preferred interest was redeemed at a 40% discount. See Note 24.

Kohlberg, whose affiliate holds all 805,000 shares of our Convertible Preferred Stock, provides ongoing
management oversight and advisory services to Katy. We paid $500,000 for such services in 2002, and expect to
pay $500,000 annually in future years. Such amounts are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the statement of operations.

Note 18. INDUSTRY SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company is a manufacturer and distributor of a variety of industrial and consumer products, including
sanitary maintenance supplies, coated abrasives, stains, electrical and electronic components. Principal markets are
in the United States, Canada, and Europe and include the sanitary maintenance, restaurant supply, retail, electronic,
automotive, and computer markets. These activities are grouped into two industry segments: Electrical/Electronics
and Maintenance Products. During 2002, one of Katy’s customers accounted for 17% of consolidated net sales.
Sales to this particular customer are made by three separate operating divisions (Contico, Woods and
Glit/Microtron). However, a significant loss of business at this retail outlet could have an adverse impact on the
Company’s results. The table below, and the narrative that follows, summarize the key factors in the year-to-year
changes in operating results.
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LALEE

I/Electronics Gr
et external sales
Operating income (loss)

Operating margin {deficit)

Severance, restructuring and related charges
Impairments of long-lived assets
Depreciation and amortization

Capital expenditures

Total assets

a

Net external sales

Cperating income (loss)

Operating margin {(deficit)

Severance, restructuring and related charges
Impairmenis of long-lived assets
Depreciation and amortization

Capital expenditures

Total assets

Total

- Operating segments
- Other [a]
Total

- Operating segments

- Other [a]

- unallocated corporate
Total

- Operating segments

- Other [a]

- Unallocated corporate
Total

- Operating segments
- Other [a] '
Total

Net external sales

Operating income (loss)

Severance, restructuring & related charges

Impairments of long-lived assets

- Operating segments

- Other [a]

- Unallocated corporate
Total

Depreciation and amortization

- Operating segments

Capital expenditures
' - Other [a]

- Unallocated corporate

Total

- Operating segments
- Other [a]
- Unallocated corporate

Total assets

- Discontinued operations

Total
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Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Thousands of dollars)
$ 144242 $ 130,949 $ 157,027
2,874 - (166) 4,511
2.0% -0.1% 2.9%
5,239 1,552 385
392 1,565 -
1,484 220 810
601 301 723
48,228 51,591 75,062
$ 314,571 $ 324,642 $ 362,922
(19,915) (39,699) 10,298
6% -12% 2.8%
13,629 3,489 1,177
20,812 36,087 -
17,769 19,926 20,238
9,306 10,060 11,737
197,865 231,179 299,292
$ 458,813 $ 455,591 $ 519,949
1,177 4,585 3,690
$ 459,950 $ 460,176 $ 523,639
$ (17,041) $ (39,865) 14,809
(6.989) (9,782) (889)
(10,998) (21,239) (9,258)
$ (35028) § (70.886) § 4,662
$ 18,868 $ 5,041 $ 1,562
207 - -
80 8,339 1,089
§ 19,155 $ 13,380 $ 2651
$ 21,204 $ 37,652 $ -
- 9,817 -
$ 21,204 $ 47,469 $ -
$ 19,253 $ 20,146 $ 21,048
- 225 116
150 357 444
$ 19,403 $ 20,728 $ 21,608
$ 9,907 $ 10,361 $ 12,460
- 524 755
158 179 -
$ 10,065 $ 11,064 $ 13215
$ 246,093 $ 282,770 $ 374,354
7,626 8,995 18,468
13,188 25,942 17,487
9,070 30,248 36,414
$ 275,977 $ 347,955 $ 446,723




fa] Amounts shown as “other” represent items associated with Katy's waste-to-energy facility and the equity
investment in the shrimp harvesting and farming operation.

The Company operates businesses in the United States and foreign countries. The operations for 2002,
2001 and 2000 of businesses within major geographic areas are summarized as follows:

United Europe

(Thousands of Dollars) States Canada UK. (Excluding UK.}  Other Consolidated
2002:

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 381,325 $ 40,795 $ 28,121 $ 5376 $4373 $§ 459990
Total assets $ 235802 § 16,616 §$ 23,559 § - 5 - $ 275977
2001: ‘
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 392,336 $ 36,567 $ 26,499 § 655 $4,119 § 460,176
Total assets $ 302,383 §$ 21455 $22313 § 880 $ 924 § 347955
2000

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 440,132 $ 50,114 $ 24406 § 4,608 $4379 § 523,639
Total assets $ 397,059 8§ 24908 § 23354 § 1,324 & 78 § 446,723

Net sales for each geographic area include sales of products produced in that area and sold to unaffiliated
customers, as reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company and certain of its current and former direct and indirect corporate predecessors, subsidiaries

and divisions are involved in remedial activities at certain present and former locations and have been identified by
the United States Environmental Protection Agency, state environmental agencies and private parties as potentially
responsible parties (PRPs) at a number of hazardous waste disposal sites under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (Superfund) or equivalent state laws and, as such, may be liable for the
cost of cleanup and other remedial activities at these sites. Responsibility for cleanup and other remedial activities
at a Superfund site is typically shared among PRPs based on an allocation formula. Under the federal Superfund
statute, parties could be held jointly and severally liable, thus subjecting them to potential individual liability for the
entire cost of cleanup at the site. Based on its estimate of allocation of liability among PRPs, the probability that
other PRPs, many of whom are large, solvent, public companies, will fully pay the costs apportioned to them,
currently available information concerning the scope of contamination, estimated remediation costs, estimated legal
fees and other factors, the Company has recorded and accrued for environmental liabilities at amounts that it deems
reasonable and believes that any liability with respect to these matters in excess of the accruals will not be material.
The ultimate costs will depend on a number of factors and the amount currently accrued represenis management’s
best current estimate of the total costs to be incurred. The Company expects this amount to be substantially paid
-over the next one to four years. The most significant environmental matter in which the Company is currently
involved relates to the W.J. Smith site. In 1993, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
initiated a Unilateral Administrative Order Proceeding under Section 7003 of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (RCRA) against W.J. Smith and Katy. The proceeding requires certain actions at the W.J. Smith site
and certain off-site areas, as well as development and implementation of additional cleanup activities to mitigate
off-site releases. In December 1995, W.J. Smith, Katy and EPA agreed to resolve the proceeding through an
Administrative Order on Consent under Section 7003 of RCRA. Pursuant to the Order, W.J. Smith is currently
implementing a cleanup to mitigate off-site releases.

In December 1996, Banco del Atlantico, a bank located in Mexico, filed a lawsuit against Woods, a
subsidiary of Katy, and against certain past and then-present officers and directors and former owners of Woods,
alleging that the defendants participated in a violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations
(RICO) Act involving allegedly fraudulently obtained loans from Mexican banks, including the plaintiff, and
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“money laundering” of the proceeds of the illegal enterprise. All of the foregoing is alleged to have occurred prior
to Katy’s purchase of Woods. The plaintiff also alleged that it made loans to an entity controlled by certain past
officers and directors of Woods based upon fraudulent representations. The plaintiff seeks to hold Woods liable for
its alleged damages directly, and under principies of respondeat superior and successor liability. The plaintiff is
claiming damages in excess of $24.0 million and is requesting treble damages under RICO. Because certain
threshold procedural and jurisdictional issues have not yet been fully adjudicated in this litigation, it is not possible
at this time for the Company to reasonably determine an outcome or accurately estimate the range of potential
exposure. Katy may have recourse against the former owner of Woods and others for, among other things,
violations of covenants, representations and warranties under the purchase agreement through which Katy acquired
Woods, and under state, federal and common law. In addition, the purchase price under the purchase agreement
may be subject to adjustment as a result of the claims made by Banco del Atlantico or other issues relating to the
litigation. The extent or limit of any such adjustment cannot be predicied at this time. An adverse judgment in this
matter could have a material impact on Katy’s liquidity and financial position if the Company were not able to
exercise recourse against the former owner of Woods.

Katy also has a number of product liability and workers’ compensation claims pending against it and its
subsidiaries. Many of these claims are proceeding through the litigation process and the final cutcome will not be
known until a settlement is reached with the claimant or the case is adjudicated. The Company estimates that it can
take up to 10 years from the date of the injury te reach a final outcome on certain claims. With respect to the
product liability and workers’ compensation claims, Katy has provided for its share of expected losses beyond the
applicable insurance coverage, including those incurred but not reported to the Company or its insurance providers,
which are developed using actuarial techniques. Such accruals are developed using currently available claim
information, and represent management’s best estimates. The ultimate' cost of any individual claim can vary based
upon, among other factors, the nature of the injury, the duration of the disability period, the length of the claim
period, the jurisdiction of the claim and the nature of the final outcome.

Although management believes that these actions individually and in the aggregate are not likely to have a
material adverse effect on the Company, further costs could be significant and will be recorded as a charge to
operations when, and if, current information dictates a change in management’s estimates.

Note 20. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded $2.4 million of severance and other exit costs associated
with the shut down of the Woods manufacturing facilities in Indiana. Manufacturing operations were ceased in
order to implement a more cost-effective procurement of finished goods inventory through sourcing with third party
suppliers. 361 employees were terminated as a result of this shut down. Woods incurred $1.5 million in severance,
pension, and other employee-related costs associated with the employee terminations. Woods also incurred a charge
for the creation of a liability for non-cancelable lease costs at abandoned production facilities of $0.8 million. An
additional $0.1 million of other exit costs were incurred related to facility repairs and other minor costs. Woods also
incurred $0.9 million of inventory write-offs related to raw and packaging materials that will not be able to be
utilized efficiently with the change-over to a fully sourced inventory strategy. Contico incurred restructuring costs
of $0.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2002 associated with costs of revaluing their non-cancelable lease liability at
the Warson Road and Earth City facilities, and $0.3 million of costs in moving inventory and equipment from the
Warson facility to the Bridgeton facility, as discussed below.

During the third quarter of 2002, we recorded $2.5 million of severance, restructuring and other charges.
During the third quarter, we committed to a plan to abandon Contico’s Earth City distribution facility, and to
consolidate its operations into the Bridgeton facility (both facilities are in the St. Louis, Missouri area). As a result,
a $7.1 million charge was recorded to accrue a liability for non-cancelable lease payments associated with the Earth
City facility. Also during the third quarter, the Contico business recorded 2 $1.4 million charge related to rent and
other facility costs associated with its Warson Road facility (also in the St. Louis area), whose operations are also
being consolidated into Bridgeton. A charge of $1.8 million was recorded in the second quarter of 2002 for the
Warson Road facility, and the additional amount of $1.4 million was recorded after consideration of the market for
sub-leasing and to accrue costs to refurbish the facility. The Contico business recorded related charges of $0.2
million incurred in moving inventory and equipment from Warson to Bridgeton, and $0.2 million in severance costs.
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The Corporate group recorded a $0.1 million charge for non-cancelable lease payments related to the former
corporate headquarters. Also in the third quarter of 2002, a charge of $0.5 million was recorded for payments to
consultants working with us on sourcing and other manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives.

Certain assumptions have been made regarding potential future sub-lease revenue at rented facilities that
have been, or will be, abandoned as a result of restructuring and consolidation activities. If the Company is unable
to achieve its estimated sub-lease revenue estimates, charges could be recognized in future periods to update the
estimated liability and cost to Katy for these facilities.

During the second quarter of 2002, we recorded $3.8 million of severance, restructuring, and other charges.
Approximately $1.6 million of the charges related to accruals for payments to consultants working with us on
sourcing and other manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives. Additionally, net non-cancelable rental
payments of $1.8 million associated with the shut down of Contico’s Warson Road facility in St. Louis, Missouri
were accrued at June 30, 2002, as well as involuntary termination benefits of $0.1 million. The Warson Road
facility shutdown involves a reduction in workforce of nineteen employees. The remaining $0.3 million was for
involuntary termination benefits related to SESCO and for various integration costs in the consolidation of
administrative functions into St. Louis, Missouri, from various operating divisions in the Maintenance Products

group.

During the first quarter of 2002, we recorded $2.3 million of severance, restructuring and other charges.
Approximately $1.9 million of the charges related to accruals for payments to consultants working us on sourcing
and other manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives, Approximately $0.3 million related to involuntary
termination benefits for two management employees whose positions were eliminated, and $0.1 million were costs
associated with the consolidation of administrative and operational functions.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded $3.2 million of severance and restructuring charges.
Approximately $1.0 million was related to severance payments. These payments related to the closing of the former
corporate headquarters in Englewood, Colorado and an adjunct corporate office in Chicago and the related
terminations of employees, as well as severance paid to employees at operating divisions in headcount reduction
efforts. Approximately $1.4 million of the charges related to a consultant working with us on sourcing and other
manufacturing and production efficiency initiatives. Approximately $0.2 million of the charges related to transition
activities within the Company. Other costs related to manufacturing restructuring initiatives at Contico.

‘During the third quarter of 2001, we recorded $6.5 million of severance and restructuring charges, of which
$5.1 million related to the payment or accrual of severance and other payments associated with the management
transition as a result of the recapitalization. Additionally, $1.0 million of costs were incurred related primarily to
outside consultants working with us on strategic operational and financial strategies. Included in this amount is a
charge of $0.5 million for the fair value of stock options awarded to this non-employee firm.

During the second quarter of 2001, Contico undertook restructuring efforts that resulted in severance
payments to various individuals. Forty-three employees, including two members of Contico and Katy executive
management, received severance benefits. Total involuntary termination benefits were $1.6 million.

During the first quarter of 2001, Woods undertook a restructuring effort that involved reductions in senior
management headcount as well as facility closings. We closed facilities in Loogootee and Bloomington, Indiana, as
well as the Hong Kong office of Katy International, a subsidiary which coordinates sourcing of products from Asia.
Sixteen management and administrative employees received severance packages. Total involuntary severance
benefits were $0.5 million and other exit costs were $0.3 million.

During the third and fourth quarters of 2000, the Company implemented a workforce reduction that
reduced headcount by approximately 90. Employees affected were primarily in general and administrative functions,
with the largest number of affected employees coming from the Maintenance Products group. The workforce
reduction included severance and related costs for certain employees. Total severance and related costs were $2.4
million.
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The table below details activity in restructuring reserves since December 31, 2000.

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2000
Additions to restructuring liabilities
Payments on restructuring liabilities

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2001
Additions to restructuring liabilities
Payments on restructuring liabilities

Restructuring liabilities at December 31, 2002

The table below summarizes the future obligations for severance and restructuring charges detailed above:

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
Thereafter

Total Payments

$

$

7,459
1,592
1,601
1,368
1,300

1,179
14,499
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Note 21. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF CPERATIONS (UNAUDITED):

2002 1st Qtr 2nd Otr 3rd Otr 4th Qtr
Net sales as reported previously -8 111,020 $§ 118425 § 143602 § -
Customer allowances (750) (798) - -
Discontinued operations (8,745) (9,166) (5,577) -
Net sales as adjusted ‘ $ 101,525 8§ 108461 $ 138025 § 111,979
Gross profit as reported previcusly $ 20416 S§ 20870 § 24318 § -
Customer allowances (750) (798) - -
Discontinued operations (2,193) (2,338) (1,136) -
Gross profit as adjusted $ 17473 $ 17734 $§ 23,182 § 19,755
Loss from continuing operations reported previously $ (7590 $ (6,570) $ (16,800) $ -
Discontinued operations (net of tax) (495) (700) (13) -
Loss from continuing operations adjusted $§ (8085 § (7270) S (16,813) 19,223
Income (loss) from discontinued operations reported previously $ - $ - $ 241§ -
Discontinued operations (net of tax) 495 700 13 -
Income (loss) from discontinued operations adjusted $ 495 8 700 § 254§ (1,599
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (net of tax) $ - $ - $ - $ 3,306
Loss before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle $§ (7590 $ (6570) $ (16,559 % (23,516
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (net of tax) - - {4,190) 1,676
Net loss ' $ (7,59) $ (6,570) 3 (20,749) § (21,840
Payment in kind of dividends on convertible preferred stock $ (2622) $§ (2615 $§ (2,615 $ (3,284
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (10212) § (9,185) _§ (23364) 8§ (25,124
Loss per share of common stock - Basic and diluted
Loss from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders $ (128 $ (118 $ (232) § (2.69
Discontinued operations (net of tax) , 0.06 0.08 0.03 0.51
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (net of tax) - - (0.50) 0.20
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1.22) § (1.10) § (279 % (3.00

Effective with the reporting of interim results for the period ended September 30, 2002, Katy classified the
results and financial position of Hamilton in discontinued operations for all periods presented. Hamilton was sold
on QOctober 31, 2002. Effective with the reporting of year-end results in these consolidated financial statements,
Katy classified the results and financial position of GC/Waldom in discontinued operations for all periods
presented. GC/Waldom was held for sale at December 31, 2002 and was sold on April 2, 2003. See Notes 7 and
24,

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company recorded pretax charges of $3.6 million for severance and
restructuring and $7.8 million for impairments of long-lived assets. During the third quarter of 2002, the Company
recorded pretax charges of $9.5 million for severance and restructuring and $11.0 million for impairments of long-
lived assets (primarily at Contico). During the second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded pretax charges of
$3.8 million for severance and restructuring and $2.4 million for impairments of long-lived assets. During the first
quarter of 2002, the Company recorded pretax charges of $2.3 million for severance and restructuring charges.
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20C1

Net sales as reported previously
Customer allowances
Discontinued operations

1stQu  2ndOfr  3rdOtr  4thQn

Net sales as adjusted

Gross profit as reported previously
Customer allowances
Discontinued operations

Gross profit as adjusted

Loss from continuing operations reported previously
Discontinued operations (net of tax)

Loss from continuing operations adjusted

Income (loss) from discontinued operations reported previously
Discontinued operaticns (net of tax)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations adjusted

Loss before extraordinary item

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt (net of tax)

Net loss

Gain on early redemption of preferred interest of subsidiary
Payment in kind of dividends on convertible preferred stock

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Loss per share of common stock - Basic and diluted
Loss from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders
Discontinued operations (net of tax)
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt (net of tax)

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

$ 119613 $ 120142 $ 135801 § .
(845) (897) A ;
(12,724) (10,774) (6,003) ;

$ 106344 § 108471 S 120,798 § 115,563
$ 16806 $ 16955 S 18750 § ;
(845) (897) ) ;
(4116) (1,591 419 :

$ 11845 § 14467 § 19160 § 18006
S (8372) § (30434) $ (6,015 S ;
(1,000) 70 1,185 :

S (9372) .5 _(30364) 5 (4,830) S (18300
$ ; $ - § 450 $ . -
1,000 (70) (1,185) :

S 1.000 8 (70 S_ (135 $ 502

$  (8372) S (30434) $ (5565 § (17,769
- (lylga - -

(8,372) (31,616) (5,565) (17,709
; 6,600 ; ;

) ) (1,755) (2,704

S (8372) S (25016) _$ (13200 _$ (20413

$  (112) $  (283) $ (078 S (250

0.12 (0.01) (0.09) 0.07
; (0.14) ; )

S (100) S (298 S _(087) 5 __ (243

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded pretax charges of $3.0 million for severance and

restructuring and $11.3 million for impairments of long-lived assets. During

the third

quarter of 2001,

the

Company recorded pretax charges of $6.5 million for severance and restructuring. During the second quarter of
2001, the Company recorded pretax charges of $2.6 million for severance and restructuring and $35.1 million for
impairments of long-lived assets (primarily at Wilen). During the first quarter of 2001, the Company recorded
pretax charges of $1.3 million for severance and restructuring and $0.8 million for impairments of long-lived assets.

NOTE 22. SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

The following table provides detail regarding other assets shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

2002 2001
Capitalized debt costs $ 5,684 $ 6,669
Notes and other receivables - sales of subsidiaries 3,416 4,236
Other 3,242 1,920
Total $ 12,342 $ 12,825
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The following table provides detail regarding accrued expenses shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

2002 2001
Advertising and rebates $ 12,946 $ 11,931
Contingent liabilities 15,055 16,428
Non-cancellable lease liabilities - restructuring 4,239 252
Other restructuring 3,220 2,308
Professional services 2,645 590
SESCO note payable to Montenay 1,000 -
Other 8,607 9,931
Total ‘ $ 47,712 $ 41,440

Contingent liabilities consist of accruals for estimated losses associated with environmental issues, the
uninsured portion of general and product liability and workers’ compensation claims, and a purchase price
adjustment associated with the purchase of a subsidiary.

The following table provides detail regarding other liabilities shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

2002 2001
Non-cancellable lease liabilities - restructuring $ 6,648 $ 160
Other restructuring 393 293
SESCO note payable to Montenay 3,974 -
Deferred compensation 4,857 3,153
Other 1,654 1,327
Total $ 17,526 $ 4933

NOTE 23. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid and (received) during the year for interest and income taxes is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

(Thousands of dollars)
Interest $ 4733 $ 11,333 $14.016
Income taxes $.(1,893) $_(2,549) $(3,850)

Significant non-cash transactions include the accrual of payment in kind (PIK) dividends on the
Convertible Preferred Stock of $11.1 million in 2002 and $4.5 million in 2001. The PIX dividends are recorded at
fair value. In this case, each convertible preferred share is translated to its common equivalent (16.6667 common
shares per each convertible preferred share) and multiplied by $6.00, which is the value of each common share
equivalent given the proceeds from the issuance of the convertible preferred stock. Also during 2001, a gain 0£$6.6
million was realized on the early redemption of the preferred interest in Contico (Notes 13 and 24), and a note
receivable of $1.0 million was created related to the sale of the Thorsen Tools business.

Note 24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 3, 2003, the Company refinanced its indebtedness and entered into the Fleet Credit Agreement.
See Note 9. The new $110 million facility, which provides for $20 million of term debt and $90 million of
revolving debt, involves a syndicate of banks, all of whom had participated in the Deutsche Bank Credit
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Agreement. The Fleet Credit Agreement is an asset-based lending agreement, and is generally on similar terms to
those found in the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement

Below is a summary of the sources and uses associated with the funding of the Fleet Credit Agreement:

{Thousands of Dollars)

Sources:

Term berrowings under the Fleet Credit Agreement 20,000

Revolving borrowings under the Fleet Credit Agreement 43,743

63,743

Uses:

Payment of interest and principal under the Deutsche Bank Credit Agreement $ 52,895

Purchase of one-half of preferred interest of subsidiary at a discount 9,840

Payment of accrued distributions on one-half of preferred interest of subsidiary 122

Certain costs associated with the Fleet Credit Agreement 886
3 63,743

The Fleet Credit Agreement, which provides for a total borrowing facility of $110.0 million, has a $20.0
million term loan portion (Term Loan) with a final maturity date of February 3, 2008 and quarierly repayments of
$0.7 million, the first of which will be made on April 1, 2003. A final payment of $5.7 million will be made in
2008. The Term Loan is collateralized by the Company’s property, plant and equipment. The remaining portion of
the Fleet Credit Agreement is a $90.0 million revolving credit facility (Revolving Credit Facility) that also has an
expiration date of February 3, 2008. The borrowing base of the Revolving Credit Facility is determined by eligible
inventory and accounts receivable. Unused borrowing availability on the Revolving Credit Facility was $27.8
million at February 21, 2003. All extensions of credit under the Fleet Credit Agreement are collateralized by a first
priority perfected security interest in and lien upon the capital stock of each material domestic subsidiary (65% of
the capital stock of each material foreign subsidiary), and all present and future assets and properties of Katy.
Customary financial covenants and restrictions apply under the Fleet Credit Agreement. Until June 30, 2003,
interest accrues on Revolving Credit Facility borrowings at 225 basis points over applicable LIBOR rates, and at
250 basis points over LIBOR for Term Loan borrowings. Following June 30, 2003, margins are determined on a
pricing matrix which factors operating performance into the pricing grid. Margins drop an additional 25 basis points
in the most favorable pricing grid from the pre-June 30, 2003 levels for both revolving and term loans. Interest
accrues at higher margins on prime rates for swing loans.

Coincident with this transaction, the Company redeemed early, at a discount, the remaining half of the
preferred interest in Contico, plus accrued distributions thereon, which, as disclesed above, had a stated value of
$16.4 million. Katy utilized approximately $10.0 million of the proceeds from the Fleet Credit Agreement for this
purpose. The difference between the amount paid on redemption and the stated value of preferred interest redeemed
(6.6 million, pre-tax) will be recognized as an increase to Additional Paid in Capital on the Consolidated
Statements of Stockheolders’ Equity, and will be an addition to earnings available to common shareholders in the
calculation of basic eamings per share during 2003.

See Note 13 for a discussion of the preferred interest of subsidiary redeemed early as a result of the Fleet
Credit Agreement refinancing transaction.

On March 6, 2003, Katy announced that it was exploring the sale of Woods and Woods Canada. The
Company can give no assurances that a sale of these businesses will be completed.

On April 2, 2003, the Company completed the sale of GC/Waldom, a Katy business that was part of the
Electrical/Electronics group, for gross proceeds of $8.3 million. Katy does not anticipate recording a significant
gain or loss on the sale of GC/Waldom during 2003. GC/Waldom is presented as a discontinued operation for all
periods presented in these financial statements. See Note 7.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
Part 1}

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding the directors of Katy is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the
section entitled “Election of Directors” in the Proxy Statement of Katy Industries, Inc. for its 2003 Annual Meeting.

Information regarding executive officers of Katy is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the section entitled “Information Concerning Directors and Executive Officers” in the Proxy Statement of
Katy Industries, Inc. for its 2003 Annual Meeting.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding compensation of executive officers is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement of Katy Industries, Inc. for its
2003 Annual Meeting.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAT OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information regarding beneficial ownership of stock by certain beneficial owners and by management of Katy is
incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the section “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners” and “Security Ownership of Management” in the Proxy Statement of Katy Industries, Inc. for its 2003
Annual Meeting.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Weighted-average Future Issuances Under Equity
Be Issued on Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Qutstanding Option, Cutstanding Options, {Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (2))
(a) ®) (©

Equity Compensation

Plans Approved by

Stockholders 952,616 $7.42 159,588

Equity Compensation

Plans Not Approved by

Stockholders 2,018,824 $3.70 -

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockholders

On June 28, 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with C. Michael Jacobi, President
and Chief Executive Officer. To induce Mr. Jacobi to enter into the employment agreement, on June 28, 2001, the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Executive
Officer’s Plan. Under this plan, Mr. Jacobi was granted 978,572 stock options. Mr. Jacobi was also granted 71,428
stock options under the Company’s 1997 Incentive Plan. All stock options granted to Mr. Jacobi will vest over a
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three year period provided that certain performance measures are met in each year, and vest unconditionally
(assuming continued employment) in nine years.

On September 4, 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Amir Rosenthal, Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel and Secretary. To induce Mr. Rosenthal to enter into the
employment agreement, on September 4, 2001, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved
the Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Financial Officer’s Plan. Under this plan, Mr. Rosenthal was granted 123,077
stock options. Mr. Rosenthal was also granted 126,923 stock options under the Company’s 1995 Incentive Plan.
All stock options granted to Mr. Rosenthal will vest over a three year period provided that certain performance
measures are met in each year, and vest unconditionally (assuming continued employment) in nine years.

On November 21, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the 2002 Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (the
“2002 SAR Plan”), authorizing the issuance of up to 1,000,000 stock appreciation rights (SARs). Vesting of the
SARs occurs ratably over three years, The 2002 SAR Plan provides limitations on redemption by holders,
specifying that no more than 50% of the cumulative number of vested SARs held by an employee could be
exercised in any one calendar year. The SARs expire ten years from the date of issue. The Board approved grants
on November 22, 2002, of 917,175 SARs to 60 individuals with an exercise price of $3.15, which equaled the
market price of Katy's stock on the grant date. An insignificant amount of compensation expense was recorded as
of December 31, 2002, associated with these grants. The 2002 SAR Plan also provides that in the event of a
Change in Control of the Company, all outstanding SARs become fully vested. In accordance with the 2002 SAR
Plan, a “Change in Control” is deemed to have occurred upon any of the following events: 1) a sale of 100 percent
of the Company’s outstanding capital stock, as may be outstanding from time to time; 2) a sale of all or
substantially all of the Company’s operating subsidiaries or assets; or 3) a transaction or series of transactions in
which any third party acquires an equity ownership in the Company greater than that held by KKTY Holding
Company, L.L.C. and in which Kohlberg & Co., L.L.C. relinquishes its right to nominate a majority of the
candidates for election to the Board of Directors.

Itemm 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions with management is incorporated herein by
reference to the information set forth under the section entitled “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement of
Katy Industries, Inc. for its 2003 Annual Meeting.

Item 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls

Within the 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (Disclosure Controls). This
evaluation {Controls Evaluation) was done under the supervision and with the participation of management,
including our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO).

Disclosure Controls are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated
to our management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Limitations on the Effectiveness of Conirols

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls or our internal
controls and procedures for financial reporting (Internal Controls) will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, but not absolute assurance that
the objectives of a control system are met. Further, any control system reflects limitations on resources, and the
benefits of a control system must be considered relative to its costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud, if any, within Katy have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in
decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Additionally,
controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of a control. As design of a control system is also based upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterioraie. Because of the inherent limitations in
a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and may not be detected.

Conclusions

Based upon the Controls Evaluation, our CEC and CFO have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted
above, the Disclosure Controls are effective to timely alert management to material information relating to Katy
during the period when our periodic reports are being prepared.

In accordance with SEC requirements, our CEQ and CFO note that, since the date of the Controls Evaluation
to the filing date of this Annual Report, there have been no significant changes in Internal Controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect Internal Controls, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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Part IV

Item 15. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS., SCHEDULES, EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) 1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Katy are set forth in Part [I, ltem 8, of this Form 10-K:

- Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001
- Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
- Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000
- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule filed with this report is listed on the “Index to Financial Statement
Schedules” on page 86 of this Form 10-K.

The exhibits filed with this report are listed on the “Exhibit Index.”

(b} Reports on Form §-K

None
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: April 15, 2003 KATY INDUSTRIES, INC.
Registrant

/8/ C. Michael Jacobi
C. Michael Jacobi
President and Chief Executive Officer

/S/_Amir Rosenthal
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person signing below appoints C. Michael Sacobi and Amir P. Rosenthal, or either of them, his
attorneys-in-fact for him in any and all capacities, with power of substitution, to sign any amendments to this report,
and to file the same with any exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of this 15th day of April, 2003.
Signature Title

/S/ William F. Andrews Chairman of the Board and Director
William F. Andrews

/S/ C. Michael Jacobi President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
C. Michael jacobi (Principal Executive Officer)

/S/ Amir Rosenthal Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,

Amir Rosenthal . General Counsel and Secretary

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/S/ Christopher Lacovara Director
Christopher Lacovara
/S/ Robert M. Baratta Director

Robert M. Baratta

/S/ James A. Kohlberg Director
James A. Kohlberg

/S/ Daniel B. Carroll Director
Daniel B. Carroll

/S/ Wallace E. Carroll, Jr. Director
Wallace E. Carroll, Jr.
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/S/ Samuel P. Frieder Director

Samuel P. Frieder

/S/ Christopher Anderson Director
Christopher Anderson
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-CXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, C. Michael Jacobi, Chief Executive Officer of the company, certify that:

I.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Katy Industries, Inc. (the "registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the
equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in the annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 15,2003 By: /s/ C. Michael Jacobi

C. Michael Jacobi
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Amir Rosenthal, Chief Financial Officer of the company, certify that:

I

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Katy Industries, Inc. (the "registrant");

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financia! information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

(2) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known fo us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) evaluaied the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disciosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of intemal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in the annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that couid significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any cerrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 15, 2003 By: /s/ Amir Rosenthal

Amir Rosenthal
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Independent Accountants’ Reporis 86
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 87
Independent Auditors’ Consent 92

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or not required, or because the
required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of Katy or the Notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Katy Industries, Inc.:

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements of Katy Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries, referred to
in our report dated April 11, 2003, appearing in this Form 10-K, also included an audit of the financial
statement schedule listed in Item 15(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement
schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements.

s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
April 11, 2003




KATY INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Year ended December 31, 2002

Trade receivables
Long-term notes receivable

Year ended December 31, 2001

Trade receivables
Long-term notes receivable

Year ended December 31, 2000

Trade receivables
Long-term notes receivable

Inveniory Reserves

Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001
Year ended December 31, 2000

Year ended December 31, 2002
Year ended December 31, 2001
Year ended December 31, 2000

(Thousands of Dollars)
Balance at Additions Balance
Beginning  Charged to Write-offs Other at End
of Year Expense to Reserves Adjustenis of Year
$ 2,762 $ 3,684 $ (4,296) § 656 $ 2,806
1,000 - - - 1,000
$ 3,762 $ 3,684 $ (4296) § 656 $ 3,806
$ 3,137 $ 5,343 (6,050) 332§ 2,762
1,000 - - - 1,000
$ 4,137 $ 5,343 $ 6,050y § 332 $ 3762
$ 4,155 $ 5070 $ (5983 § (105) §$ 3,137
1,000 - - - 1,000
$ 5,155 $ 5,070 $ (5983) $ (105) $ 4,137
Balance at Additions Balance
Beginning  Charged to Write-offs Other at End
of Year Expense to the Reserve Adiustments of Year
$ 5,864 $ 2,760 h 3611y % 827 $ 5,780
$ 6434 $ 3,675 $ (4,250 § 5 $ 5864
$ 8,308 $ 1,869 $ (3,743) § - S 6,434
Balance at Balance
Beginning Other at End
of Year Provison Reversals Adjustments of Year
$ 13,854 $ 28,974 $ - $ - $ 42,828
$ 4,106 $ 9,748 $ - $ - $ 13,854
$ 3,203 $ 903 3 - $ - $ 4,106

87



4.1b

4.1c¢

10.1

102

10.3

10.4

10.5

KATY INDUSTRIES, INC.
INDEX OF EXHIBITS
DECEMBER 31, 2002
Exhibit Title

Preferred Stock Purchase and Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of June 2,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Annex B to the Company’s Proxy Statement
on Schedule 14A filed June 8, 2001).

The Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K on July 13, 2001).

The By-laws of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 15, 2001).

Rights Agreement dated as of January 13, 1995 between Katy and Harris Trust
and Savings Bank as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of
Katy’s Form &-A filed January 17, 1995).

Amendment dated as of October 31, 1996 to the Rights Agreement dated as of
January 13, 1995 between Katy and Harris Trust and Savings Bank as Rights
Agent (incorporated by reference to Katy’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 8, 1996).

Amendment dated as of January 8, 1999 to the Rights Agreement dated as of
January 13, 1995 between Katy and LaSalle National Bank as Rights

Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(b) of Katy’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed March 18, 1999).

Third Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated March 30, 2001, between the
-Company and LaSalle Bank, N.A., as Rights Agent (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit (e} (3) to the Company’s Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on
Schedule 14D-9 filed April 25, 2001).

Katy Industries, Inc. 1994 Key Employee and Director Stock
Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Katy’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed September 28, 1994).

Katy Industries, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Katy’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed
June 21, 1995).

Katy Industries, Inc. Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference to Katy’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 filed June 21, 1995).

Katy Industries, Inc. Supplemental Retirement and Deferral
Plan effective as of June 1, 1995 (incorporated by reference
to Katy’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed June 21, 1995)

Katy Industries, Inc. Directors” Deferred Compensation Plan

effective as of June i, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Katy’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed June 21, 1995),
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Preferred Unit Repurchase Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2001, between *
the Company, Contico International, LLC, and Newcastle industries, Inc.

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 15, 2001).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 28, 2001, to the Members Agreement. *
dated as of January 8, 1999, between the Company and Newcastle Industries, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 15, 2001).

Credit Agreement dated as of June 28, 2001 (incorporated by reference to *
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2001).

First Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated as of September 27, 2001 *
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q dated November 14, 2001).

Second Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated November 26, 2001, *
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K dated April 1, 2002.

Third Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated April 29, 2002, *
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q dated August 13, 2002.

Fourth Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated October 31, 2002, b
filed herewith.
Employment Agreement dated as of June 28, 2001 between C. Michael Jacobi *

and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2001).

Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Executive Officer’s Plan (incorporated by reference  *
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 14, 2001).

Employment Agreement dated as of September 1, 2001 between Amir Rosenthal *
and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q dated November 14, 2001),

Katy Industries, Inc. 2001 Chief Financial Officer’s Plan (incorporated by *
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
November 14, 2001).

Katy Industries, Inc. 2002 Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, *x
dated November 21, 2002, filed herewith.

Loan Agreement dated as of January 31, 2003 with Fleet Capital Corporation, b
filed herewith.
Subsidiaries of registrant 91
Independent Auditors’ Consent 92
CEO Certification required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley w2

Act 0f 2002, filed herewith.
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99.2 CFO Certification required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f 2002, filed herewith.

* Indicates incorporated by reference.

** Indicates filed herewith.




Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

The following list sets forth subsidiaries of Katy Industries, Inc. as of April 1, 2003, as well as
operating divisions of such subsidiaries, with successive indentation indicating parent/subsidiary
relationships of such subsidiaries. The percentage (unless 100%) of outstanding equity securities owned
by the immediate parent and the state of jurisdiction or incorporation of each such subsidiary is stated in
parentheses. Omitted subsidiaries do not, in the aggregate, constitute a “significant subsidiary”.

American Gage & Machine Company (Illineis)
Contico International, L.L.C. (Delaware)
Contico Manufacturing Limited (U.K.)
Contico Manufacturing (Ireland) Limited (Ireland)
CRL Export, Inc. (U.S. Virgin Islands)
Glit/Disco, Inc. (Delaware)
Hallmark Holdings, Inc. (Delaware)
Bay State
Duckback Products, Inc. (Delaware)
Primary Coatings, Inc. (Delaware)
GC/Waldom Electronics, Inc. (Delaware)
Katy International, Inc. (Delaware)
Glit
Glit/Gemtex, Inc. (Delaware)
Glit/Microtron
Hamilton Precision Metals, Inc. (Delaware)
HPMNC, Inc.
HPM of Pennsylvania, Inc.
Hamilton Metals, L.P.
Loren Products
Wabash Holding Corp. (Delaware)
Wilen Products, Inc. (Delaware)
Katy International, Inc. (British Virgin Islands)
Katy Oil Company of Indonesia (Delaware)
Katy-Teweh Petroleumn Company (Delaware)
Katy-Seghers, Inc. (Delaware)
Savannah Energy Systems Company Limited Partnership (Georgia)
PTR Machine Corp. (Delaware)
Sahlman Holdings, Inc. (Florida) (43%)
W.J. Smith Weood Preserving Company (Texas)
Woods Industries, Inc. (Delaware)
Thorsen Tools, Inc. (Delaware)
Woods Industries (Canada), Inc. (Ontario, Canada)
Glit/Gemtex, Ltd. (Ontario, Canada) (June 1, 1997 and forward)
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos.333-
78709, 33-60443 and 33-60449) of Katy Industries, Inc. of our report dated April 11, 2003 relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Katy Industries, Inc., which appears in this Form 10-K. We also consent
to the incorporation be reference of our report dated April 11, 2003 relating to the financial statement
schedule, which appears in this Form 10-K.

s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
April 11,2003
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KATY INDUSTRIES, ING.
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